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(Enough) Reported (IBN(E)R) STl ZJa<dTAT &+ dxadd (Change in Insurance Contract Liabilities)
AIAH! THA (HATT T @3 3T @ I&=qq Mg, |

FHATT ATAFIA TR FANGH AT AT TAT SAGHTH ATTHT BRI AT, 050159 AT FHFIATH!
F MG TT GE A @ TIH G | AL, 05015 HT FFIAH @3 ad @9 {5 Jaedd gddl shawg |
Tl G AUHT TS HFET Combined Ratio THT TEHl & | A1.9. 09150 HT %A% Combined
Ratio 99 Gfqera Teal f9dT 9= & d. 3050159 AT Combined Ratio &5 IfeTa T&aT |

FFIATA R0 AHT FATTAT § TG HIT FET AT $.30 379 9wl Afgepl I qHTAT TLHT B |

gg ahT
A A, 050159 HT FHAG & ¥¥ FS Y3 A@H 3 AR AT T4 IHd TUH G | Td ATTHAT &
ATHFHT GT ATHT T ¥o FAS &\ AT@ TEHAT AHIEAT TUAT HFAATH F2 ATHH G AR . €3 FAS %
AT TEH G | FFEIAD HT ATTHR] GF ATRIAT %, AAATH! dfg HURN G A7 F2 GLATTH] GF ATRIAT 20
giqeTael ghg TUH B |

FIIATITE AT.F. J0WRNS3 [T AT TRl AT TN IT [T ARG U 912 faaware Mg 9w
faaor T THET T, 59,0%3,¥00 [T AN &2 dd . 5¥,393,0%0 ¥ ALF. 0099z qIT 09150 HT
ST TRET EFIRT SATHL ATAGH AHRF] TFIT AATS (eTd [l T YT AUHT el 9A% ITHTH THH
%.9%0,20% 3% T FHEIHIE! T AT IR JHTHT (0T FHINTH 47,9, 098|150 AT AHT SATHT TIHT
IR TR AT.F. R09%150 FI fa=<iia fa@wer qar &l S TFHdTs FTAFA SATIAT AT T&T I9 AR
FX F.¥5,390,0%3 FT FRI J0RISO | FFAIH X oA dlg T FFIAH & ATHIAT FEAT Tl (927 |
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AT FIHRATE G B Al B0 TAT TAI] STATR] AT THH T PIRAT ATHT &Tell SATIART THH I
U] BRU] AT AT AT T ATl @oAT TLehT AT RO HFIHIh] ATRTAT THATS TLH T | T1Y,
FFIAT ETHFAA 39T Aled TATIR ETAT TH] A = ATGF qUH] a1 AR TATIT 95 G

ATRTHT G GIATI STERTATT eI ATTHT [aTHT Fa=Tel ATehue Giamhel Yo = A& T8t &) |

GATAT ST

FFIATA ATRAT ATATT TAT AMGHBT FBiq ATET STGHIHA AN, TAAET AN TAT SGH FEETaT AT
FAATA T AT AT GIARRIEE AT (ERTREEER] ATITAT B AT F STA] SN f@H o2 qor
qSTAT ARATIT TE ATTHT G | Il AT JIgapeorare ey fEer it waeier qaarar &y 397
fsepr Qe FrOEEAE A yrataear faqad seer aHIfTH FEIES \ieY S, B qar qeree
Frar qar fafqe ST ATt SATEEEET [AATET TATCAT TASTHT FEIEEEART F e ATCH B T
A AHEEE] FHAT AT TATH] FFIAEES] dHAT AT TIH JrafHFar Tqedl THATHT B Taedrs

fag et Far fageft QAT Froemas M T ST G |

qHFT, FTEMATERT TEAT Hefaqraare Gorar g Sgaeb! TN aTHIS FqTell STHT FFI-Teee] Il i
%, 900 FISH! Wl THATHT LT @RE THT G | FFAS @G TP HeTaara qAarare I
ERATI FFIATATS 99 FAAR I9 T ATHRTAT Hie AT AT HFIATR] LTI TIT AARIAGER GSirehl
TIEATHT AT AARETT TEHT FERT SAHFNT TRIST TG | FHFIAT Faereae Tl Helfadtd Tarar saaear
AT A7 TAATHT SAGEATH FRU T FFOATT Q09 F THFIF A9 059 Afyaqal arer anast 3faa
AT T Gl TS ATTH G | HeTaura e Haearq=et aiT FEwTedl qAeTHeesars aad qirg
FIHT RN I &8 AT THT AN TRISH =Meweg) | FFIATA Aqervae Tl A@wieh A, AT
Hifq qor SifEgw T Afqd FR THT AIAAE “T 9 e’ I T F Teb HHT HFIATH STHAT
TEH |

FFEIA A [AATHT BT [, FGT FEATAA R &1 [, &1 dArar Araaaiirae e ar
FEIAEEGT AT FaT T TR G |

Hannover Re (Leader), Malaysia
General Insurance Corporation, Mumbai
Swiss Re Asia Pte, Singapore
Ocean Re, Barbados

Sava Re, Slovenia

New India Gift City, India

Triglav Re, Slovenia

Oman Re, Oman

ADNIC, UAE

Sirius International, United Kingdom
Nepal Re, Nepal

Himalayan Re, Nepal

ICICI Lombard, India

FFAI KM Dastur Reinsurance Brokers Pvt. Ltd @97 JB Boda Reinsurance Brokers #Thd #=Rifted
QAT FFIHIEEaT qETH GFI=el FRIER T4 ATTH & |

gg UTRUT Hifd

FHIATG ATRAT Risk Capacity, Risk Appetite T4T Risk Tolerance Level SIRITTH ATHAT @3 g Fifd
(Retention Strategy) AT T ATTHT @ | FEA Risk Capacity, Risk Appetite 79T Risk Tolerance
Level T Retention Strategy &I @I FFIwIeI TFA Raunak Jha & Co. @2 Retention and Reinsurance
optimization Study I FFIHTA ATRAT grevr Hifq fAATT T AR HT AFEE RIS AETD |

FEIATR] TIATHT TUHT FTgaT ARHT [GTAT THT FFIAIP] THFITA HeATST TAT FAAT THINTH FFIATA
HTRAT GZ g AT T4 AT AfTers Hiamera afeATsT T8 S ST WS =) |
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Sfew SHaeTas

FEIAIH] ANGH AIITIATS 9T 3¢ TATST AT FM@H LTI FAARTRT FTA1 TN TFapardy e
HATART FHARIFT AT AT ATAVTF FHANEE (HIh T SGH LIS qad a3 ATTH G |
SIfEH AT qFardl FHEEdTs 99 TAEEH] qATSad A Grfead HHaEEdrs Aavqed qad!
SFLATIA TS TTHT G | FFIATA ATHRAT GG JAT FRIARE FEafedd SaHeeeh] HaeaTIHHT @A
frafad 98T ATRAT Risk Register @8 #&amafae® T Risk Dash Board @97 Risk Trigger Mechanism &1

~ o

T foepra T ATTHT G A

qIT AT JIRIeROTare ST AUHT Risk Based Capital @wafer fA3firsr @9m Own Risk and Solvency
Assessment T e FTHT FTATEIT TGIEHTA HFIHIHT JGH G v FIee 99 38 88 A
BT STET TR T |

R0%9 ATAHT . 40 FIISH FAThT SiTaTe TS a9 FFIwST 0 AT ATAT ATAT TRRETT ATRAT q2aF %, %
W 3% FAIS TATST AhT TUH G | 347 FHHARAT 7ol (o7 (Faaarrdy (erare Swr fager swiforaet
FRY0 FUSH FATH F<hT Tl [ATIH AFA Gfgel HFIAIH] STAT TWH G | BT HFIADl =Fhl Gl
FTREUY QY9300 TEH B | HUTA AIHT GIiIERorare ST AURT Risk Based Capital 74T Own Risk and
Solvency Assessment Directive FHITTH FFIATHI Economic Capital THT TAT HIATHT &bl STHHTT TRISH

el | AT FEIA [GHFIAT IEAHT AT JATIR EAAT THN AHIEATS Fair Value | @I Tal
FEIAIG Feqd T, WO TS AT AgF B THA AAFNT RIS =67 |

AT
FEIATE AT 205919094 T TFEI FATEF TR TSHATE FFIATH] &6l FIAH <hT ISET 0 FrAaTeisht
T FAH AT TAT FL TATSTABT AT 0 U I3% FIALTAHT G G ATHITR TEATE T G |

T ATIROT FATAT YA TS A9 AR (a0 =TT FFIAR! Fehl Ioil & %R FRIS TG | aAd
ST TYHTA =TT GSITHT B dfgehT PRI AWTHT AHIAT =hT IS AThYE GiThed F&H T AT earai
FIAT ATFITF TG JAT ATSTATGEET (FTHIT TAT HTATFAT Ta AN FIEEAT THT (Y TTAT ATehde
giahel &I T JU@X @ Gidqagdr IHd =A<k T4 =ew |

FEIATA ATRAT LATIATHAING R0 THHT AATGHT 300 TAMAHRT TGB! AT (AR TRADH! B I TH
FFtaaT oavg fAsitad SHT Freeed YT b ATATeT GaeTd Wwal Afae IEHT Fe¥ S[Hhl RIS
e | HFIAT TATIATH] R0 TUH] AATTHT BTl ¥ GET Tl ATHITRT [qaor e aHilied T8l @ |

ara. HA ATHI Uferore
RORRRY .Y
JORYIRE 3.4
RORLIRG RR&
RO%5IT] ¥R.9
RO%R|%0 R9.04
Eeltel| R9.0%
ROqIeR L%
ROVRIGR %394
R03|9Y 043
09|09 ic
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T FHEAI TERT TIAT ATRAT Ag RIS dfedl T TFal (Asiiad STAT e a1 el B | Hrare
T TATAATE T WAGHT hige Fag U el G | T =g fag g Heqeied ATRAT foaeiir afacaes awad
Al T AT HTATHT GREAV GG T J@TSeS | ag T T FFIAT ST Il HFIATRT faaTeep]
faira Sra=aT Tl faxird <], Faedrdd 9e7, IR [e&dl, THaTHT FaedTdd q97 @ FaeqrIadrs
TSR T g &I TRUH g7 | T HFIAT THhT AT T EH! Mg I T qfeal T THArT HAsirad
AT FEAT TRT ATTHRT TRIGT =ATEw |

TS AT

FHEIAT AT STHT JTRAHTOTETE ST ST (e fTehTent oy 3 R saeeaae e SUel @ | eqeiel
AEFTAT 3¢9 Aled Al ALATH! FdrTT qoT HOTTHT FAATaT T (THFAT TAET a1 TATIA AR
& JAT BT GFAT 9T A TS ATCHT | [ATATR AT A A GEHT Fal THHT FIqHe TaTT
ANE FEATHT ATRTAT genifad qUAtT ATSEr avewHr aAr yfawe afg W @F e gfg T "eq Ao

FRTAT BTHT ATITATET T | FFAATRT ATA. 050159 FT AAGEHAT F AT 8. ¥\93 FAS TEhT T i
ETTHT TRT AT (A0 e iTsTH T8l STl RIS =E |

faaor uferor
A fa %Y
T qu

fedetam Sgea afedesr AR v
HTFTAT ATTH I¢9T Fledeh! AT AN
EIEICRIEILIN @

AT FXHRATE HT TAT T8 AHTAT I AT ATETT ThH qAT HRAT ATHT ZTET AT FFIATS T
TRH T AU AIHRATE I G T THHP! (BTAT THUR! PRI FFIAID] AT (&R0 JaT qM

HTRETHTHT G JHAIGT qE G ATRTHT A& TN A RIS AT |

el Afehg SAT wfie ARATRT FROT WedlT (AT T 8 SATSIEY |ieTEh! FIRUT HEITH! AT ATEETHT
TTtad g dfawg | TAMT TS AT g FRareh] AARATs ~FATH0 Tl AN FHFIATe ATRAT AAIATS
AT HTATHT FaTaeeheor TP SATAHIET TRISH =@ | AT AT S THT ATHESATE ATHT

fedewaT AThy® gfawd g gq favar faedrss =l |

v faea

FTHTT TETATE AT FIAT AR T 3297 Afed FFIAT ATRAT T o 9 MeReh B | eTeraed
99 9TET T faedR Agdbed! B I ARMHT [EHe®HT 2ATFATIE qeITeTare! Jead= T 99 9@ f&aear
TS AT AET TZhT ATTHET RIS AEw | AT FUTeT 9T T Q0 FT Foieetrar @l faear

TRHT FEY SAHN] TRIIT AEE | FFIATR [aiq~ TEUE®HT TEhT ArEThl F&l [FrTeadiioTd Tahl & |

TG I e
prefr 9%
EER q0
SANTHAT 3c
AUSHT 9%
ArFEr R0
FOITAT q0
FETA=H ]
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ATTHT feTe®aT 0T ATadTF FRITAAT &7 STHTRl 99 FaT [aeqearT AT ST a7 TITEeA] aHd
9T FaEq e ST A T8l & W 9Tl [oeqRel A uiaiael g0 STEaH GANT T fefsed gfataHha
A THTEH [T THHN AT FEAT AT TATARET b TRFb GHA SIS TS =TEw) |

FEAMAT AT, 305015 F A=A FFIAAT §¥0 TAT FHARIGE HATT LH G | FFIAMHT H1Aq
FHATNGEH FRT Y0 Ffaerd Afear FHATT WH S | FFAE] Afedl FHAREEATS TT rearean
10T AfgATRr U fa wfeamardy e saawar s g | g FHArEEal & Y GG qrHrhel Y a9
raferepl Aratas Sfaw ST ARUET B | IS FFIART FHAREES qAEA 99 Afqgig 95 FFIwre gafaar
HEd faerar favar fqusr g |

FFIATR] HAAT FHATIF] TETAT T ATARTAATHT (97 T8 AUHA ATRAT FHANEEH HIAEETAT qdT
AT Afgafg T AT g AT Jar SR g UF arfaHew IR A9 AT0H G| Fara
AT TIeRROrETe. ST ARTHT e FRIH AT FFIEed @8 ATRIH FAaH g5 Jaerd TH HHarEeEd
TH ToT AT [ARTEAT Gl TI AAET T T T FHIAIS Ih AATATART AT FTHT ATRAT FHAT b
i faepTerT @ T3 ATTHT THA PRI TRTST ATEw! | FFIAIST ATRAT FHATIEER! g (oTehTaept a1
HAAFIT THT AT TN FTAFHEE T ATRAT FHAREEATS T THT F1I ATATARIH FET T8 TF HFIAT
The HRM Nepal Awards for Corporate Excellence aT¢ ¥ AUHT AERT HeW STHHRT IRTST =MEw |

FFIAIT BYF a9 HFIATR] ANk Feadehl ATAIHAT HHIHIAT Q0 FUTT Afdd AT ATy a1 yar
T FHAEEATS (99T TR TS ATTHT G 9 IRl R0 AT aftie Joqas! ATTHT FFIATAT 0
TR e THAING AT GETT TS ATUHT HHATIEEATS (979 FEATT FaT T2ehT & |

YRATIT YHATTG Jawgired
T ATHT TIIROrETe RN TRUH! (A9 aHINH ST FFIeed @8 ATHRIR FAdH THh Taerd hH
T IALENAE ATqd @ I FAEAT el G | qUTe STAT JIRIurare ey TMeear faer awitaw
FIIATS AN AT ITRENAE Avaid (e SFEEAT @9 19 IS8 |
F. TN ARATSHEEAT & @

fotenT, TTeaT, TET YT SHARATIN, ATHIITE TIAT SfSUHT aTHT AT AT &HAT ATalg, ST ATea,

TTEe FRETT FHEIAT FEAFH TAT STHIIRT aF] AH] T¥aedl FAFHAT TR @ |

g, Y& AR @
Afq o= qur fawT=aeed avier STaare! T Riem 91 @ S TET & @ |
T IRET AR
FHT aTe TR T g @ |
. FHEAMT FTART FHARIEEH] aTAdIARIER! AT Child Day Care Center &1 24T &l @A @+ |

FIIATS AT, 050159 TT HH THITTHER FLITTT ATHIRTE IO Araidehl HAEHEE GaATA

T SR TR FE |

® 050 AR FIfd HIEATHT HUMCIH] ATSHIEH ATTH THFT Gl TedNTd FFIATare Hoel
39T YXERATS .99 AT@RT eI Y&TT TRTHT |

® FUNCH JEOTHT STAATH AT TR ATTAfGHT AN A@RHT dre faawe

® TATHITH TEAHTAT TTTATHT ATNT FEAT
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® JTEl TRUNAHEE Faad ATHEISF [aaraadrs AMided qeanT
o AT AR faehreep! AT SIHT TeI=dT e 38T FTHMIH] [FHI0 97 Jhre
® FHEHIH] AMYF IcAAH ATATHT &¥h qY AT TTH IHATT FIAEHE G

2. iftga e swriftgd ufkfeufiaie Hrusieh! HRIERAT W ¥
TATA STAT JHTHRIETE ST TUHT fafq=T fAERrerr qor MEeress SrHT FFa-Tel hRIARAT Toaal A9
RRTEHT 7, | AT STHT TTFRUETE. ST U] SraHih Trvd eeess, a6l SFaeddd Frl (Haees,
qAETHT SEAwTa Hted HaeTesdd T Own Risk and Solvency Assessment Directive, Climate Risk
Management Directive @Taa &= fafies fHaeTeeel ST FTIETH FRERAT T q0X IReH grg | a1,
T ST AT SR & Hifweh AT TAT 7 TRIAewee] GHT (Foiiad STHT 8T 38R IRIEH &7 |

afthg TRAAT AT, TR, ATH AN @AF! (efq T FHY ASAAAH ATLATA AR AT
JoTE AR ARIEHT &5 | Siehy ARAATHT & IARTAGTAH! BRI HE( [EMTHT YT & SATSIa¥dT g+ uaaged

FFIATH AT TIARAHT THAE TR &7 |

AT AT B0 AT 99 2@ 93 TT TEH AT THT AR AR HROT TUHT aTel q9T Ge<lepr Hre
FEIHTHT GrITd STAT, AT drar qor gfwfaafee S s=aia ¥&& 9er 9T 2 a1 & 999 FRIgh! ardl
TYHN G | FEIATA FAAFAT TR [AATHAT AT AT TAATHT SFACATIAHT HIROT ATET TAT Ffe<rare e
TS AT FFIATR] G2 A6 @ Ha &Y FAS AT T8 AUH GaT aTel qd1 qfe2iebl dTHT aTTehl R0

FEIHThT ATRTHT qRAT 92 I TAENT TRISH ‘ilS"?Ei |

3. uftdes TR weaT fafoamr oy aslar Suafew T wiasawr 76 0@ FRTET SRwET Ssdtas gifder YTRuT
T ST FTiIaIvrane ST RUHT Risk Based Capital Directive SHITSTH RBC QRRT TAR IR HFIATH!
Risk Based Capital &I 9Tl ST GIIFRUTATe T@Iekd Ired T+ afeedl fAsirad d\7 &Far 95 Hera
A1 4.3050159 &1 FATNE TR TAT T GlEel (o= dTHT Hrel TUHT &) |

= AT AT AT IqdeT TAR TRUHT AT TFAAT FFIATT FT & 300 FSH & ATHT s ATSH (T
FUH TAATHT 0 GfTTaHT qAlg) T THA qTH G |

TFeT, FTRT AT FREAR A% 90 R Fabar Ta1 AMfdeE Tiataiaes qehi=aa Teeh! TaeardT TH
IIE AT AGAIAT G919 99 afges; | a9 aRfeafaar wraier sragr faearsr @it 74t amar fawr
AT FATCREHT FEATd AT AT ATIANIE IO JTHT T8 FIfe THITHF! FIAFHER FATAT TS ATTH]
I | FET AR FEHE AAANAF qig eNaet T ARl TUHT PRI TRIST ATevay | AR fawar e
digitization, digitalization T digital transformation T% FeqHTATH TAT ETETRTSATT TOHIT TS AT TG
THT ST RIS =ME |

TS FGTH arSaTe ST TRUH i gfqaaTd1 NFRS 17, Insurance Contract ATRTHT STa0TaRE @]
Z98 | FFIATT NFRS 17 1 GO FATEITE AN ATG9TF S0 99 T67 SA91h T4 TaTaee faer
TR & | 1, q= fafa=T TEEAT THA IFRS 17 F1 FTAT=d=H] d 9 TUH dAriied gfaftsd o
AT T KPMG & NFRS 17 &1 T dehT AT ATa9deh GRTHY T STl [aebrdert o1 qehTdm
THHH! G TSR WS =AE |

AT STHT YITIROTee ST TRUH Own Risk and Solvency Assessment Directive STHITTH &#FIwTel ATHRAT
FAAT AT FRIARET F¥I(=a SiM@HH! Quantitative T9T Qualitative Assessment dfed wfawrer =&aamd
TAT AT Emerging Risk @Ts THT ALATSX T ATHAT Economic Capital 1 Assessment I+ STa<4T

TEH G | FFA Own Risk and Solvency Assessment &1 I FHTATHIAAHET ATNT ATALAF FTHT FHATREE
foh T8 wavaE qaATaReR qEd e TREEE g |
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Frenfires va srauTires awwr

FEIAT ATRAT AT IO oeq fafqer it srar, et yfqsse qur qgied He=ET
FUYY qEE7 FTAH e AR G | FFIAIHT 8¢ T FTATATEE T ATATRAT &0 ATRAT ATTATIE
FrIeges faeqr T AUHT g | 9rd, @eeft gar fazelt qadiaees, qFdTaT Sk, SAr afaedar qoar

~ . ~ o -
THYE T qHA qHYY AqEIdDe JEd blIH Tl% ATURT ﬁf |

FFIATS ATRAT TEATIHT TR TAT ARATIAFT AN TATAHT TEIU e AT e AEATEwe T cATaan s
EEIH FIIH T ATTHT G | TH FFIAT QATVE AL oAb TqTeAb] Jrarehd fsitas STHT FFIerepr FqaT
TEHN TAHT SR TRIST ATewl | AT FFEIATA AT ek FherrTehT AT fafae STl Taraed Gedmes
T GEHTH TS ATTHT & |

FHAS T AMATERT [ATARHT AT AUATAAT 5 FAT ATIAATALHAT TAT FARAAT §,000 TwaT Afdh
AATAEEET A EREd e ST AT b TS ATTHT G | TF FFIAT FqTe q9T ARTAT A8

T ST a1 T2 T el HFIEThT SqHT T8l GHd STl RIS =E |

FEIAT AT [Aoirad dTHT FFe®GT AT ATIENTd qIT JUHIAH JIHarT T AT alegdl HBT
SRR TRIST A= |

T FHEAT A9 ATHeb TE,AITA TG T, I FANT AT HeTHE, SuTel IHET GIRHer ATfgepl aod
e e AUTHT AfdF AT ST (AP AN GHT GHAAT ATTIAF GRTIEE I YT T AT G |

oaATad HTTAT HYSHT IR T W HIRUT

FHAH T8 @qA dared AT SHIARE FHEESIS ATHAT AThTd FRU AT 2050 =@ %, ITd @a
FATAF TTATE ANTATAT [T T R @bl TTAT 2 T Aedoddls @qea daTddbd! ST Mah TRaH
ST RIS =Mewa) |

fAfe 205019318 AT TFI=T FFEIATERT 9%, o ATTF TR GAETE AR GHFT FTARTAF] AN GEATTF THE
“F” AT AT TR AT, #7 T FAR F2ad (GF TIX Y0 THATE), . 2SI S T AR 0

>
oo

“g” arg T AR 00 FATereh aitad g quer for

T FEAF FRATATS (H FIEE THAET T TH G

- e arareRer qar MaadsE Meaesare a0 GuaAr S g Meedes |

- AT JAT A=IgT AT ATATaRT |

- ATHT FFIAEEATE e Jiqerdl |

- JiatgeRT faehre quT |rger gRe Rl Sad |

- @, ATE, FTETEL AT A HElEard SiitgH 91 HiEH aRadd el sitaHees |
- TftgT qar FRifted ATfdE qUT ITSTAfqe araqrER |

- egel AT it Hifaew AT qor o TF FAAAT g9 giead T |

- XA g IIAdHeR RO S q4AT faxirg SRATer WA T SATSTERAT ATS aEd |

ity 3feafad FREEaTe FFATERE O TATEEEArs FAIE T ATGYTF TOHIT JAT ATSTAEE oA T3
o ~ > o 9
Fte Afeedl FABRT TSR TRST =675 |

T ATHT IO AT AT IS Haeware SRI g4 e e® q97 7 Fewh! aara-e
AT FFIAA ATALAF FHATT TAT TATIRPT (b T FHANGEATS MATHTSTHT ATGAF ATMAHPT T
TE ATTET
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Q.

Q®.

3.

8.

I+, ATEl AMITH ARTaIrd FAM@Heware ol g4 dTH SaHars AHEo TR AT JaTe FTHT
HeTfadta qeTHTRT SHaw TRTHT ) | AT FEAT SETE A T TR SAGH b Gried FTaeed’s
THA 9T GAEHE TATSS ATTH G |

Ha® gfeads GFadl JaHeedTs ~IHe0T THET AT quTer STHT Tiaheurare Jer aeTdesat AT
TET ATEAIAF HT qAT BTAHHE®H] GHA (HHOT T F(MGH =TI T ATTH G |

fafier wiftgr qar sraRiftea aTfder, TST{qe qoT ATAISE JREAdHHT FRU AT g4 ATIAIEF ATGHATS
FT ITHFT AT FFIAT HAAITE ARAF TAT ZEHTAH] Tl AT ST (e} q41 F7 SHTeraehT
faear qar fafadeezor 73 stra Aifq Jar ST AT T ATREHT GET AN WIS ATES |

fara T G 99 ATRAT FUAREEATE Grgar LT qeawar frafad arfaq gar 78 s g |

TSGR FIMGHATS FTLATIT T BFIAIl F9Te SATHAT JTAeBTaTE AT (aAThIEeehl ATTTAT TEl AqeBTeATT
Far fedErT FTYAT ArmAT @nrdiarg fafgdiezor v aroEr qaE q099 AR |

FETURIEIUT YiagaAT Hithad was

A a9 050 /59 F @I GITTTTHT FH ARAT BIRAT TTTHT T FETATTEEHT ST
TG | TRIFH F@TIRITT Gfqaad qa1 AT @I Giaaad] qWhTaes quiTH ATavas Fee
TS ATREFN FAFFNT RIS =6 |

VAR T Rt
FHA AT A 050 /59 AT F 9% Thd TREH HERT TIREAT HeTHTGe®H SAHFRT RIS |

foorer oniities aAT HFEET T TEIH HRURIET HIRTETRET WRIfT ¥ AT SNTRieh asieht tecediT veahl Ruferehl UeTaciieet
TF FFEIAIH] B FETaF FFIAT e FERT AAFNT RIS |

HFUEAT TAT TEA® HFUAI ST TEHT TFI IRDT THE BRIGREE ¥ T FARAT HFOAIDT HRIARAT STTHT
& Ageayut ufkada
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ISION, MISSION

OBJECTIVE




Vision

The vision of Shikhar Insurance is to be the
leading insurance company of Nepal with
innovative and reliable insurance solutions at
par with the international standards, committed
to enhancing the financial security and well-
being of its customers.

Mission

The mission of Shikhar Insurance is to deliver
exceptional value to customers through a
comprehensive range of insurance services,
leveraging technology and innovation.




Overall Strategy and Objectives

Shikhar Insurance has the following strategic objectives that are aligned with the vision and mission of the
company.

Expanding Market Presence

Expanding market presence through new insurance product development and insurance penetration in the
untapped segments and regions is a key focus of the company. This also involves strategic partnerships with
the local and international entities and exploring new distribution channels and the use of digital means to reach
a broader customer base.

Enhancing Customer Experience

One of the primary strategies is to enhance customer experience by offering innovative and tailored insurance
products that meet the evolving needs of the insured and prompt claim settlement. This includes leveraging
advanced technologies such as artificial intelligence and big data analytics to provide personalized services and
streamline claim processing.

Maintaining Financial Stability

Another crucial objective is to maintain financial stability and profitability. The financial health of the company
shall be safeguarded through prudent risk management practices, sound re-insurance management, management
of catastrophic risk and effective cost control measures and diversification of investment portfolios.

Organizational Excellence and Human Resource Development

Human Resource development and organizational excellence are pivotal to executing the overall strategy. Talent
development through a culture of continuous learning and innovation, fostering a positive work environment and
initiatives to ensure that the workforce remains skilled and motivated to deliver exceptional service.

The objective of organization excellence shall be achieved through the development of standard operating
procedures for each critical processes, robust quality management system, sound internal control practices,
data driven decision making and culture of excellence. Organisational policies and practices shall be focused
on promoting dignified workplace and inclusive environment.

Compliance and Governance

The company aims to comply with regulatory requirements and adhere to high standards of governance. The
company is committed to transparency, accountability, and maintaining the trust of its stakeholders through
rigorous governance frameworks and ethical conduct. This includes regular audits, compliance training, and
staying updated with changes in the regulatory landscape.

Technology Integration

Technological integration in the operations of the company to enhance operational efficiency and customer
service. This shall be achieved using digital platforms for policy issuance, claims processing, and customer
interactions, as well as implementing advanced analytics for better risk assessment and decision-making.

Customer Education and Awareness

Educating customers about the importance of insurance and the various products available to them is another
strategic objective of the company. This involves conducting awareness campaigns, providing informational
resources, and offering personalized consultations to help customers make informed decisions.
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Building Trust

Shikhar Insurance strategizes to differentiate ourselves in the competitive market through trust and transparency.
Transparent communication, consistent customer service, and honoring commitments establish strong client
relationships, fostering long-term loyalty.

Ethical Practices

Ethical practices are central to the company's strategy. By implementing robust ethical guidelines, ensuring
transparency in all dealings, and promoting diversity, equity, and inclusion, the company upholds the highest
standards of integrity. This commitment extends to responsible investment practices that align with social and
environmental values.

Risk Management

Risk management is paramount in the strategy of Shikhar Insurance. Robust risk management along with strong
reinsurance management practices is done to ensure financial stability and solvency protection of shareholder’s
capital contribution during the catastrophic events.

Return to the shareholders

Shikhar Insurance aims to maximize returns to its shareholders by focusing on sustainable growth and profitability.
This approach involves strategic investments, efficient capital management, and continuous innovation in product
offerings. By maintaining financial discipline and leveraging opportunities in the market, the company seeks to
deliver consistent value and returns to its investors.

68hikhar
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Core Values

([ The company places the highest priority on meeting the needs\
and exceeding the expectations of its customers. Every

decision and action are taken with the insured in mind, ensuring
that their satisfaction and trust are always maintained. The
company prioritizes customer satisfaction by providing reliable
L and prompt insurance and claim services.

J

N
The company continuously seeks innovative solutions to

improve its services and deliver greater value to its customers.
This includes adopting new technologies, developing creative

insurance products, and enhancing operational efficiency.
J

,5\

N
The company is always committed to upholding the highest

standards of honesty, transparency and ethical practices.
J

-
Adherence to all relevant laws, regulations, and guidelines is

a cornerstone of Shikhar Insurance's operations. This
commitment to compliance reflects Shikhar Insurance's
dedication to ethical practices and its long-term sustainability.)

Compliance

-
The company always aims to provide high-quality services,

achieving operational excellence, and fostering a culture of
continuous learning and development.

J

N
The company encourages teamwork, open communication,
and mutual respect among its employees, creating
a strong and united organization for a collaborative, supportive
and dignified work environment.

J/
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Code of Conduct and Ethical Principle

Confidentiality

The company and all the employees are always
committed to maintaining the confidentiality of all
customer information, protecting them from
unauthorized access and ensuring it is used solely
for legitimate business purposes.

Compliance

Adherence to all relevant laws, regulations, and
guidelines is mandatory. This includes compliance
with industry standards and anti-money laundering
policies.

Conflict of Interest

Employees must avoid situations where their personal
interests could conflict with the interests of the
company or its customers. Any potential conflicts
must be disclosed promptly.

Professionalism

All employees are expected to conduct themselves
with the highest level of professionalism,
demonstrating competence, courtesy, and respect
in all interactions.

Accountability

The company promotes a culture of accountability
where employees take responsibility for their actions
and decisions, ensuring transparency and building
trust with stakeholders.

Environmental
Responsibility

The company is committed to sustainable practices
and minimizing its environmental impact, integrating
eco-friendly initiatives into its business operations.

Social
Responsibility

AN A AR KA

Engaging in social welfare activities and contributing
to the community’s well-being is a core principle.
The company supports initiatives that promote
education, health, social welfare and disaster relief.
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Milestones

61/62

Shifted to
own building

Premium of
Rs. 105 Crore

Establishment
of the company

Premium of
Rs. 333 Crore

Premium of
Rs. 200 Crore

Awarded by IRD for
highest revenue
contribution

® Paid up capital of

ftts.m [?rore ® Premium of
® 1 non life insurance
company toapen Rs. 400 Crore

® 100+ branch offices
Ist non life insurance
company to employee

® 500+ human resources

® Arating from
ICRA Nepal

® Premium of Rs. 501 Crore
A+ credit rating from
ICRA Nepal

® Awarded by Government

of Nepal as Best agriculture

insurance company

of Nepal

Ist company to meet
paid up capital of
Rs. 250 Crore
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COMPANY PROFILE

Shikhar Insurance was established in 2004 as the 14"
general insurance company of Nepal. The CRO
registration no. of the Company is 878/060/61
and IRD Permanent Account No. is 301715445.
The registered office of the company is at
Kathmandu Nepal and currently providing
insurance services through 117 branch
offices, 7 province offices along with
digital channel. The company offers more
than 75 general insurance products over
different insurance portfolios viz. Property
Insurance, Motor Insurance, Marine Insurance
Engineering Insurance, Aviation Insurance, _
Agriculture and Cattle Insurance, Micro Insurance an
Miscellaneous Insurance. Shikhar Insurance was founded
with the vision to offer reliable and accessible insurance
services to individuals and business houses. Over the
years, it has grown to become the most trusted insurance
provider, known for its integrity, transparency, and
commitment to excellence. Currently Shikhar Insurance
holds overall market share of 13%), 50% market share in
Karnali Province of Nepal and 20% market share in
Agriculture and Cattle Insurance. Over the past 10 years
Shikhar insurance has the highest market share in the
Nepalese general insurance industry. Shikhar insurance
is the first general insurance company in Nepal to collect
gross insurance premium over Rs. 100 crores, Rs. 200
crores, Rs.300 crore, Rs. 400 crore and Rs. 500
crores.Shikhar insurance is the first general insurance
company in Nepal to provide insurance services through
100+ branch offices and to provide employment
opportunities to 500 and more.

Established with paid up capital of Rs. 10 crores, the current
paid up capital of the company is Rs. 265 crore and net
worth of Rs. 536 crores. Shikhar insurance is the first
general insurance company to meet the minimum regulatory
capital of Rs.250 crores without being merged with other
insurance companies. Shikhar insurance is the only A+
rated insurance company from ICRA Nepal, and with best
catastrophic reinsurance coverage among the Nepalese
general insurance companies, Shikhar Insurance stands
as the strongest general insurance company of Nepal.

Along with the support of the reinsurance program and
sound financial position, Shikhar Insurance demonstrated
the efficient and proactive claim service ability during the

2015
earthquake losses and
recent flood losses. Over the
period of 20 years, Shikhar insurance has
paid more than Rs.2,000 crores of claim for more than
100,000 claims.

Shikhar Insurance has demonstrated leadership in various
initiatives within the general insurance industry, working
towards shared goals and objectives. Shikhar Insurance
has been POOL manager for the COVID 19 Insurance
Pool, Micro Insurance Pool and Aviation Insurance
consortium.

Shikhar Insurance's commitment to excellence has been
recognized through numerous awards and accolades.
Shikhar insurance has been awarded numerous times as
Best managed insurance company and best insurance
company of Nepal. Shikhar Insurance has been awarded
by the Inland Revenue Department for the highest revenue
contribution among general insurance companies. The
government of Nepal has awarded Shikhar Insurance as
best agriculture and cattle insurance company of Nepal.
These honors reflect the company's dedication to providing
top-notch insurance services and maintaining the highest
standards of professionalism and ethical conduct.

Shikhar Insurance has set the benchmark in the insurance
industry with its comprehensive product offerings, customer-
centric approach, and unwavering commitment to innovation
and social responsibility. Shikhar insurance has developed
the highest numbers of new insurance products in the
Nepalese general insurance sector.
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BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S PROFI

LE

Mr. Gaurav Agrawal, Chairman J

Mr. Gaurav Agrawal is chairman of the Board of Directors
of Shikhar Insurance. Mr. Agrawal is a distinguished
entrepreneur and business leader with extensive experience
across various sectors, including hospitality, insurance, and
startup development. Mr. Agrawal holds a master’s degree
in leadership and strategy from the prestigious London
Business School, England. Mr. Agrawal was also a valued
member of the Board of Directors of Shikhar Insurance
from the inception until Shrawan 31, 2074.

Dr. Shrujana Shrestha, DirectorJ

Dr. Shrujana Shrestha has served as a director at Shikhar
Insurance since 2076/04/28. Holding a Doctor of Medicine
in Dermatology, she has established herself as a leading
dermatologist specializing in aesthetic procedures and
manages her own Absolute Aesthetics clinic. Additionally,
she contributes to advancements in dermatology and
aesthetic science as a member of the Society of
Dermatologists, Venereologists, and Leprologists of Nepal.

LMr. Ramesh Kumar Luitel, Director

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Luitel has been serving as a director
of Shikhar Insurance since 2069/03/24. In addition to
his role at Shikhar Insurance, Mr. Luitel is Director
(Finance) and Company Secretary at Buddha Air Pvt.
Ltd. Mr. Luitel holds bachelor’s degree in commerce
and has more than 3 decades of experience in financial
management, taxation and corporate governance.
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Mr. Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya, Director
(Public Shareholder)

J

Mr. Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya has been serving as a
director representing public shareholders at Shikhar
Insurance since 2073/09/08. Mr. Bajracharya holds a
Master of Business studies and has experience of
leading different corporate houses where he oversees
strategic operations and financial growth.

Mr. Puskar Mahat, Independent DirectorJ

Mr. Puskar Mahat has been serving as an Independent
Director at Shikhar Insurance since 2080/10/21.He has
also served as Chairman of Narayani College and
President of the Recruitment Committee for the Hetauda
Municipality Office.Mr. Mahat holds a master’s degree
in commerce and has around 4 decades of experience
in the general insurance industry.

Mr. Saurav J.B. Rana, Director
(Public Shareholder)

Mr. Saurav J.B. Rana has been serving as a Director
of Shikhar Insurance Co. Ltd. since 2076/04/28. Mr.
Rana holds a Master of Business Administration degree
and is a seasoned entrepreneur with extensive
experience in trading, automotive industries and startup
ventures.

Mr. Skand Amatya, Director
(Public Shareholders)

l

Mr. Skand Amatya has been serving as a director
representing public shareholders at Shikhar Insurance
since 2072/12/05. Mr. Amatya holds a Master of
Business Administration degree and leads multiple
ventures and corporate houses, where he oversees
strategic business operations and market growth.
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Board of Directors’ Composition and Role

The composition of the Board of Directors of the company is governed by the Insurance Act and Articles of
Association of the company. As per the Article of Association of the Company the composition of the board of
directors of the company shall be as follows:

Directors elected from the promoter shareholders group  : 3
Directors elected from the public shareholder group 13
Independent Director 1

The appointment of the board of directors from the promoted shareholder group and public shareholder group
shall be done by the Annual General Meeting of the Company. In case of any vacancy before the AGM, the
vacant position shall be fulfilled by the decision of the board meeting of the company till the next AGM date. The
appointment of the independent director is done as per the provision of the Insurance Act. As per the Insurance
Act 2079 the appointment of the Independent Director is made by the board of directors, and such appointments
need to be informed to the subsequent Annual General Meeting of the company.

The role and terms of reference of the board of director is as follows:

1) All functions to be performed and all powers to be exercised by the company, other than those to be
performed by the general meeting of shareholders, shall be performed and exercised by the Board, subject
to this Act, laws in force and the memorandum of association and articles of association.

2) It shall be the duty of directors to operate the company in the interest of insured or general public shareholders
by managing and mitigating overall risks, maintaining proper corporate governance, and guaranteeing that
there will be no obstruction in the company’s day-to-day operation.

3) The other functions, duties and powers of the board of directors shall be:

(a) For systematic performance of the operation of the company in a well-managed manner, to prepare
and implement necessary rules, regulations, work plans, directives, etc. under the insurance act,
relevant laws or Nepal Insurance Authority directives,

(b) To prevent risks or risky situations in the operation of the company and to prepare guidelines for risk
management, claim payment, management of assets and liabilities, internal control system budget and
other necessary matters as per policies and strategies of the insurance company,

(c) To prepare policies for all activities to be performed by the company and to supervise the daily operations
to manage the company efficiently,

(d) To maintain the capital, capital fund or other moveable and immovable assets as prescribed by the
Nepal Insurance Authority,

(e) To regularly monitor the policies adopted by the company, analyse them and provide necessary
directions to the management of the company,

(f)  To present the audited financial report to the general meeting and

(g) To perform other functions as directed by the Nepal Insurance Authority from time to time.

(h) Establishing policies and procedures to ensure the company's activities align with its mission and goals.
(i) Development and approval of long-term strategies and business plans.

()) Acting in the best interest of shareholders and the company, ensuring prudent use of resources and
adherence to legal standards.

(k) Identifying and mitigating potential risks that could affect the company's operations and financial health.
() Reviewing and approving budgets, financial statements, and ensuring the integrity of financial controls.

(m) Ensuring the company adheres to all regulatory requirements and ethical standards.
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Anti-Money Laundering Committee Composition and Role

The Anti Money Laundering Committee of the company is formed in accordance with the Insurance Act and
directives of the Nepal Insurance Authority. The composition of the anti-money Laundering Committee is as

follows:

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Luitel, Director : Coordinator
Mr. Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya, Director : Member
Mr. Dip Prakash Panday, CEO : Member

The role and terms of reference of the Anti-Money Laundering Committee is as follows:

a)

b)

c)
d)

e)

f)
g)

h)
i)

)

To develop and recommend to the board for the approval of policies and procedures that comply with the
prevailing regulations.

Reviewing and updating the company's AML/CFT policies and procedures periodically to ensure they remain
effective and compliant.

To maintain reporting framework and ensuring timely submission of reports.

To oversee the implementation of monitoring systems and ensure that any unusual or suspicious activities
are reported to the appropriate authorities.

Ensuring that all employees receive adequate training and resources to understand and implement AML/CFT
measures.

To conduct regular risk assessments to identify potential vulnerabilities within the organization.

To arrange regular training programs to ensure that staff members are knowledgeable about current
regulations, red flags, and reporting procedures.

To ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

To review the audit reports relating to the effectiveness of AML and CFT measures and ensure that any
deficiencies are identified and addressed promptly.

To review the compliance report and other periodic report prepared by the implementation officer and
compliance officer relating the AML/CFT.
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Composition of Audit Committee and Role

Composition
The Audit Committee of the company has been formed as per the provision of the Insurance Act, 2079 and good
governance directives of the NIA. The composition of the Audit Committee is as follows:

Mr. Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya, Director (Public Group) : Coordinator

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Luitel, Director (Promoter Group) : Member

Mr. Puskar Mahat, Independent Director : Member

Mr. Prakash Prajapati : Member Secretary

The role and terms of reference of the Audit Committee is as follows:

a. To review the financial statements of the company and ensure the basis, authenticity and reliability of
information extracted from such financial statements,

b. To ascertain whether the accounts, budget and internal control mechanism of the company are appropriate
or not,

c. To ensure whether the purchase/procurement policy of the company is appropriate, efficient and economical
and to supervise and regulate such purchase/procurement policy,

d. To ensure whether the accounts, documents and records of internal audit systems and electronic records
are maintained appropriately,

e. To ensure whether the activities related to calculation of insurance risks, claims, investments, and reinsurance
had been done properly or not and to ensure whether the documents related to such activities had been
adequately maintained or not,

f.  To ensure whether the accounts, audit balance sheet or financial statements of the company or such documents
are prepared according to the prevailing law, regulation and directives of the Nepal Insurance Authority,

g. To Recommend to the board and the Annual General Meeting, appointment or reappointment including terms
of appointment and remuneration of the auditor,

h. Furnishing opinion on the subjects as required by the Board of Directors,
i. Ensure whether the company had complied with the directives issued by the Nepal Insurance Authority.

j. oversight of the work of the internal and statutory auditors and to review and monitor the performance, and
effectiveness of audit process.

k. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.

Review of management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors.
. Review the adequacy and coverage of internal audit function and internal control systems
Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on.

Review of Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses and compliance

T o 5 3

To review and recommend appropriate policy, standard operating procedures to the Board
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HR Committee Composition and Role

The HR committee of the company is formed in accordance with the Insurance Act and directives of the Nepal
Insurance Authority. The composition of the HR committee is as follows:

Mr. Gaurav Agrawal, Chairman : Coordinator
Dr. Shrujana Shrestha, Director : Member
Mr. Dip Prakash Panday, CEO : Member

Ms. Shikha Mainali, HOD HR Department : Member

The role and terms of reference of the HR Committee is as follows:

a) To establish and maintain an effective performance management system, set performance standards, conduct
evaluations, provide feedback, and implement development plans

b) To review and recommend to the board the organization's compensation and benefits policies and ensure
that the remuneration packages are competitive, equitable, and aligned with the organization's financial
capacity and strategic objectives.

c) To develop, review and recommend HR policies and operating procedures.
d) To develop and review succession planning within the organization.
e) To promote HR practices that promote a fair, inclusive, and productive work environment.

f) To foster positive employee relations and address workplace issues and promote a good organization culture
of respect and collaboration

g) To Oversee conflict resolution and grievance procedures

h) To Identify training needs and support training program development and promote continuous learning and
professional growth

i) Workforce planning, talent management, succession planning, and ensuring that the organization is prepared
to meet future challenges and opportunities.

j) To ensure that the organization complies with all relevant labor laws, regulations, and industry standards.

k) To oversee the implementation of HR policies and practices, ensuring they are ethical and consistent with
the organization's values.
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nsurance |,
+

ﬂﬁﬁt’sh#ﬂ"te



Investment and Risk Management Committee Composition and Role

The Investment and Risk Management committee of the company is formed in accordance with the Insurance
Act and directives of the Nepal Insurance Authority. The composition of the Investment and Risk Management
Committee is as follows:

Mr. Saurav JB Rana, Director : Coordinator
Mr. Puskar Mahat, Director : Member
Mr. Dip Prakash Panday, CEO : Member

The role and terms of reference of Investment and Risk Management is as follows:

a. To develop, review and recommend to the board for approval of the Investment and Asset Liability Management
Policy and other related policies and procedures.

b. Overseeing the implementation of the investment policy approved by the Board from time to time.
c. Periodically updating to the Board about investment activities of the Company.

d. Reviewing the investment strategies adopted from time to time and giving suitable directions as needed in
the best interest of the Company.

e. To ensure that the investment activities of the company are as per the directives of the NIA.
f. Advising the Board about investment and risk management decisions

g. To review the Company’s risk - reward performance to align with overall policy objectives.

h. To review the solvency position of the Company on a regular basis.

i. Toreview the Company’s risk management and operational risk related policies/ frameworks

j.  Toreview the risk profile of the company for all categories of risk including insurance risk, market risk, credit
risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, compliance risk, legal risk, reputation risk, etc.

k. To assess the overall Asset Liability Management position, especially through the Liquidity, Credit and Market
risk relevant to General Insurance.

I. To carry out any other function, if any, as may be decided by the Board.

Shikhar
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Claim and Reinsurance Committee Composition and Role

The Claim and Reinsurance committee of the company is formed in accordance with the Insurance Act and
directives of the Nepal Insurance Authority. The composition of the claim and Reinsurance Committee is as

follows:

Mr. Skanda Amatya, Director : Coordinator
Dr. Shrujana Shrestha, Director : Member
Mr. Dip Prakash Panday, CEO : Member

Mr. Bimal Raj Nepal, Deputy CEO : Member

The role and terms of reference of the claim and reinsurance committee is as follows:
a) To develop a claim manual and SOP and recommend to the board for its approval.

b) To delegate necessary authorization or recommend to the board for providing necessary claim sanction
authority.

c) To review and approve the claims other than the limits authorized to the management.
d) Reviewing the regular claim related reports
e) To review the audit reports relating to the functioning of claim processing and claim management.

f) To provide necessary recommendations to the board for making any decisions regarding claim management
of the company.

g) Develop and implement reinsurance strategies that align with the company's overall business goals.
h) Monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of existing reinsurance programs and make necessary adjustments.

i) To review the actuarial reports regarding the risk profiles and reinsurance programs of the company and
provide necessary suggestions to the board.

j) To ensure compliance with regulatory requirements and industry standards in all reinsurance activities.
k) To analyze market trends and developments to identify opportunities for improving reinsurance arrangements.

ORSA Committee Composition and Role

The Own Risk and Solvency (ORSA) Committee has been formed in accordance with the directive and ORSA
toolkit issued by the NIA to lead the action that needs to be performed for the implementation of ORSA.

The Composition of Own Risk and Solvency Assessment Committee is as follows:

Mr. Skanda Amatya, Director : Coordinator
Mr. Saurav JB Rana, Director : Member
Dr. Shrujana Shrestha : Member

The role and terms of reference of the ORSA Committee is as follows:

a) To conduct necessary training and orientation program to ensure that all staff have a clear knowledge of their
role in the ORSA Process.

b) To monitor that ORSA process is applied in all levels

c) To review the ORSA gap analysis report and make necessary plan for fulfilling the gaps

d) To develop ORSA policy and recommend to the board for its approval

e) To regularly review the ORSA policy and recommend to the board for necessary updates

f) To regularly update the board on the outcomes of the ORSA process.

g) To develop SOPs relating to ORSA procedures and recommend to the board for its approval
h) To develop risk identification, measurement and management handbook

i) To ensure adequate internal control over the functioning of the ORSA process

j) To monitor and supervise the ORSA process and to review the internal audit reports relating to the ORSA
process.
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Report of the Board Chairman

As the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Shikhar Insurance, it is my privilege to present this report on the
effectiveness of our board. Our commitment to strong governance and strategic oversight has been instrumental
in driving the company's growth and success.

Board Composition

The board of Shikhar Insurance is composed of a diverse group of experienced as well as young and energetic
professionals from diverse fields who bring a wealth of knowledge and expertise to our organization. Our board
members possess a deep understanding of the insurance industry, financial acumen, and extensive leadership
experience. This diverse composition enables us to navigate complex challenges and seize opportunities
effectively.

Governance and Oversight

At Shikhar Insurance, we adhere to the highest standards of corporate governance and oversight. Our board
operates with a clear set of principles and policies that ensure transparency, accountability, and integrity in all
our dealings. We have implemented practices to ensure that we operate with integrity and in the best interests
of our stakeholders. Regular board meetings are held to review and discuss key strategic initiatives, financial
performance, and risk management. Our independent director plays a crucial role in providing unbiased
perspectives and ensuring that the interests of all stakeholders are safeguarded.

During the year a total of 32 board meetings were held. Apart from the regular affairs, the board meetings were
held for the development, revision of policies, standard operating procedures and for review and respond of
inspection and supervision reports from the Nepal Insurance Authority (NIA). During the year, 7 inspection and
supervision reports on corporate, province, and branch offices were issued to the board by the NIA.

Further the board also discussed and strategized on the compliance of new regulations such as RBC, NFRS
17, ORSA, Climate Risk Management Directives and number of other circulars and directives of Nepal Insurance
Authority. Moreover, the board also made strategic decisions for the management of emerging risks like cyber
risk and other climate change risks. A separate board level committee has been formed for the timely implementation
of the ORSA regulation.

Following different board committees serve specific purposes to support the board's overall governance and
strategic objectives.

a. Audit Committee

b. Investment and Risk Management Committee

c. AML Committee

d. Human Resource Management Committee

e. Claim and Reinsurance Committee

These committees are integral to our governance structure, enhancing the board's effectiveness in overseeing
various facets of the company's operations. The major activities and achievements of each committee have been
described separately in the report of each committee.

Evaluation of the Effectiveness of the Board

The effectiveness of our board is reflected in the strategic decisions that have propelled Shikhar Insurance
forward. Over the past year, we have focused on expanding our market presence, enhancing our product portfolio,
and investing in technology to streamline operations. These initiatives have kept us as continuous leader in the
general insurance industry, delivering exceptional value to our clients and shareholders.

The board conducts regular self-evaluations to assess its performance and identify areas for improvement.
Feedback from these evaluations is used to enhance board dynamics, improve decision-making processes, and
ensure that we remain aligned with our strategic objectives. | would like to highlight the effectiveness of the board
through the following key points:

a. Financial Performance
Shikhar Insurance has delivered strong financial results, reflecting our resilience and adaptability in a
challenging market environment. Despite mergers of other insurance companies, Shikhar insurance has
been able to hold the highest market share in the Nepalese General Insurance Industry. Despite the market
constraints, both the number of policies and gross premiums have seen a steady increase, whereas amount
of claim paid and outstanding number of claims has been reduced driven by prudent underwriting practices
and improvement in the claim management process. The board feel immense proud to share the information
that Shikhar Insurance is the only company to conduct credit rating voluntarily and we are the only ICRA-
NP IR A+ rated company in Nepal.
Shl kKhar
nsurance s
.,L‘

ﬂPP‘IIMFﬂH&E




b. Governance and Risk management
Corporate governance and risk management are critical pillars that underpin the success and sustainability
of Shikhar Insurance. The board's commitment to these areas is evident through the development and
implementation of robust policies and procedures that guide the company's operations and decision-making
processes. By establishing clear governance frameworks and risk management strategies, the board ensures
that Shikhar Insurance operates with integrity, transparency, and accountability.

To strengthen the governance and risk management as well as smoothen the operations of the company,
several policies and standard operating procedures have been developed. In 2023/24, 8 Policies/Bylaws
have been developed including revision of HR bylaws, Administrative and Finance Bylaws, Investment Policy
and 13 Standard Operating Procedures for different departments and functions have been developed. The
board's dedication to governance and risk management is further demonstrated by the development and
revision of the policies and bylaws and creation of standard operating procedures for various departments.

In terms of risk management, the board has prioritized the implementation of advanced data analytics and
technology solutions to identify, assess, and mitigate potential risks. Additionally, the board decided to take
actuarial consultation services on a retainer basis to focus on risk management along with compliance of
RBC and ORSA, marking the first in the Nepalese General Insurance industry. As a result, we have been
able to be the first general insurance company to comply the provision of RBC directives and provide valuable
feedback for the improvement of the RBC QRRT templates.

c. Innovation and Technology
Innovation remains at the core of our strategy. The board made decisions to invest in cutting-edge technology
to streamline the operations, enhance data analytics capabilities, and improve risk management. Our
commitment to digital transformation will enable us to stay ahead of industry trends and meet the evolving
demands of our customers.

d. Sustainable Practices
Sustainability is integral to our business model. We are committed to adopting environmentally responsible
practices and promoting social well-being within the communities we serve. Our sustainability initiatives
include the use of electric vehicles for official purposes as well as motivating staff to use electric vehicles,
to reduce carbon footprint, supporting community development projects, and promoting financial inclusion
through innovative insurance products.

e. Customer Centric Initiatives
Our unwavering focus on customer satisfaction has led to the introduction of several innovative products and
services tailored to meet the evolving needs of our clients. We have enhanced our digital platforms to provide
seamless and accessible insurance solutions, ensuring superior customer experience.

f. Talent Development
Recognizing that our people are our greatest asset, we have invested significantly in talent development and
employee well-being. Our comprehensive training programs and leadership development initiatives have
equipped our workforce with the skills and knowledge required to excel in a dynamic industry. We have also
fostered a culture of inclusivity and collaboration, promoting diversity at all levels of the organization.

g. Dignified Workplace
Our organization has approximately 40% female staff, with around 50% representation in senior management
positions. We have been actively involved in promoting a dignified workplace in coordination with USAID.
We have focused on creating menstruation-friendly workplaces. To support menstrual hygiene for female
staff, one day of monthly menstrual leave is provided, and a rest(sick) room with necessary amenities is
made available within the office premises. Policies and practices have been developed to encourage
inclusiveness, respect, and collaboration by focusing on the well-being and development of all employees.

Looking ahead, the board of Shikhar Insurance remains focused on driving sustainable growth and creating
long-term value for our stakeholders. We will continue to leverage our collective expertise to navigate the
evolving landscape of the insurance industry and capitalize on emerging opportunities. Our strategic priorities
include further expansion into high-potential markets, continuous innovation in product offerings, and investment
in technology to enhance operational efficiency.

In conclusion, | would like to extend my gratitude to the board members for their unwavering dedication and
commitment to Shikhar Insurance. Our collective efforts have been instrumental in shaping our strategic
direction and achieving our objectives. | am confident that, with the continued cooperation, Shikhar Insurance
will continue to thrive and reach new heights of success.

Thank you.

Gaurav Agrawal
Chairman of the Board
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Management Report from the CEO

As the CEO of Shikhar Insurance, | am pleased to present this management report that outlines our financial
performance, significant achievements, and our commitment to corporate governance and growth of the company.

Economic outlook and financial performance of the company

We have successfully navigated a dynamic and challenging landscape, demonstrating resilience and adaptability
during the period of economic slowdown post covid 19 pandemic and other financial and economic problems
within the country, global geopolitical tensions along with the changing regulatory landscapes and mergers of
other different companies.

The fiscal year 2023/24 has been a transformative period for Nepal, characterized by significant economic
developments and challenges. Nepal's economy showed signs of resilience and recovery in FY 2023/24, following
the economic disruptions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic driven by key sectors such as agriculture,
remittances, and tourism. Despite the positive trends, Nepal's economy faced several challenges and risks in
FY 2023/24. The ongoing geopolitical tensions, particularly the Russia-Ukraine conflict, posed risks to global
trade and commodity prices. Political stability continued to be a critical factor influencing Nepal's economic
outlook affecting government planning and expenditure on the infrastructure. Challenges in the cooperative and
banking sectors, capital market fluctuations, and a slow real estate market impacted the demand for capital
goods, motor vehicles, and property construction, affecting the growth of the Nepalese general insurance industry
in 23/24. In the fiscal year 2023/24, the general insurance industry in Nepal experienced a modest growth rate
of approximately 2.5%. In recent years, many insurance companies have merged. Shikhar Insurance has been
able to maintain the highest market share despite these mergers. With a market share of 13% and more, the
gross premium collection increased to Rs.541 crore in FY 23/24 from Rs.531 crore in the previous year. The
number of policies also increased to 325,000 from 298,000 in the previous year.
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Our profitability also saw a substantial improvement, with net profit income rising by almost 100% in FY 23/24
and net profit before tax by 30%. This growth was facilitated by optimization of claims processes, and better
underwriting performance. The combined ratio has decreased to 68% from last year’s 78% highlighting our ability
to effectively control and manage operational aspects of our business delivering high-quality services.

Maintaining strong financial health for the protection of policyholder’s interest along with protection of capital
contribution of the shareholder has always been top priority of Shikhar Insurance. Hence, Shikhar insurance
has always been focusing on the prudent underwriting practices with ethical practices and compliance, and
reinsurance arrangement based on the risk profile of the business of the company. Shikhar Insurance, with strong
solvency ratio, adequate economically available capital, top catastrophic reinsurance program, and an A+ credit
rating from ICRA Nepal, stands as Nepal's strongest insurance company.

During the year the investment size of the company grew by 11% to Rs.472 crore from Rs.425 crore in the
previous year. Our investment strategy focused on a diversified portfolio that balances risk and return, ensuring
long-term stability and growth.

Risk Management and Governance

At Shikhar Insurance, our commitment to effective risk management and robust governance is unwavering. As
we navigate an increasingly complex and dynamic landscape, we understand that the foundation of our success
lies in the strength and integrity of our risk management practices and governance structures. For the same,
we have expanded and strengthened all our departments relating to risk management, actuarial, legal, compliance
and the AML/CFT department. Regular training and orientation programs are conducted to reinforce the importance
of integrity, transparency, and compliance and we have been effectively embracing the technical development
in our risk management framework.

Stakeholder’s Engagement

We believe in maintaining open and transparent communication with our stakeholders. Regular engagement
with shareholders ensures that their interests are considered in our decision-making processes. We have
endeavored to implement the suggestions received from our shareholders during the annual general meetings
and other forums, which have contributed to the growth of the company. We request all shareholders to provide
innovative ideas and suggestions during the current annual general meeting as well.

Future Outlook and strategic initiatives

The insurance industry is undergoing significant changes driven by technological advancements, changing
customer expectations, and regulatory shifts. At Shikhar Insurance, we view these changes as opportunities to
enhance our services, expand our reach, and deliver even greater value to our stakeholders. As we look ahead
to the future, Shikhar Insurance is poised to embark on a transformative journey that will solidify our position
as a leading player in the insurance industry. Our commitment to innovation, customer-centricity, and sustainable
growth will guide us as we navigate an evolving landscape. In the coming years, we anticipate a continued rise
in digital adoption across all facets of our operations. This will enable us to offer more personalized and convenient
services to our customers, streamline our processes, and improve overall efficiency. Our investment in cutting-
edge technologies will be crucial in achieving these goals.

We are actively exploring new insurance products and services that address emerging risks and changing
customer needs. Our dedicated research and development team continuously work on developing innovative
products. By staying ahead of industry trends, we aim to provide our customers with comprehensive and relevant
coverage.

Commitment from the CEO

As we look ahead, we remain focused on sustaining our growth trajectory, enhancing customer value, and
contributing positively to society. | am confident that with our dedicated team and strategic vision, we will continue
to achieve new heights of success.

As the CEO, | affirm our unwavering dedication to achieving sustainable growth and delivering consistent returns.
Our strategic initiatives are designed to foster innovation, optimize operational efficiency, and capitalize on
emerging opportunities within the industry. By prioritizing prudent risk management and adhering to the highest
standards of corporate governance, we ensure the long-term stability and prosperity of Shikhar Insurance.
Together, we are committed to building a resilient and profitable future for all our valued shareholders
Thank you.

Dip Prakash Panday
Chief Executive Officer
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Report of Investment, Risk and Solvency Committee

1. Committee Structure
The Investment, Risk and Solvency Committee of the company is formed as per the provision of the directive
of the Nepal Insurance Authority. The structure of the committee is as follows:

a.
b.

C.

Coordinator: Mr. Saurav JB Rana, Director
Member: Mr. Puskar Mahat, Independent Director
Member: Mr. Dip Prakash Panday, Chief Executive Officer’

2. Total Meetings conducted:
During FY 2080/81 a total of 12 meetings of the Investment, Risk and Solvency committee were conducted.

3. Major Activities of the Committee and Achievements
The major activities and achievements of the committee during FY 2023/24 are as follows:

a.
b.

Evaluation and review of the investments made by the company

Review of the investment proposals and provide recommendations to the board of directors for investment
approvals and Regular review of the investment and investment activities of the company.

Review of the investment-related risk and risk management strategy and providing oversight and governance
of the investment process of the company.

. Review and approval of climate risk related disclosure and climate related target as per the Climate Risk

Directive of NIA

Review of the claim ratio of different portfolios of the company and advise the department concerned and
officials to implement necessary controls for reducing claim ratio

Review of the standard operating procedures for risk management. During the year a dashboard relating
to comprehensive risk register was developed with a risk trigger mechanism.

Review of progress relating to provisions of the Risk Based Capital Directive and RBC progress report.
The company has been able to be the first company to comply the provisions of RBC directives and
prepare and submit the RBC-QQRT to the NIA.

Review of the GAP analysis as per ORSA directive.
Review of risk-based supervision reports

Provide recommendation to the board for the appointment of additional manpower for the risk management
department. During FY 2023/24 the risk department of the company has been strengthened with recruitment
of experienced and qualified manpower and actuarial analysts.

Provide recommendations to the board for the appointment of actuary. Actuary Raunak Jha was appointed
as appointed actuary and consulting actuary on retainership basis with scope relating to liability adequacy
test, RBC, ORSA and NFRS 17 implementation plans.

During the year RBC and ORSA related training were provided to the board of directors and senior
management of the company.

. During the year required policies and SOPs were developed relating to investment and risk management

and climate change management.
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Report of Human Resource Committee

1. Committee Structure
The Human Resource Committee of the of the company is formed as per the provision of the directive of
the Nepal Insurance Authority. The structure of the committee is as follows:
a. Coordinator: Mr. Gaurav Agrawal, Chairman
b. Member: Dr. Shrujana Shrestha, Director
c. Member: Mr. Dip Prakash Panday, Chief Executive Officer
d. Member: Ms. Shikha Mainali, HOD HR Department

2. Total Meetings conducted:
During FY 2080/81 a total of 9 meetings of the Human Resource Committee were conducted.

3. Major Activities of the Committee and Achievements

a. Ensuring that the company adheres to all labor regulations and employment laws, including workplace
safety, non-discrimination policies, and fair labor practices.

b. Review and approval of the revised Human Resource Management Policy of the company. During the
year the Human Resource Management Policy of the company was revised and got approval from the
NIA. The new Human Resource Management Policy of the company introduced provision of menstruation
leave to the female staff and endowment life insurance of sum insured of Rs.5 lakhs and maturity period
of 15 years.

c. The HR Committee fostered a positive work environment by addressing employee concerns, facilitating
communication between staff and management, and organizing engagement activities which strengthened
employee morale and reduced turnover rates, creating a cohesive and motivated workforce. The HR
Committee established performance evaluation systems, set performance standards, and provides
feedback to employees.

d. The HR Committee actively participates in the recruitment and selection process to attract top talent.

e. Annual plan and budget for the employee training and development program to enhance employee’s skill
and career development, which improved employee performance and retention rates with many employees
advancing to higher positions within the company.

f. The HR committee continuously advocated a dignified workplace for all employees which further improved
the motivation level of the employees of the company.

g. New Human Resource Information system (HRIS) was implemented in FY 2080/81.
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Report of Anti Money Laundering Committee Report

1. Committee Structure
The Anti Money Laundering Committee of the company is formed as per the provision of the directive of the
Nepal Insurance Authority. The structure of the committee is as follows:
a. Coordinator: Mr. Ramesh Kumar Luitel, Director
b. Member: Mr. Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya, Public Director

c. Member: Mr. Dip Prakash Panday, Chief Executive Officer

2. Total Meetings conducted:
During FY 2080/81 a total of 6 meetings of the Anti-Money Laundering Committee were conducted.

3. Major Activities of the Committee and Achievements
The major activities and achievements of the committee during FY 2080/81 are as follows:

a) Review of the new KYC & Anti-money Laundering/Combating the Financing of Terrorism Policy, 2024 and
recommendation of the same to the Board for approval. During the year the KYC and AML/CFT policy
of the company was revised.

b) Review of the Standard Operating procedures related to AML/CFT and recommendation of the same to
the Board for approval. During the year SOP relating to AML/CFT was developed.

c) Review and discussion on the AML/CFT compliance status as per the directives and circulars issued by
Nepal Insurance Authority and challenges faced. Decision to conduct on-going AML/CFT training and
programs to staff for strengthening of the compliance. Training and orientation to all staff, senior management
team and board of directors were provided in 2080/81.

d) During the year membership of Nepal Banker’s Association for Politically Exposed Person database was
taken to facilitate the identification of politically exposed person.

e) Discussion on circular of Nepal Insurance Authority and implementation of the provisions of the circular.
f) Review of quarterly report on AML/CFT activities of the company and presented the same to the Board.

g) Review of the AML/CFT risk report of the company. Regular discussions on strengthening the AML/CFT
system of the company.

h) Separate software was procured to automate AML/CFT compliance processes such as transaction
monitoring and reporting activity. The software was used for Generation of threshold transactions reports,
data validation for threshold transactions reporting, Customer Screening

i) Internal control and processes were strengthened through formulation of policy, procedures and guidelines;
development of KYC forms (including enhanced due diligence form and institutional service provider form)
and enhancement of AML/CFT system of the company.
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1.

Report of Claim and Re-insurance Committee

Committee Structure
The Claim and Rl Committee of the company is formed as per the provision of the directive of the Nepal
Insurance Authority. The structure of the committee is as follows:

a.

b
c.
d

Coordinator: Mr. Skand Amatya, Director

. Member: Dr. Shurajana, Director

Member: Mr. Dip Prakash Panday, Chief Executive Officer

. Bimal Raj Nepal, Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Total Meetings conducted:
During FY 2080/81 a total of 15 meetings of the Claim committee were conducted.

Major Activities of the Committee and Achievements
The major activities and achievements of the committee during FY 2080/81 are as follows:

a.

Approval of claims above the limit of management and CEO. Total 37 claims files were approved during
F/Y 2080/081, 9 motor insurance claims, 17 property insurance claims, 9 claims under Engineering
insurance and 2 claims under marine insurance.

The committee plans for action for prompt settlement of claims. The Claim committee provided necessary
guidance and instruction to claims teams and ensured adequate training on policies, customer service
and the technical aspect of claim management

Review of reinsurance arrangements of registered claims and monitor of the claim settlement ratios,
turnaround time and outstanding claims.

. Assess the financial impact of claims on the company’s reserves and suggest strategies for effective risk

management.
Ensured claims handling process comply with laws, regulation and company policy.
Review of audit findings of the claim department and provide necessary direction regarding audit findings.

Review of Re-insurance programs of the company.

h. Review of the risk profile, risk capacity, risk appetite, risk tolerance level of the company and review of

the reinsurance program

Review of the reinsurance optimization report from the consulting actuary of the company and approval
of the reinsurance policy of the company for FY 2023/24

Review of the catastrophic reinsurance plan of the company.
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Report of Audit Committee

1. Structure of the Committee
The company has formed an Audit Committee in compliant with the provisions pursuant to Insurance Act
2079 to oversee financial reporting, risk management, Internal control effectiveness and compliance processes.

The committee consists of 3 members, namely Mr. Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya, Co-Ordinator, Mr. Ramesh
Kumar Luitel, Member and Mr. Puskar Mahat, Member (Independent director).

2. Total Meetings conducted:
During FY 2080/81 a total of 21 meetings of the committee were conducted.

3. Major Activities of the Committee and Achievements
During the fiscal year 2080/81, the major work performance of the committee includes the following:

a. The Audit Committee diligently reviewed financial statements, ensuring transparency, accuracy, compliance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and timely publication of financial statements.

b. The committee approved the Annual Audit Plan of FY 2023/24 and regularly monitored whether internal
audit assignment has been conducted as per approved audit plan.

c. The audit committee actively participated in the development of the annual plans, programs and budget
of the company.

d. The committee reviewed annual budget variances and evaluated the company’s annual plans and programs
approved by the Board of the company.

e. The committee reviewed quarterly Internal Audit Reports, supervision reports from regulatory authority,
Information System Audit Reports, preliminary audit report and provided necessary guidance and instruction
to the concerned department for the improvements as suggested in the reports.

f. The committee recommended names of auditors to be in complaint to the provisions of the Company Act
2063 and Insurance Act 2079.

g. The committee reviewed different standard operating procedures, “Finance, Administration and Procurement
Bylaws” of the company and recommended to the Board of the company for necessary approval.
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Evaluation of the Board Performance

The board of Shikhar Insurance has demonstrated commendable performance in steering the company towards
substantial financial growth. By prioritizing investments in cutting-edge technology and innovation, the board
has positioned the company to streamline operations and enhance data analytics capabilities. These strategic
moves have not only improved operational efficiency but also opened new avenues for revenue generation. The
board’s focus on digital transformation has enabled the company to stay ahead of industry trends and cater to
the evolving demands of customers, thereby driving financial growth and profitability.

Effective risk management is a critical aspect of Shikhar Insurance’s strategic framework. The board has
implemented robust measures to identify, assess, and mitigate risks. By leveraging advanced data analytics,
we have enhanced the company’s ability to foresee and manage potential risks. This proactive approach has
significantly strengthened the company’s risk management framework, ensuring resilience in the face of
uncertainties. For the same objectives experienced and skilled human resources are recruited for the risk
management department, research and development department, actuarial department, finance department and
information and technology department and reinsurance management department. The board has arranged for
proper reinsurance management, including catastrophic reinsurance based on the risk profile and actuarial
analysis of historical data, risk capacity, risk appetite statement and risk tolerance level of the company. The
catastrophic reinsurance plan adopted by the company has provided adequate safeguard to the company during
catastrophic events. Henceforth there is nominal impact to the company’s PL from the recent flood losses.

The board’s focus on talent development and inclusivity fosters a collaborative and diverse workplace, which
is essential for sustainable success. The measures adopted by the company to promote a dignified workplace
and inclusive environment have further motivated the employees, increasing both efficiency and effectiveness.
Moreover, essential policies and standard operating procedures have been developed along with the revision
of previous policies. Strategic decisions on technical adaptation, risk management strategies, and business
expansion strategy have resulted in financial growth and profitability. Underwriting and claim management
strategies have reduced the loss and combined ratios, thereby increasing the company's profitability.

Corporate governance is a cornerstone of Shikhar Insurance’s operational ethos. The board has established a
culture of transparency, accountability, and ethical conduct throughout the organization. The emphasis on
sustainable practices and social responsibility underscores the board’s commitment to corporate governance.
Initiatives such as the use of electric vehicles to reduce carbon footprint and support for community development
projects exemplify their holistic approach to governance.

In summary, the board of Shikhar Insurance has excelled in driving financial growth, enhancing risk management,
and upholding exemplary corporate governance standards. The strategic vision and unwavering commitment
have been instrumental in shaping the company’s success and ensuring its continued prosperity.

Method of Evaluation
Evaluating the board’s performance involves several key performance indicators (KPls) that reflect its efficacy
and impact on business operations. These KPlIs include:

e Strategic Alignment: Assessing how well the board's decisions align with Shikhar Insurance's long-term goals
and market strategies.

e Financial Oversight: Reviewing the board’s ability to oversee financial health, including budget adherence
and profitability enhancement, business growth and financial stability.

¢ Risk Management: Evaluating the efficiency of risk identification, assessment, and mitigation strategies
implemented by the board.

e Compliance and Governance: Ensuring adherence to legal standards, regulatory requirements, and ethical
practices.

e Stakeholder Engagement: Gauging the board's interaction with shareholders, customers, and employees to
foster trust and satisfaction.

¢ Innovation and Adaptability: Determining the board’s support for innovation and responsiveness to industry

changes.
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Major Policies and Practices

S.N. Particular Purpose

1 HR Policy The purpose of Human Resource Management policy is to
establish a framework for managing and developing an
organization's workforce to achieve its strategic goals and
ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

2 Claim Manual A claim manual provides structured guidelines and procedures
for processing, evaluating, and resolving insurance claims
efficiently and consistently in compliance with the regulatory
provision.

3 Reinsurance Manual The purpose of a reinsurance manual is to provide guidelines
and procedures for managing and mitigating risks through
reinsurance agreements.

4 Risk Management Policy The purpose of a risk management policy is to provide structured
guidelines and processes to identify, assess, and control
potential risks that could negatively impact an organization's
assets, operations, and objectives.

5 Underwriting Policy The purpose of the underwriting policy is to provide guidelines
and structured process to assess and evaluate the risk of
insuring a person or asset, ensuring that premiums are
appropriately priced to cover potential losses while maintaining
profitability for the insurer.

6 Administration and Financial Bylaws The purpose of administrative financial bylaws is to establish
a structured framework for managing financial and administrative
functions and ensuring fiscal and administrative responsibility
within an organization.

7 Climate Risk Management Policy The purpose of a climate risk management policy is to identify,
assess, and mitigate the risks posed by climate change to
ensure sustainability, resilience, and the protection of economic,
environmental, and social systems.

8 Agriculture Insurance Manual The purpose of an agriculture insurance manual is to provide
guidelines and procedures for insurance policies and claims
associated with agriculture and cattle insurance activities

9 CSR Bylaws The purpose of CSR bylaws is to establish guidelines and
principles for a company's social responsibility initiatives,
ensuring ethical practices and positive impacts on society and
the environment.

10 | Investment and Asset Liability The purpose of an investment, asset, and liability management
Management Policy policy is to optimize the allocation of resources, maximize
returns, and ensure the alignment of assets and liabilities to
manage risks and achieve financial stability and properly
manage market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

11 | Health and Safety Policy The purpose of a health and safety policy is to ensure a safe
and healthy working environment by establishing procedures
and standards that prevent accidents, injuries, and illnesses
in the workplace.
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S.N.

Particular

Purpose

12

AML Policy

The purpose of an Anti-Money Laundering/Counter Financing
of Terrorism (AML/CFT) policy is to prevent, detect, and report
financial activities that are related to money laundering and
terrorism financing and comply related regulatory provisions.

13

Succession Planning

The purpose of succession planning is to ensure the continuous
and effective operation of an organization by identifying and
developing potential leaders, department head or functional
heads to fill key positions in the future.

14

IT policies

The purpose of an IT policy is to establish guidelines and
procedures to ensure the secure, efficient, and responsible
use of information technology resources within an organization
and ensure integrity, availability and confidentiality of confidential
information of the company.

15

TOR of Boards and Board Committees

The purpose of the Terms of Reference (TOR) for the Board
of Directors and its committees is to define their roles,
responsibilities, and procedures to ensure effective governance
and decision-making within the organization.

16

Audit Manual

The purpose of an Audit Manual is to provide a comprehensive
guide and standardized procedures for conducting audits,
ensuring accuracy, consistency, and adherence to regulatory
and organizational requirements.

17

Marketing Manual

The purpose of a marketing manual is to provide comprehensive
guidelines and strategies for effectively promoting a product
or service to the target audience.

18

Standard Operating Procedures

The purpose of standard operating procedures is to ensure
consistent and efficient operations by providing clear,
documented instructions for performing routine tasks and
processes. Standard Operating procedures are prepared for
different functions of the organization.
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Description of the Business Model of the company

The business model provides a comprehensive overview of the key elements of the company’s business.
1 Key Stakeholders

a. Regulatory Institutions
Nepal Insurance Authority (NIA) is the primary regulatory body for insurance companies in Nepal. NIA
is responsible for overseeing and regulating the insurance industry, ensuring compliance with laws and
guidelines, and protecting the interests of policyholders. Apart from NIA, insurance companies must
abide with the regulations of the Company Registrar Office, Nepal Rastra Bank, Securities Board of
Nepal, Nepal Stock Exchange, Department of Labor.

b. Shareholders
Shareholders play a major role in the governance of insurance companies. The Board of Directors is
elected by the shareholders through the AGM and approves the affairs of the company required as per
the prevailing regulation. These shareholders can include a mix of institutional investors or individual
investors. As per the prevailing regulations, at least 30% of the shares of the company should be floated
to the public. The current shareholding ratio of Shikhar Insurance between Promoter Shareholders and
Public Shareholders is 51:49.

c. Insured
The insured are individuals or entities that purchase insurance policies to protect themselves against
potential financial losses or liabilities on occurrence of the insured events.

d. Re-insurer
Re-insurers provide insurance to insurance companies. They help to mitigate the risk associated with
large claims by spreading the risk across multiple entities. Re-insurers are crucial in maintaining the
stability and health of the insurance market, and partnerships with prominent re-insurers often indicate
the financial strength and credibility of an insurance company. Re-insurance brokers act as intermediaries
between insurance companies and re-insurers. Ri Brokers assist in negotiating terms, conditions, and
pricing of reinsurance agreements.

e. Surveyors
Surveyors are professionals, licensed by the Nepal Insurance Authority who assess the extent of loss
or damage when a claim is made. Surveyors are independent bodies who investigate the circumstances
of the claim, evaluate the damage, and determine the amount of compensation to be paid by the insurer
under the policy terms and conditions. At present Shikhar Insurance has been associated with more
than 400 surveyors for claim management.

f. Insurance Agents
Insurance agents are individuals or entities licensed from the NIA that act as intermediaries between
the insurance company and the insured. They play a pivotal role in the distribution and sale of insurance
products. At present, Shikhar Insurance is associated with more than 125 corporate and individual agents
for the distribution of insurance policies.

2 Insurance Products
The company provides insurance services through 75 different insurance products.

The list of insurance products is as follows:
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Property

Home Insurance

Property Insurance

Private Motor Vehicle Insurance
Motorcycle Insurance

Commercial Motor Vehicle Insurance

Marine Policy Insurance

Marine Cargo Open Policy Insurance

Engineering

Marine Cum Erection Insurance
Construction, Erection All Risk Insurance
Machinery Loss of Profit Insurance
Boiler and Pressure Plant Insurance
Contractors All Risk Insurance

Erection All Risk Insurance

Machinery Breakdown Insurance
Contractors Plant and Machinery Insurance
Electric Equipment Insurance

Aviation Insurance

Miscellaneous

Auto Plus Insurance

Clinical Trial Liability Insurance
Credit Card Insurance
International Card Insurance
Professional Indemnity Insurance
Voyager Travel Insurance
Professional Indemnity

Errors and Omissions Insurance
Project Specific Liability Insurance
Commercial General Liability Insurance
Group Medical Insurance
Personal Accident Insurance

Burglary and House Breaking Insurance
Product Liability Insurance

Public Liability Insurance

Fidelity Guarantee Insurance
Bankers Blanket Insurance

Cash Insurance

Secure Mind Insurance

Depositors Insurance

Trekking Insurance

Travel medical Insurance

Health Insurance

Group Personal Accident Insurance

Agriculture and Cattle

Bird Insurance
Cattle Insurance
Ostrich Insurance
Poultry Insurance
Seed Insurance
Vegetable Insurance
Turmeric Insurance
Cardamon Insurance
Lentil Insurance
Crop Insurance
Dragon Fruit Insurance
Banana Insurance
Walnut Insurance
Grass Insurance
Lemon Insurance
Paddy Insurance

Fish Insurance

Goat Insurance
Pheasant Insurance
Pig Insurance

Tea Insurance
Weather Index Insurance
Bee Insurance
Silage Insurance
Mango Insurance
Kiwi Insurance
Coffee Insurance
Fruit Insurance
Ginger Insurance
Orange Insurance
Mushroom Insurance
Potato Insurance

Micro Insurance

Micro Property Insurance

Micro Personal Accident Insurance
S hi khar
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Based on the pricing and policy features, the insurance products are classified into two types, Tariffed
Insurance Product and Non-Tariffed Insurance Product. For the tariffed insurance products, the premium
and policy terms and conditions shall be as per the provision of the tariff issued by the NIA. At present,
property insurance, motor insurance, marine insurance, agriculture and cattle insurance, accident insurance,
bankers’ indemnity insurance, micro insurance etc. are tariffed insurance products, for which minimum
insurance premium and policy terms and conditions shall be as per the directives of the Nepal Insurance
Authority.

Core Components of the company’s business model.

a. Underwriting
Underwriting is the process by which the company evaluates the risk presented by a potential policyholder.
During the underwriting process various factors such as applicant's history, the value and status of the
insured assets, and statistical data are assessed. Based on this assessment, the underwriter determines
the terms and conditions of the insurance policy, including the premium to be charged. Due consideration
is given to the regulations of the NIA during the underwriting processes.

b. Risk and Re-insurance Management
Risk management and reinsurance management are the core functions of a general insurance company's
operations. Effective risk management involves identifying, assessing, and mitigating risks to minimize

potential losses. Reinsurance is a risk management tool that allows to transfer a portion of the risk
underwritten to other reinsurance companies. Reinsurance agreements also provide an additional source
of income through commissions received from the reinsurers.

Reinsurance management is guided by the risk appetite, risk capacity and risk tolerance level of the
company and regulations of the NIA.

Risk capacity

Risk Capacity is the maximum level of risk an insurer can assume given its current level of resources
considering regulatory capital requirements, economic capital, liquidity needs, the operational environment
(e.g. technical infrastructure, risk management capabilities, expertise) and obligations to policyholders,
shareholders and other stakeholders.

Risk Appetite
Risk appetite is the aggregate level and types of risk an insurer is willing to assume, within its risk
capacity, to achieve its strategic objectives and business plan.

Risk tolerance level
The term "risk tolerance" level is the level of active retention of risk that is appropriate for an insurer
considering its strategy, financial strength, and the nature, scale and complexity of its business and risks.

Shikhar Insurance has been employing actuaries and risk analysts to develop risk models and re-
insurance strategies with proper analysis of risk capacity, risk appetite and risk tolerance level of the
company. Based on the actuarial study, Shikhar insurance is managing the proportional re-insurance
treaty and catastrophic whole account re-insurance treaty.

As per the prevailing regulation of the NIA, the domestic reinsurance companies Nepal Re and Himalayan
Re should be provided at least 15% of the reinsurance treaty program and for other reinsurance
arrangements the domestic reinsurer should be provided first right of refusal for the reinsurance business.
Further, as per the regulation of the NIA, motor insurance, agriculture and cattle insurance must be
reinsured with the Nepalese reinsurance companies.

c. Claims Management
Claims processing is a crucial aspect of an insurance company's business model. When a policyholder
experiences a loss covered by their insurance policy, they file a claim with the insurance company. The
claims department evaluates the claim to determine its validity and the appropriate payout. To strengthen
and smoothen the claim process, Shikhar Insurance has deployed more than 50 human resources in
the corporate office of the company and has provided the required claim management authority to the
province offices and branch offices of the company.
S hi khar
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d. Technology and innovation
The company is undergoing a digital transformation leveraging technology to enhance operations and
customer experience. Online platforms and mobile apps have been developed that enable customers
to purchase policies, file claims, and access information conveniently. Data analytics tools have been
used to gain insights into customer behavior, risk patterns, and market trends that enhance underwriting
decisions, pricing strategies, and marketing efforts. The company is collaborating with many tech
companies to develop new products, improve customer engagement, and streamline processes. These
collaborations foster agility and competitiveness in a rapidly evolving Nepalese Insurance market.

e. Product Development
Product development is a key function that provides scope and opportunities for future growth and
expansion. Shikhar Insurance places significant emphasis on developing a diverse range of insurance
products to meet the varied needs of its clientele. The company continuously innovates to design policies
that cater to both individual and corporate customers. Shikhar Insurance's approach to product development
involves a thorough analysis of market trends, customer feedback, and emerging risks.

4  Customer Segments

a. Individual
Individuals seek coverage for personal risks, such as health, auto, home, and travel insurance cattle
and agriculture insurance.

b. Corporate Houses
Corporate customers require insurance coverage for commercial risks, including property, liability,
business interruption. Property insurance, marine insurance, motor insurance, engineering insurance
aviation insurance, and liability insurance products are targeted to the corporate customers. Corporate
insureds contribute most of the insurance premium of Shikhar Insurance. However, in number of the
policies the contribution of individual insured is more.

5 Distribution Channels

a. Agents
Insurance agents contribute in distribution of retail insurance products. The agents include corporate
agents and individual agents. Separate agency network has been developed for the agriculture and
cattle insurance policies.

b. Company’s sales team
Most of the insurance policies are sold by the sales team with the company with direct contact with the
customers.

c. Mobile and Digital Platform
With the rise of mobile technology, Shikhar Insurance also has started using mobile apps and digital
platforms to distribute their products. These platforms offer features such as policy management, claims
filing, and customer support, providing seamless and convenient experience for users.

d. Corporate Partnership
Shikhar Insurance also has partnership with different entities to offer group insurance policies and
insurance of mortgaged properties. Further, agriculture and cattle insurance policies are also being
distributed in partnership with the cooperative houses.

6 Revenue Streams

Premium Income

Premium income is the primary source of revenue for an insurance company. It is generated from the sale
of insurance policies to individuals and corporate houses. As per the prevailing regulation of the NIA,
premiums need to be collected upfront before issue of an insurance policy. However, long term engineering
policies and aviation insurance policies, installment facility is available for the premium payment by the
insured. For agriculture insurance policy Government of Nepal is providing subsidy in the insurance premium.
The insured is required to pay the premium amount after deducting the government subsidy amount.
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Re-insurance Commission Income

Re-insurance commission income is the revenue that an insurance company earns from its re-insurance
agreements. This commission helps offset the cost of acquiring new policies, claim processing expenses
and manage the re-insurance arrangements.

Investment Income
Investment income is another major source of income of an insurance company. As per the existing regulation
of NIA, an insurance company can diversify its investment portfolio as follows:

S.N. Investment Area Investment Provision
1 | Investment in Government Bond Minimum 20% of total investment. if unable to invest
in the government bond to be invested in the fixed
deposit of commercial bank or infrastructure
development bank.
2 | Fixed Deposit of Commercial Bank or Infrastructure | Minimum 30% of total investment.
Development Bank
3 | Fixed Deposit of Development Bank Up to 10% of total Investment.
Fixed Deposit of Finance Companies Up to 5% of total Investment.
5 | Preference shares or debenture of Bank and Up to 20% of total Investment.
Finance Companies
6 | Bond or debenture issued by listed companies Up to 20% of total Investment.
7 | Share issued by listed companies Up to 10% of total Investment.
8 | Mutual Funds Up to 5% of total Investment.
9 | Real Estate Up to 10% of total Investment.
(Housing Projects approved by the government) Up to 20% of total Investment.
10 | Equity Investment in public company relating to Up to 10% of total Investment.

agriculture, tourism, hydroelectricity, renewal
energy, cable car, road, power transmission line,
health and education sector

11 | Investment Company Up to 5% of total Investment.
12 | Private Equity Fund or Venture Capital Fund Up to 1.5% of total Investment.
Any investment activities other than prescribed in the investment directive needs preapproval of the regulatory
authority.
7 Cost Structure

Apart from the general administrative expenses, sales and marketing management expense, and employee
expenses the following are the major costs of the company:

Claim Expenses

Claims payouts are one of the most significant expenses for general insurance companies. Any claims that
are outstanding to be paid are also accounted for as claim expense. Reserves for claim expenses that are
Incurred but Not Reported (IBNR) or Incurred but Not Enough Reported (IBNER) are added in the claim
expenses based on the actuarial calculations.

Agency Commission Expenses

Agency commission expenses are significant costs incurred by general insurance companies for compensating
agents who sell the insurance products. These expenses are typically paid as a percentage of the premiums
collected by the agents. As per the prevailing regulation of NIA, agency commission of 10% is allowed to
be paid in agriculture and cattle insurance and for the rest of the policies agency commission of 5% is
allowed to be paid.

Insurance Service Fee

Insurance service fee is a regulatory fee that needs to be paid to the Regulatory Authority. As per the
prevailing regulation, 0.75% of the gross insurance premium collected needs to be paid to the NIA as
insurance service fee.
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Resources and Usage

The company relies on a comprehensive set of resources to operate effectively and efficiently. These resources
can be classified into the following categories:

Human Resources and Intellectual Resource

Human resources are the backbone of the company. Skilled professionals, including underwriters, professional
accountants, engineers, actuarial analysts, and customer service representatives, are essential for evaluating
risks, determining premiums, processing claims, and providing quality service to policyholders. The skill and
talent of other human resources for other administrative roles is also equally important for the success of the
company. At present Shikhar insurance has human resource strength of 640 out of which around 40% is female
staff.

Intellectual resources encompass the knowledge, expertise, and proprietary methodologies developed by the
company. This includes actuarial models, risk assessment techniques, and market insights that provide a
competitive advantage in pricing and underwriting policies.

Knowledge and expertise of other experts such as claim surveyors, insurance agents, brokers are also pivotal
for the sustainability of the company.

Human resources and Intellectual resources are used for the following functions of the company:
Sales and marketing of insurance products of the company

Risk assessment and underwriting

Claim processing and management

Risk management and re-insurance management

Customer service

Financial management

Compliance and regulatory management

General administrative management

Strategic management and planning

Financial Resources

Strong financial resources are crucial for an insurance company to underwrite policies and manage claims
efficiently. Apart from the equity contribution from the shareholders of the company, premiums collected from
policyholders, investment income, reinsurance, and reserves are the major financial resources of the company.

Further, the company also has been receiving grants from different development agencies for the development
of innovative insurance products.

The financial resources are primarily allocated towards underwriting policies, which involves evaluating risks
and determining premiums. Adequate financial resources ensure that the company can cover claims when
policyholders experience losses.

Reinsurance arrangements are another critical area where financial resources are employed. By ceding a portion
of risks to reinsurers, the company mitigates potential losses from high-value claims, ensuring long-term solvency.

Additionally, reserves are maintained to meet future obligations and unexpected claims. These reserves are
crucial for maintaining regulatory compliance and ensuring policyholder confidence.

Operational expenses, including administrative costs, marketing, and technology investments, are other significant
areas where financial resources are utilized.

Physical and Technological Resources

Physical resources such as office building, provinces and branch offices, IT infrastructure, and equipment and
modern technology infrastructure have contributed to the efficiency and effectiveness of the company's operations.
Comfortable and well-equipped office spaces along with the latest technical resources and applications have
been used to enhance productivity and customer services.
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The company has employed sophisticated software for the core insurance operation. Besides, the company
has been using mobile application technologies and web technologies for selling insurance products and
providing claim services. The company has initiated number of digital transformation initiatives that have
reduced the operational cost and time of delivery of the services and improved the experience of the insured.

Sustainable Competitive Edge

Shikhar Insurance has managed to set itself apart through a series of strategic initiatives and core
competencies that have bolstered its position in the market.

Innovative Product Development

Innovation is at the heart of Shikhar Insurance's competitive strategy. The company continuously develops
and introduces new insurance products that address emerging risks and evolving market trends. This
proactive approach to product development allows Shikhar Insurance to stay ahead of the curve and meet
the changing needs of its customers. The company has developed the following insurance products in the
Nepalese Insurance market:

a. Cashless health insurance

Secure Mind Insurance

. Weather Index Based Crop Insurance
. Silage Insurance

Voyagers Travel Insurance

Auto plus (Motor Additional Benefit) Insurance
Clinical Trial Liability Insurance

Index Based Flood Insurance

Personal Cyber Insurance

—Q o 0
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Reinsurance Management

Re-insurance strategy is one of the key strategies of Shikhar Insurance providing competitive edge. Shikhar
Insurance has taken the highest catastrophic reinsurance protection against catastrophic risks. The
reinsurance management strategy of the company enabled the company to outperform other insurance
companies during the 2015 earthquake and recent flood of 2024 enhancing the trust of the companies in
the Nepalese General Insurance Industry.

Operational Excellence through technology

Adopting latest technology and automation in operations and use of data analytics tools Shikhar Insurance
has smoothen the processes and improved overall efficiency. Automation of routine tasks has helped in
managing operational costs and allowed employees to focus on more complex and value-adding activities.
Use of data analytics has facilitated strategic decision-making and facilitated risk management.

Market Share

For past 10 years and more, Shikhar Insurance is having the highest market share in Nepal’s General
Insurance Industry. Even after mergers of other general insurance companies, Shikhar Insurance has been
able to hold the highest market share. Shikhar Insurance is the first company to collect premium milestones
of Rs. 1 billion, Rs.2 billion, Rs.3 billion, Rs.4 billion and Rs. 5 billion in Nepal’s general insurance industry.

Credit Rating and Financial Position

Shikhar Insurance is the only company to do credit rating voluntarily. Shikhar Insurance has received ICRA-
NP IR A+ rating from ICRA Nepal and is first and only company to receive A+ rating from ICRA Nepal. A
company with A+ rating is considered to have adequate degree of safety regarding timely servicing of
financial obligations. Shikhar Insurance has consistently demonstrated robust financial health with the
company's prudent risk management practices, diversified investment portfolio, and sound underwriting
principles. This stability not only instills confidence in customers and stakeholders but also allows Shikhar
Insurance to invest in growth initiatives and withstand economic fluctuations. The financial position and the
company's high credit ratings and solvency ratios further underscore its financial resilience and reliability.

Human Resource Development

The strength of Shikhar Insurance's ability to develop skilled human resources in the Nepalese General
Insurance industry is one of the key drivers of its competitive advantage. The company place a strong
emphasis on attracting, developing, and retaining talented professionals who are passionate about delivering
exceptional service. Shikhar Insurance is the first company to employee more than 600 employees in the
Nepalese General Insurance industry. Out of the total employees, more than 90% were having first job
experience at Shikhar Insurance. Through continuous training and development programs, Shikhar Insurance
equips its employees with the skills and knowledge.
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Value Creation

Value Creation for Policyholders

Policyholders are the primary stakeholders of the company. The value provided to them includes risk transfer,
financial security and peace of mind. The insurance products offered by the company protect policyholders
from potential financial losses arising from the insured events. Knowing about the protection against potential
risks provides peace of mind. Policyholders can focus on their personal and professional lives without the
constant worry of unforeseen financial burdens.

Value Creation for the Shareholders

Value creation for shareholders includes profit, dividend and growth opportunities. During the 20 years of
operation of the company, Shikhar Insurance has provided cumulative dividend % of around 300% to its
shareholders which is highest in the industry. In 20 years’, time the net worth of the company has crossed
Rs. 5 billion, out of which Rs. 1.11 billion is capital contribution from the shareholders. Further, by expanding
the company’s product offerings, entering new markets, and leveraging technology, Shikhar Insurance is
creating new growth opportunities that can enhance shareholder value

Value Creation for the Employees

Employees are vital to the success of an insurance company. Value creation for employees includes career
development, competitive compensation and additional benefits and work life balance. The company
provides comprehensive training and development programs, helping employees enhance their skills and
advance their careers. The training includes inhouse regular training and orientation program and international
trainings and seminars. Despite enrollment in the Security Fund, the company is providing additional medical
and personal accident insurance to the employees. Further, the company is providing endowment life
insurance policy of Rs. 5 lakhs of 15 years maturity period.

The company promotes work-life balance through alternate Friday leave facility, compulsory home leave,
additional casual leave and home leave apart from the statutory requirements. Shikhar Insurance ensures
that employees can rest, recharge, and attend to personal matters, resulting in a more motivated and
productive workforce. Shikhar Insurance is also providing monthly menstruation leave facility to the female
staff.

Value Creation to the Community

The company regularly contributes towards the community through the corporate social responsibility (CSR)
initiatives. These initiatives enhance the company’s reputation and positively impact the communities. By
providing financial protection through insurance coverage the company is contributing to the economic
stability of the community. Our insurance service has helped many individuals and corporate houses recover
from losses, support job creation, and promote economic growth.

Value Creation for Regulatory Bodies

We create value for regulatory bodies by ensuring compliance and contributing to the overall stability of
the financial system. Adherent to regulations protect policyholders and maintain market integrity and promote
fair practices. Furthermore, insurance fees are paid to the NIA as per the provision of the Insurance Act.

Value Creation for the economy of the country

Value creation for the country includes Capital Formation and Investment, creation of employment opportunities,
Social Welfare, Economic Resilience and Recovery, Tax Contribution.Premiums collected from the insured
are invested into various financial instruments such as fixed deposits, bonds and debentures, stock and
infrastructure projects. These investments help fuel economic growth by providing capital to businesses
for expansion, innovation, and job creation.

Shikhar Insurance is also the leading insurance company in the creation of employment opportunities in
the general insurance industry. The company has offered a diverse range of career opportunities for the
underwriting, claim management, financial management and other operations of the company. Shikhar
Insurance is the first general insurance company to provide job opportunities for more than 600 people,
out of which more than 90% have first job experience in Shikhar Insurance.
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We are also playing a vital role in social welfare by providing coverage for health, disability, and life risks.
Our insurance products such as health insurance ensure that individuals have access to medical care
without any financial burden, leading to a healthier and more productive workforce.

In times of crisis, such as natural disasters or economic downturns, insurance protection provides economic
resilience and quick recovery. The insurance products provide the financial resources needed to rebuild
and recover, enabling affected individuals and businesses to return to normalcy more quickly.

The company contributes to government revenue through the corporate income tax, value added tax in the
insurance premium, withholding tax in the different payments made by the company. Tax contributions are
essential for funding public services and infrastructure, thereby supporting the broader economy. The
company has been contributing to the government revenue with direct tax and indirect tax of Rs. 1 billion
a year.

Major Source of Capital and their Interconnectedness

The major source of capital includes equity capital, Reinsurance and Reserves.

Equity Capital

Equity capital is the primary capital of the company. Shikhar Insurance has raised the capital through Initial public
offerings, further public offerings and the issue of right shares. Established with initial paid-up capital of Rs. 100
million, the current paid up capital of the company is Rs. 2.65 billion out of which Rs.1.11 billion is cash contribution
from the shareholders and 1.54 billion is profit capitalization.

Reinsurance

Reinsurance serves as a vital source of capital for insurance companies by providing financial stability and risk
management by transferring portions of the risk portfolios to reinsurers, the company gets the required source
for potential large claims by reducing the burden over the equity capital of the company. This allows the company
to free up capital that would otherwise be tied up in reserves to cover potential claims. Consequently, this
additional capital can be used to underwrite more policies, invest in new opportunities, or improve overall financial
health.

Reserve

Reserves are funds set aside from the after-tax profit to cover future claims. They act as a buffer and a source
of capital for the company. Reserves of the company include Insurance Fund, Catastrophic Reserve and Retained
Earnings. As per the current regulation, 50% of the net profit needs to be transferred to the Insurance fund till
it reaches Rs. 2.5 billion and 10% of the remaining profit needs to be transferred to the Catastrophic Reserve.

Interconnectedness of Capital Sources
The capital sources are inherently interdependent, creating a complex financial ecosystem. The interplay between
these sources significantly affects the company's stability and growth prospects.

The paid-up capital is required for the initial funding necessary for the insurance company to commence the
insurance business and maintain solvency margin ensuring the company has enough capital to meet the financial
obligations.

Reinsurance and reserves complement each other in risk management. Adequate reinsurance allows the
company to manage large, unexpected claims and maintain lower reserves, freeing up capital for other uses.
Conversely, strong reserve levels reduce reliance on reinsurance and provide greater financial autonomy. Based
on this the company can decide on the rational dividend plan i.e. whether to provide a cash dividend or stock
dividend.

Regulatory requirements also impact the interdependency of capital sources. Nepal Insurance authority has set
aside minimum capital requirement for the insurance companies. At present, general insurance companies’
minimum capital requirement is Rs. 2.5 billion.

Paid-up capital, reserves, and reinsurance capital collectively contribute to the insurance company's capital
adequacy and solvency as the economic available capital of the company. Adequate paid-up capital ensures
that the company can absorb initial losses and maintain operations. Reserves provide a financial buffer to cover
future liabilities and claims. Reinsurance capital, by transferring risk, further strengthens the company's solvency
position by reducing the potential impact of large losses.
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Paid up capital, reserves and reinsurance are interconnected in the risk management framework of the company.
Paid-up capital acts as the foundational layer of risk absorption. Reserves are built up over time to address
specific risks and liabilities. Reinsurance capital, through risk transfer, complements these efforts by providing
additional risk mitigation. Together, these elements create a robust risk management framework that enhances
the company's financial stability.

All the capital sources contribute together to ensure capital adequacy, risk management, regulatory compliance,
and operational efficiency.

Plan for Resource Usage and Major Programs and Relationship with the Capital Plan

Shikhar Insurance's plans for resource usage, major programs, and their relationship with the capital plan are
designed to foster sustainable growth and resilience. By strategically aligning resources, prioritizing investments,
and managing risks effectively, the company is well-positioned to achieve its objectives and continues providing
exceptional value to its clients and stakeholders

Human Resources
Shikhar Insurance recognizes the importance of human capital in delivering exceptional service and driving
innovation. The company plans to invest in:

e Enhancing the recruitment process to attract top talent and implementing robust training programs to ensure
continuous professional development.

e Introducing wellness programs and flexible working arrangements to promote a healthy work-life balance.

e Fostering a diverse, inclusive and dignified workplace to leverage different perspectives and enhance creativity.

Technological Resources

To stay competitive in the rapidly evolving insurance industry, Shikhar Insurance is committed to leveraging
cutting-edge technology. The key focus areas include:

e Investing in digital platforms to streamline operations and enhance customer experience.

e Strengthening cybersecurity measures to protect sensitive information and maintain trust with clients.
e Utilizing advanced data analytics to gain insights into customer behavior and optimize product offerings.

Financial Resources
Effective financial management is crucial for ensuring the sustainability and profitability of Shikhar Insurance.
The company plans to:

e Strategically diversify the investment with due compliance of the provision of the regulatory body to achieve
long term sustainable investment return objectives.

e Implement cost-saving initiatives and automation processes to improve operational efficiency and reduce
expenses.

e Enhance risk management frameworks to mitigate financial risks and ensure stability.

Product Innovation
Shikhar Insurance is dedicated to developing innovative insurance products that meet the evolving needs of its
clients. Key initiatives include:

e Creating tailored insurance solutions for different customer segments, including individuals, businesses, and
specialized industries.

e Developing insurance products that mitigate climate change related risks and promote sustainability and
environmental responsibility.

e Offering innovative health and wellness insurance plans for citizens residing in both urban areas and rural areas.

The relationship between Shikhar Insurance's resource usage plans, major programs, and its capital plan is
grounded in strategic alignment. The company ensures that capital investments are directed towards initiatives
that support its long-term goals and vision. This alignment is achieved through:

e Coordinating resource usage and program development with capital planning to ensure coherence and synergy.

e Establishing clear performance metrics to evaluate the effectiveness of capital investments and their impact
on organizational objectives.

e Continuously monitoring the progress of capital projects and adjusting as needed to stay on track.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Overview of Financial Position / Performance and KPI
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600
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TOTAL NET WORTH
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Total Net worth
Rs. 536 Crore

Capital Contribution
Rs. 111 Crore
Paid Up Capital
Rs. 265 Crore

Bonus Share

Rs.154 Crore

Insurance Fund
Rs. 169 Crore

Retained Earning

Rs. 29 Crore
Reserves
Rs. 271 Crore
Cat Reserve

Rs. 14 Crore

Other Reserve

Rs. 59 Crore
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Business and Insurance Policies Summary

The following are the summaries of the company’s overall business in terms of number of policies, gross
written premiums, and net written premiums for the FY 2023-24.

Amount in NPR

Particulars Pgll(i)c?efs % G rg.:,: n‘ﬁ’ JitnEe " % Ng : evr\":iilitr?ln %
Property 49,500 15.61| 1,370,628,916| 25.32| 140,030,432| 10.25
Motor 158,188 49.88|1,449,103,940| 26.77| 888,392,028 65.05
Marine 14,585 460 180,821,628 3.34 18,345,222 1.34
Engineering 2,477 0.78] 1,064,702,320 19.67 39,600,690 2.90
Micro 12,760 4.02 1,845,206 0.03 441,056 0.03
Aviation 20 0.01| 116,326,752 2.15 (7,421,628)| (0.54)
Cattle and Crop 50,626 15.96| 723,108,504 13.36| 115,973,066 8.49
Miscellaneous 29,001 9.14| 507,262,466 9.37| 170,298,726| 12.47
Total 317,157 100.00( 5,413,799,732| 100.00| 1,365,659,592| 100.00

The table above shows that the Motor class is the highest class in terms of number of policies, gross written
premium and net written premiums. It accounts for 49.88 of the total policies, 26.77% of the total gross
written premium and 65.05% of the total net written premium for the fiscal year 2023-24. Property and Motor
class in combination contribute to 65.49% of the total policies, 52.09 % of the total gross written premium
and 75.3% of the total net written premium for the FY 2023-24. The engineering portfolio represents just
0.78% of the total policy count, yet it contributes 19.67% of the gross written premium, making it the third-
largest class in terms of gross written premium. The cattle and crop portfolio accounts 15.96% of the total
policy count making it the third largest in terms of policy count, contributing 13.36% to the gross written
premiums and 8.49% to the total net written premiums. The other portfolio includes marine, micro, aviation
and aviation which contributes only 14.89% of the total net written premiums.
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Product Classification

The company transacts all the major categories of non-life insurance business. A brief description of the
major classes of business are as follows:

1) Property Insurance — Property insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out
contracts of insurance, otherwise than incidental to some other class of insurance business against loss
or damage to property due to fire, explosion, storm and other occurrences customarily included among
the risks insured against in the property/fire insurance business.

2) Motor Insurance - Motor insurance means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts of insurance
against loss of, or damage to, or arising out of or in connection with the use of, motor vehicles, inclusive
of third-party risks but exclusive of transit risks.

3) Marine Insurance - Marine insurance means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts of
insurance against loss of consignment of goods during transit.

4) Engineering Insurance - Engineering insurance means the insurance that provides economic safeguard
to the risks faced by the ongoing construction project, installation project, and machines and equipment
in project operation.

5) Micro Insurance - Micro insurance protects against loss of or damage to micro property, crops and
livestock. It has great potential to provide value to low-income farmers and their communities, both by

protecting farmers when shocks occur and by encouraging greater investment in crops.

6) Aviation Insurance — Aviation insurance provides coverage for hull losses as well as liability for passenger
injuries, environmental and third-party damage caused by aircraft accidents.

7) Cattle and Crop Insurance - Cattle and Crop insurance provides insurance against loss of or damage
to Cattle and crops.

8) Miscellaneous Insurance — All the insurance business which doesn’t fall in above categories fall under
miscellaneous insurance business. Group Personal Accidents, Medical Insurances, Professional indemnity
insurance, Travel Insurance, Trekking Insurance etc. fall under this category of business.
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Main Function of the Company

The company offers all the major non-life insurance products that protect individual and institutional policy
holders for the losses sustained from fire, marine, aviation, motor, personal accidents, third party liabilities,
engineering, cattle and crops and other miscellaneous products. The company's main functions include:

1) Underwriting
The underwriting department of the company is responsible for assessing and evaluating the risk
associated with the insured. It mainly focuses on whether the company should offer insurance coverage
to the insured and at what terms (such as premiums, coverage limits, exclusions and deductibles). Other
key functions of the underwriting department include risk assessment, policy pricing, approval or denial
of coverage, policy terms and conditions, and ongoing risk monitoring etc.

2) Sales and Marketing

The sales and marketing department of the company plays a critical role in driving business growth,
promoting insurance products and building strong customer relationships. The other main functions of
this department are providing appropriate insurance product information to potential customers, developing
sales strategies, acquiring new customers through innovative insurance products, market research and
analysis, relationship management, providing insurance awareness training and programs. Furthermore,
sales and marketing department promotes the company’s values, reputation, and trustworthiness to
build brand loyalty and recognition.

3) Claim management

The claim department of the company is responsible for the processing and settlement of claims made

by the insured when they incurred a loss or damage that is covered under their insurance policy. This

department assesses the validity of the claim and amount to be paid based on the terms of insurance

policy. The main functions of the claim department are as follows:

e Receiving and recording the initial notification of a claim from the insured.

e Claim assessment and investigation to verify the validity of the claim and assess the extent of the
damage and loss.

e Determining claim liability, the claim department assesses whether the loss is covered or not and if
any exclusions and limitations apply to the claims.

o Claims settlement, the department calculates the amount to be paid and arranges for reimbursement

e Communication with insured

e Fraud detection

e Claims file management

e Dispute resolution

e Claims follow-up

4) Reinsurance Management
Reinsurance is a form of insurance that the company purchases to protect from large or unexpected
losses. The primary goal of reinsurance is to spread risk, stabilize financial performance, and ensure
that the company can meet its obligations to the insured.

The main functions of the reinsurance department are as follows:
o Risk transfer which exceeds the retention limit of the company

e Reinsurance treaty negotiation

Reinsurance structuring and reinsurance program design

Claims handling and recovery

Reinsurance accounting

Monitoring and evaluating reinsurance performance

5) Risk Management
The risk management department is responsible for identifying, assessing, and mitigating risks that
could potentially affect the company’s operations, financial stability, and reputation. Their key functions
are as below:
o Risk identification
o Risk assessment and analysis
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6)

7)

8)

9)

¢ Risk control and mitigation

¢ Risk monitoring and reporting

e Operations risk management

e Promoting a risk awareness culture in the organization

Finance and Accounting

The finance department manages the company’s financial resources, including investment of surplus
premiums, budgeting and financial reporting. It ensures that the company remains financially sound and
complies with regulatory requirements. The main functions of this department include:

¢ Financial planning and budgeting

¢ Financial Reporting

¢ Investment management

e Claims reserve management

e Cash flow management

e Cost control and expenses management

e Regulatory compliance and taxation

¢ Internal control and risk management on financial resources of the company

e Profitability analysis and reporting.

Information Technology (IT)

The information technology department is responsible for maintaining the company’s technological
infrastructure, including managing databases, and cybersecurity. The main functions of this department
include:

e |T system infrastructure development

e |IT software development and maintenance

e Cybersecurity and data protection

e Data management and analytics

e Support for digital channels

e Business continuity and disaster recovery

e User support and training

e Automation and process improvement

Legal and compliance

The legal and compliance department is responsible for ensuring that the company adheres to all
applicable laws, regulation, regulatory requirements and manages legal risk effectively. The other key
functions of the legal and compliance department are as below:

e Regulatory compliance

e Providing legal advice

e Reviewing various agreement terms and conditions

¢ Claims investigation and dispute resolution

¢ Risk management and legal documentation

e Litigation management

e Corporate governance

e Ensuring Anti-money laundering (AML) compliance and preventing fraudulent activities

e Compliance training and awareness

Human Resource

The human resource department is responsible for managing and overseeing all aspects of human
resources, including recruitment, training, brainstorming, team development, employee relations, employee
compensation, performance evaluation and compliance with labor laws and other applicable laws.
Furthermore, the HR department works to ensure that the company has the right people in the right
roles, and it helps to create a positive and productive environment.
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Horizontal Analysis

2023-24 vs 2023-24 vs 2022-23 vs 2022-23 vs
Financial Position 2022-23 Change | 2022-23 Change | 2021-22 Change | 2021-22 Change

in Values in Percentage (%) in Values in Percentage (%)
Fixed Assets
Goodwill & Intangible Assets 796,201 8.91 7,939,041.00 796.73
Property and Equipment 26,481,301 3.79 1,970,226.23 0.25
Investment
Investment Properties (4,225,116) (5.11) - -
Investment in Associates 90,719,633 124.46 19,940,442.60 37.66
Other Investment 376,973,893 9.01 199,065,144.00 4.99
Other Assets
Deferred Tax Assets (19,970,803) (21.61) (36,942,170.89) (28.56)
Reinsurance Assets 168,363,760 430| (324,016,232.81) (7.64)
Current Tax Assets 123,204,042 2,081.73 (94,306,736.35) (94.09)
Insurance Receivables (383,610,659) (41.50) 72,021,258.18 8.45
Other Assets 20,636,194 6.01 (53,130,121.84) (13.40)
Other Financial Assets 123,766,620 20.75 184,896,622.00 44.93
Cash and Cash Equivalent 27,999,294 23.76 | (198,207,609.00) (62.71)
Total Assets 551,134,360 4.99 (220,770,137) (1.96)
Equity & Liabilities
Equity
Share Capital - 368,866,100.00 16.14
Share Premium - -1 (160,902,639.00) (100.00)
Special Reserves 225,168,589 15.40 126,473,312.00 9.47
Catastrophe Reserves 22,516,859 19.47 (10,048,832.95) (6.25)
Retained Earnings 198,052,678 22140| (184,210,077.76) (13.79)
Other Equity 27,909,665 4.94 50,389,933.89 40.10
Liabilities
Provisions 24,486,668 18.47 (41,216,360.31) (23.71)
Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities 231,855,528 458 | (334,842,184.00) (6.20)
Insurance Payable 93,428,767 77.02| (123,806,449.18) (50.51)
Borrowings (120,801,819) (81.73) (52,426,800.00) (26.18)
Other Liabilities 30,747,299 7.98 (56,571,830.59) (12.80)
Other Financial Liabilities (182,229,873) (59.29) 197,525,691.00 179.86
Total Equity and Liabilities 551,134,360 499| (220,770,136.90) (1.96)
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2023-24 vs 2023-24 vs 2022-23 vs 2022-23 vs
Income Statement 2022-23 Change | 2022-23 Change | 2021-22 Change | 2021-22 Change
in Values in Percentage (%) in Values in Percentage (%)
Income
Gross Earned Premiums (38,017,202) (0.72) 903,599,776.00 20.57
Premiums Ceded 41,898,973 1.07 760,346,473.00 24.08
Net Earned Premiums (79,916,175) (5.80) 143,253,303.00 11.60
Commission Income 73,919,132 11.45 (20,270,754.48) (3.04)
Other Direct Income 25,463,642 190.56 (1,035,327.00) (7.19)
Income from Investments & Loans (38,363,781) (10.22) 114,650,150.00 43.97
Net Gain/ (Loss) on Fair Value Changes - - - -
Net Realised Gains/ (Losses) 14,334,823 (86.56) (19,860,095.00) (601.81)
Other Income (615,470) (1.17) (2,695,192.77) (4.88)
Total Income (1,296,058) (0.05) 214,042,083.75 9.58
Expenses:
Gross Claims Paid (426,168,923) (15.93) 293,362,582.00 12.32
Claims Ceded 173,720,333 (11.17) | (213,765,719.00) 15.94
Gross Change in Contract Liability 432,033,399 (121.44) | (455,701,893.81) (455.93)
Change in Contract Liability Ceded to Reinsurers (369,088,126) (127.93) 359,068,795.81 (508.93)
Net Claims Incurred (189,503,317) (17.99) (17,036,235.00) (1.59)
Commission Expenses 5,531,755 19.20 2,181,554.00 8.19
Service Fees (364,542) (3.16) (1,186,167.00) (9.33)
Other Direct Expenses 4,414,715 26.28 207,439.00 1.25
Employee Benefits Expenses 52,290,838 10.13 46,205,721.00 9.83
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 11,619,719 31.53 4,238,097.00 13.00
Impairment Losses (30,448,135) (82.69) 8,778,821.00 31.30
Other Operating Expenses 9,704,174 4.40 47,389,829.00 27.33
Finance Cost (9,136,179) (22.08) 17,367,333.00 72.35
Total Expenses (145,890,972) (7.44) 108,146,392.00 5.83
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year Before
Share of Net Profits of Associates Accounted
for Using Equity Method and Tax 140,713,143 28.94 105,895,691.75 27.85
Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted
using Equity Method 333,035 (844.68) (186,988.40) (126.72)
Profit Before Tax 141,046,178 29.01 105,708,703.35 27.719
Income Tax Expense (78,135,527) (30.05) 152,747,720.45 142.40
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year 219,181,706 96.93 (47,039,017.11) (17.22)
Basic EPS 8 96.93 (5.96) (41.16)
Diluted EPS 8 96.93 (5.96) (41.16)
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Vertical Analysis

Financial Position

2023-24 vs 2018-
19 Change in
percentage (%)

2022-23 vs 2018-
19 Change in
percentage (%)

2021-22 vs 2018-
19 Change in
percentage (%)

2020-21 vs 2018-
19 Change in
percentage (%)

2019-20. vs 2018-
19 Change in
percentage (%)

Fixed Assets
Goodwill & Intangible Assets
Property and Equipment

Investment

Investment Properties
Investment in Associates
Other Investment

Other Assets

Deferred Tax Assets
Reinsurance Assets
Current Tax Assets
Insurance Receivables
Other Assets

Other Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalent
Total Assets

Equity & Liabilities

Equity

Share Capital

Share Application Money Pending Allotment
Share Premium

Special Reserves

Catastrophe Reserves

Retained Earings

Other Equity

Liabilities

Provisions

Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities
Insurance Payable

Borrowings

Other Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

990 | 901 12 (100) )
20 15 29 9 3
100| 100
(46) (76) (83) (83) (74)
68 54 47 16 12
69| 115 201 109 76
121 1 129 101 13
2] (93) 10 (28) (26)
@) (10) (17) 2
41 33 54 44 (13)
40| 331 197 85 8
©3)|  (70) 1) (12) 35
58 50 53 29 10
151 151 116 66 -
- - - 100 -
- - 100 100 -
60 38 2 15 -
50 2 37 21 44
200 (4 194 100 360
44 38 25 17 10
91 61 111 46 87
74 67 78 59 3
(19| (89) (76) (87) ®3)
@) @ 30 40 19
191| 169 209 (40) (29)
(43) 39 (50) 32 2
58 50 53 29 10
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2023-24 vs 2018-

2022-23 vs 2018-

2021-22 vs 2018-

2020-21 vs 2018-

2019-20. vs 2018-

Income Statement 19 Change in 19 Change in 19 Change in 19 Change in 19 Change in
percentage (%) | percentage (%) | percentage (%) | percentage (%) | percentage (%)

Gross Earned Premiums 56 57 30 1 (2)
Premiums Ceded (307) | (305) (265) 36 10
Net Earned Premiums (1) (5) (15) (21) (17)
Commission Income 35 21 24 (7) 1
Other Direct Income 100 100 100 - -
Income from Investments & Loans 25 39 (4) (10) 1
Net Gain/ (Loss) on Fair Value Changes (100) |  (100) (100) 91 (87)
Net Realised Gains/ (Losses) (127 | (299) (60) 837 121
Other Income 334 340 362 170 (83)
Total Income 6 6 (3) (11) (11)
Expenses:
Gross Claims Paid (3) 16 3 (4) (28)
Claims Ceded 17 32 14 1" (32)
Gross Change in Contract Liability (84)| (176) (79) 222 (113)
Change in Contract Liability Ceded to Reinsurers (83)| (161) (85) 216 (98)
Net Claims Incurred (23) (6) (5) (18) (30)
Commission Expenses 0 (16) (22) 0 (12)
Service Fees (13) (10) (1) 9) (11)
Other Direct Expenses 100 100 100 - -
Employee Benefits Expenses 50 36 24 8 5
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 147 88 66 3 (8)
Impairment Losses - 100 100 100 -
Other Operating Expenses 51 45 14 18 5
Finance Cost 172 249 103 (26) 75
Total Expenses 5 13 7 (8) (18)
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year Before Share of
Net Profits of Associates Accounted for
Using Equity Method and Tax 1 (14) (33) (21) 9
Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted
using Equity Method (99) (100) (99) (121) (366)
Profit Before Tax 6 (18) (36) (25) (6)
Income Tax Expense (3) 38 (43) (31) (23)
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year 1 (44) (32) (23) 2
Earning Per Share
Basic EPS (56) (78) (62) (52) 2
Diluted EPS (44) (72) (52) (39) 2
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VALUE ADDED STATEMENT

Value added statement of the company evaluates a detailed account of total value addition and the distribution
of the value created, while the income statements of the company report on the income of shareholders. The
value-added statement reports on the income earned by a large group of stakeholders-providers of capital plus
employees and government.

The company contributes to socio-economic developments by empowering employees through the payment of
salaries and allowances, consistent dividends to the providers of capital, regular payment of applicable taxes
to the government, and of course keeping in the mind company's continuous growth and expansion.

VALUE ADDED STATEMENT
For the Year Ended Asadh 31st 2081

Value Added 2080-81 2079-80 Increased/
S.N. (Decreased in %
Particulars Amount % Amount % 2080-81)
1 | Gross Direct Premium 5,268,884,546.00 74.67| 5,104,632,459.00 74.00 164,252,087.00 322
2 | Accepted Insurance Premium 144,915,186.00 2.05| 212,520,162.00 3.08 (67,604,976.00) (31.81)
3 | VAT and Stamp Duty 497,239,637.00 7.05( 510,200,526.00 7.40 (12,960,889.00) (2.54)
4 | Investment and other Income 425,798,139.00 6.03| 424,645,889.83 6.16 1,152,249.17 0.27
5 | Reinsurance Commission Earned 719,726,915.00 10.20| 645,807,782.52 9.36 73,919,132.48 11.45
Total Value Added During the Year | 7,056,564,423.00 100.00| 6,897,806,819.35 100.00 158,757,603.65 2.30
APPLICATION OF FUND
For the Year Ended Asadh 31st 2081
Value added contribution to/ 2080-81 2079-80 Increased/
SN. Application of value added (Decreased in %
Particulars Amount % Amount % 2080-81)
A | Employee Expenses
Salary and Allowances 345,168,434.00 60.74| 326,095,273.00 63.19 19,073,161.00 5.85
Training Expenses 9,696,340.00 1.7 8,986,752.00 1.74 709,588.00 7.90
Festival Allowances 27,624,931.00 4.86 26,145,423.00 5.07 1,479,508.00 5.66
Other Allowances 123,102,952.00 21.66| 106,178,988.00 20.58 16,923,964.00 15.94
Bonus 62,718,962.00 11.04 48,614,345.00 9.42 14,104,617.00 29.01
Sub-total 568,311,619.00 100.00| 516,020,781.00 100.00 52,290,838.00 10.13
B | Management Expenses
Reinsurance Cost 4,048,140,140.00 76.79| 3,882,949,300.00 73.32 165,190,840.00 4.25
Change in Uneamned Premium Reserve 67,782,701.00 1.29 56,410,256.00 1.07 11,372,445.00 20.16
Management Expenses 251,717,239.00 4.77| 237,598,350.00 4.49 14,118,889.00 5.94
Provision 6,375,000.00 0.12 36,823,135.00 0.70 (30,448,135.00) (82.69)
Commission Expenses 34,338,483.00 0.65 28,806,728.00 0.54 5,531,755.00 19.20
Net Claims Incurred 863,606,169.23 16.38| 1,053,109,486.00 19.89 (189,503,316.77) (17.99)
Sub-total 5,271,959,732.23 100.00( 5,295,697,255.00 100.00 (23,737,522.77) (0.45)
C | Government
Service Fee 11,159,515.00 1.62 11,524,057.00 147 (364,542.00) 0.40
Corporate Tax Paid 181,882,609.00 26.35| 260,018,136.45 33.26 (78,135,527 .45) 85.43
Vat and Stamp Duty 497,239,637.00 72.03| 510,200,526.00 65.26 (12,960,889.00) 14.17
Sub-total 690,281,761.00 100.00| 781,742,719.45 100.00 (91,460,958.45) (11.70)
D | Providers to Capital
Interest on loan and debenture 32,234,177.00 14.30 41,370,356.00 32.78 (9,136,179.00) (22.08)
Dividend to shareholders - - - - - -
Retained Earning 193,118,201.77 85.70 84,823,614.62 67.22 108,294,587.15 -
Sub-total 225,352,378.77 100.00| 126,193,970.62 100.00 99,158,408.15 78.58
E | Company-For Expansion and Growth
Depreciation 48,470,113.00 16.12 36,850,394.00 20.68 11,619,719.00 31.53
Other Reserves 252,188,819.00 83.88| 141,301,699.28 79.32 110,887,119.72 78.48
Net Profits - - - -
Sub-total 300,658,932.00 100.00| 178,152,093.28 100.00 122,506,838.72 68.77
Total Distribution and Growth
(A+B+C+D) 7,056,564,423.00 -| 6,897,806,819.35 158,757,603.65 2.30
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Strategies of the Organization and Resource Allocation for Achieving Them

a. Digital Transformation
Shikhar Insurance plans to digitally transform all feasible operations within the next 3-5 years. For this, the
company has recruited an adequate number of human resources in the IT department of the company and
has strengthened the IT infrastructure of the company.

b. Claim Management
To strengthen the claim management of the company, about 50 dedicated staff have been resourced for
the claim management team and required claim processing and approving authority has been given to the
province office and branch offices of the company. Shikhar Insurance aims in the significant claim turnaround
time leveraging the technological enhancements. The company plans to use IT resources, mobile applications,
online platforms and customize the core software of the company to smoothen the claim process.

c. Risk Management

Risk management is a continuous function of an insurance company. Shikhar insurance aims for sound
management of not only the current risks of the company, but also new and emerging risks of the company
to protect solvency of the company, enhance customer experience and growth of the company. For this,
the company has strengthened the risk management department through recruitment of additional skilled
and experienced manpower, investment in cyber security, regular training and development of the employees.
Further the company also has enrolled an actuary on a retainership basis to facilitate the risk management
activities of the company.

d. To increase the market share and increase insurance penetration.
Shikhar Insurance aims to maintain the market leadership by increasing the market share and increasing
insurance penetration throughout the country along with maintaining the ethical business practices. Insurance
penetration shall be increased through the establishment of new branch offices, providing insurance services
through online or digital means and new product development. An independent research and development
department has been established for the purpose of the development of new insurance products. Shikhar
Insurance plans to develop 2-3 new insurance products each year.

e. Reinsurance management
Regular revision on the reinsurance arrangement shall be done based on the Risk Capacity, Risk Appetite
and Risk Tolerance level of the company and with due consideration of the directives issued from the NIA.
The objective of the reinsurance arrangement of the company is to share risk in an appropriate manner to
increase profitability and protect the solvency and interest of the shareholders of the company during the
time of catastrophic incidents. The company has been making decisions regarding Rl management based
on the actuarial study of risk profiles of the company and related data analytics.

f. Compliance of NFRS 17 and ORSA

Shikhar insurance aims in achieving compliance of Nepal Financial Reporting Standard 17, Insurance
Contract and Own Risk and Solvency Assessment within the due dates stipulated by the concerned
authorities. For NFRS 17, the company has already entered into an agreement with one of the leading
global accounting firms, KPMG, who have experience of implementing IFRS 17 in different countries. For
ORSA, the company has appointed a consulting actuary on a retainership basis. Further, the company has
strengthened the risk management function through the development of standard operating procedures,
required policies and action plans. Required number of skilled and experienced manpower have been
recruited for both NFRS 17 and ORSA.
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Strategy for Insurance Development, Insurance Products and

Insurance Services

Following strategies have been initiated for the sustainable development, customer satisfvaction and marketr
leadership.

a.

Market research and analysis to understand national and global trends, customer needs and competitive
landscape and identifying the opportunities and threats.

Incorporating the latest technology and innovation in the development of insurance products and providing
insurance services. The use of mobile applications and online platforms should be further strengthened.
Shikhar insurance has plans to incorporate artificial intelligence and machine learning solutions for underwriting,
risk assessment and providing claim services.

New customized insurance products shall be developed as per the needs of the economy as well as niche
insurance products for the underserved communities and market.

Innovative value-added services shall be introduced that will enhance customer experience.

Claim process shall be further simplified using digital channels, use of artificial intelligence and machine
learning.

Customer service should be further improved through continuous training and development activities. Shikhar
insurance plans to provide 24/7 customer support through various channels.

By leveraging the CRM systems customer relationship management shall be further improved.

Shikhar Insurance plans for new strategic partnerships with healthcare service providers, auto industry for
comprehensive and hassle-free insurance services.

Sustainability Strategy with Measurable Objectives

Our vision is to become a leader in sustainable insurance, setting the benchmark for responsible practices within
the industry. Our mission is to embed sustainability into our core business strategies, fostering a culture of
innovation, transparency, and ethical conduct. By doing so, we aim to contribute to the global efforts in mitigating
climate change, promoting social equity, and enhancing economic stability. Our sustainability strategy includes
the following strategies:

Reducing Carbon Footprint: Implementing measures to minimize our carbon emissions through energy-
efficient operations, use of renewable energy sources, and promotion of sustainable practices among
employees and clients. For this purpose, the company has the following plans and objectives:

- Replacement of ICE vehicles with electric vehicles for official use.
- Providing additional financial benefits to the employees who use electric vehicles instead of ICE vehicles.

- Less use of papers for the official work. For this, the company has planned for digital transformation of
all feasible operations in the next 3 years.

- Using solar energy for the operations of the company.

Climate Risk Management: Integrating climate risk considerations into our underwriting and investment
practices, ensuring that our portfolio supports a low-carbon economy. Further Shikhar Insurance aims to
develop new insurance products for climate change risk management. Shikhar Insurance has developed
the following insurance products for climate change risk management:

- Weather index-based apple insurance
- Weather index-based paddy insurance

- Index based flood insurance.
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Promoting Green Insurance Products: Developing and offering insurance products that encourage
environmentally friendly behaviors. Shikhar Insurance developed and introduced the Auto Plus Insurance
policy in the Nepalese Insurance market, which covers the depreciation amount in the batteries of electric
vehicle which is 50% as per the prevailing motor insurance tariff.

Diverse and Inclusive Workforce: Fostering a diverse and inclusive work environment where all employees
feel valued and empowered to contribute their best. Out of total workforce of Shikhar Insurance 40% are

female staff and Shikhar Insurance promotes more diverse and inclusive workforce.

Employee Well-being: Implementing policies and programs that prioritize the health, safety, and well-being
of our employees.

Responsible Investment: Adopting responsible investment practices that consider environmental, social,
and governance (ESG) factors, thereby supporting sustainable economic growth. Currently more than 5%
of total investment of the company is invested in the area of hydroelectricity projects and infrastructure with
an objective to support sustainable economic growth.

Risk Management: Enhancing our risk management frameworks to address emerging risks, including those
related to climate change and cyber threats.

Collaborative Partnerships: Collaborating with an international development organization for sustainable
insurance products and mitigating climate change risk.

Developing and promoting inclusive insurance products ensures that vulnerable and underserved communities
have access to financial protection. Objectives include:

Offering affordable health insurance plans for underinsured populations for the public at Karnali and other
rural areas.

Providing disaster insurance solutions to communities at high risk of natural disasters.
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Review of the Future Business Prospects

During the past 20 years, the general insurance industry has grown by more than 15 times. In 2004 the total
market size of Nepalese general insurance industry was Rs.2.7 billion which has been increased to Rs. 41.5
billion in 2024.

Market Premium (NPR Billion)
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The insurance industry in Nepal has shown significant growth over the past few decades. This growth can be
attributed to increasing awareness among the populace, economic development, and regulatory reforms. During
the pre-covid period the general insurance industry grew at an average growth rate of 20%. The COVID-19
pandemic has had a profound impact on economies worldwide, and the insurance industry has not been immune
to these effects. The pandemic followed by other financial and economic problems in the country led to a severe
economic slowdown, which affected disposable income and financial stability. Many businesses faced closures
or reduced operations, leading to a decline in revenue for both individuals and companies. This economic
disruption resulted in a decrease in the uptake of new insurance policies as people prioritized essential expenses
over insurance premiums resulting in marginal growth in the past two years.

While the pandemic posed significant challenges, it also opened up opportunities for growth and innovation in
the insurance sector. The accelerated adoption of digital technologies, increased awareness, and regulatory
support have set the stage for a more resilient and customer-centric industry. The general insurance industry
in Nepal is expected to recover and grow as the economy stabilizes and the lessons learned during the pandemic
are applied to future strategies.

The Nepalese general insurance industry has undergone significant transformations over the past few decades.
A key trend shaping the industry is the increasing number of mergers among insurance companies. These
mergers have the potential to reshuffle market dynamics, create new opportunities, and pose several challenges.

Further, the current economic slowdown has undoubtedly posed significant challenges to the Nepalese insurance
industry such as reduced insurance uptake, and increased claims, and reduction in the investment return.

However, the outlook of the Nepalese general insurance industry seems promising the industry will likely witness
significant growth, driven by several key factors.

Technological Integration

The continued digital transformation of the insurance sector will play a significant role in its future success.
Embracing digital platforms for policy underwriting, customer service, and claims processing will enhance
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efficiency and customer satisfaction. The integration of advanced technologies such as artificial intelligence,
machine learning, and big data analytics will revolutionize the general insurance industry. These technologies
will enable insurers to offer personalized products, improve risk assessment, enhance customer experience,
and streamline operations.

Collaborative Efforts

Collaboration between the government, private sector, and international organizations will be vital in
addressing the challenges and harnessing the opportunities in the insurance market. Joint initiatives can
help in improving regulatory frameworks, increasing insurance literacy, and promoting sustainable growth.
Supportive regulatory frameworks will play a crucial role in shaping the future of the industry.

Customer-Centric Approach

A shift towards a customer-centric approach will be vital for insurers to stay competitive. Understanding
customer preferences, offering flexible solutions, and providing exceptional service will be key differentiators.
Insurers will need to focus on building strong customer relationships and enhancing their value proposition
to retain and attract clients.

Innovation and Product Diversification

Innovation will be at the forefront of the industry's growth. Developing new and diverse insurance products
that address the evolving risks and needs of consumers will open new business opportunities. Insurers
will need to explore niche markets and create tailored solutions for various segments, including small
businesses, agriculture, and health sectors.

Education and Awareness

Enhancing education and awareness about insurance will be crucial. Initiatives aimed at improving financial
literacy and understanding of insurance products will help in building trust and encouraging informed
decision-making among consumers.
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Effect of External Environment on the Company’s Business

The general insurance industry in Nepal, like in many other countries, is significantly influenced by various
external environmental factors. These factors encompass economic conditions, regulatory frameworks, socio-
political climate, technological advancements, and natural calamities.

Economic Conditions

The economic landscape of Nepal has a profound impact on the general insurance sector. A robust economy
typically leads to higher disposable incomes and increased demand for insurance products. Conversely, economic
downturns result in reduced consumer spending on insurance. The economic slowdown after the COVID-19
aftermaths and crisis in the Nepalese banking and cooperative sectors has severely affected the growth of
Nepalese general insurance industry in the past couple of years. Inflation in Nepal has been relatively volatile,
partly due to reliance on imports and fluctuating foreign exchange rates. High inflation rates have both positive
and negative impacts on the insurance industry. The higher inflation rate increases the value of sum insured
resulting into the increase in premium amount. In the meantime, it also reduces the disposable income resulting
in decreasing demand for insurance.

Interest Rates

Interest rates determine the returns on investments made by insurance companies. Given the regulatory provision
of minimum of 50% investment in the fixed deposit of commercial bank, Lower interest rates, reduce investment
income, affecting the profitability.

Regulatory Framework

The insurance industry in Nepal is governed by the Nepal Insurance Authority which sets regulations and
guidelines to ensure stability and protect policyholders' interests. Apart from the NIA, insurance companies are
also required to follow the regulations of SEBON, NEPSE, IRD, CRO and standard developed by the accounting
standard board. Regulatory changes can have significant implications for the industry. Further, compliance with
regulatory provisions, accounting and financial reporting standards can also increase operational costs of the
insurance companies.

Socio-Poltical Environment
The socio-political environment in Nepal plays a crucial role in shaping the general insurance industry. Political
stability and government policies can either bolster or impede industry growth.

Nepal's political landscape has seen significant changes over the past decades, with periods of instability
impacting economic activities and investor confidence.

Government Policies

Government policies related to infrastructure development, healthcare, and disaster management directly influence
the insurance sector. Initiatives that promote infrastructure investments and healthcare accessibility create
opportunities for insurers to offer tailored products. Further, fiscal policy of the government and monetary policy
of the central bank also impact the economic conditions of the country and have direct/indirect impact on the
insurance sector.

Technological Advancements

Technology is a game-changer for the general insurance industry, affecting everything from product development
to customer service and operational efficiency. The digitalization of insurance processes has revolutionized the
industry. Online platforms and mobile applications enable consumers to purchase and manage insurance policies
conveniently. However, with increased digitalization comes the heightened risk of cyber threats. Insurers must
invest in robust cybersecurity measures to protect sensitive data and maintain consumer trust.

Natural Calamities

Nepal is highly susceptible to natural disasters such as earthquakes, floods, and landslides. These events have
a direct and substantial impact on the general insurance industry. Insurance companies are required to have a
robust risk management strategy and reinsurance programs to protect the solvency of the company due to the
natural calamities.
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Company’s Initiatives for Staff Welfare

Shikhar Insurance has always prioritized the welfare of its employees, recognizing that the well-being of staff
directly influences their productivity and job satisfaction. Shikhar Insurance has introduced a series of initiatives
aimed at fostering a supportive and healthy work environment. These initiatives reflect the company's commitment
to its employees’ physical, mental, and professional well-being.

a. Shikhar Insurance has implemented health and accidental insurance despite enrollment in the Social Security
Fund. After enrolling in the social security fund, medical insurance and personal accidental insurance is not
legally required. However, Shikhar insurance has done personal accidental insurance up to Rs. 30 lakhs
and medical insurance up to Rs. 1.5 lakhs.

b. Shikhar Insurance has also provided endowment life insurance coverage of Rs.5 lakhs for each staff. This
offers additional financial security to the employees.

c. Shikhar Insurance believes in the continuous growth and development of its employees. To this end, the
company offers various professional development opportunities.

d. Regular training sessions are conducted to enhance the skills and knowledge of employees. These programs
cover a range of topics, including technical skills, leadership development, and industry-specific knowledge.
The company also partners with renowned institutions to provide certifications and advanced training courses

e. Shikhar Insurance understands the importance of maintaining a healthy work-life balance. The company
has introduced several initiatives to help employees balance their professional and personal lives:

f.  Shikhar Insurance has established formal recognition programs to acknowledge the hard work and dedication
of its long-serving employees. These recognition programs motivate employees to strive for excellence and
foster a culture of appreciation.

g. To promote mental health and work life balance Shikhar insurance is also providing additional paid leave
benefit to its employees apart from the statutory leaves. Additional home leave and casual leave have been
provided to support the work life balance of the employees.

h. In additional monthly menstruation leave facility has been provided to the female staff to support their mental
health and physical wellbeing.

Shikhar Insurance's initiatives for staff welfare reflect a holistic approach to employee well-being. By addressing
physical health, mental well-being, professional development, work-life balance, the company ensures that its
employees feel valued, supported, and motivated. These efforts not only enhance employee satisfaction but
also contribute to the overall success and reputation of Shikhar Insurance as a caring and responsible employer.

Company’s Contribution in National Economy

Shikhar Insurance has contributed significantly to the overall economy of the country. The contribution of the
company is highlighted through the following points:

Revenue Contribution
Shikhar insurance is contributing around Rs. 1 billion each year to the government revenue through direct,
indirect and withholding taxes. During the 20 years period Shikhar Insurance has contributed around 15 billion
in government revenue.

Investment in Infrastructure

Shikhar Insurance has been investing a significant amount of the investment fund in national infrastructure
projects. These investments not only improve the quality of life for citizens but also enhance economic
productivity by reducing transportation costs and facilitating the movement of goods and services.
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Stability in the Economy

By offering various insurance products, such as property, marine, motor, aviation, engineering, cattle and
agriculture insurance, Shikhar Insurance has helped to bring stability to the economy of the country. Financial
risk mitigation through insurance stabilizes the economy by ensuring that individuals and businesses can recover
quickly from losses, thereby maintaining their financial health and contributing to the economy. Shikhar Insurance's
health insurance products have made a significant impact on the well-being of the people. By providing access
to quality healthcare services, the company helps reduce the financial burden of medical expenses on individuals
and families. This, in turn, leads to a healthier, more productive workforce, which is essential for sustained
economic growth.

Employment Creation

Shikhar Insurance has been a major employer in the general insurance industry of Nepal providing employment
opportunities across various sectors, including underwriting, claims processing, administration, customer service,
and sales. By creating employment opportunities, the company supports household incomes, increases consumer
spending, and contributes to the overall economic cycle.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Shikhar Insurance is committed to corporate social responsibility and actively engages in various initiatives that
benefit society and the environment. The company's CSR programs focus on areas such as education,
environmental sustainability, and community development and social welfare. By investing in these initiatives,
Shikhar Insurance not only enhances its corporate reputation but also contributes to the overall socio-economic
development of the nation.

Action Taken by the Company to Become More Sustainable and

Contribute to a Sustainable Global Economy

Shikhar Insurance has taken substantial steps to integrate sustainable practices into its operations, aligning
with global efforts to combat climate change and promote a sustainable global economy.

Shikhar Insurance has implemented a series of green policies aimed at reducing its environmental footprint.
These policies encompass energy conservation, waste management, and water usage reduction. By prioritizing
the use of renewable energy sources and implementing energy-efficient practices in its offices, Shikhar Insurance
has significantly reduced its carbon emissions. The company has adopted a policy of gradually replacing the
ICE vehicles with electric vehicles for official purposes and providing additional benefits to the staff who opt for
the electric vehicles. Shikhar Insurance has short term and long-term plans to leverage digital technologies to
enhance operational efficiency and reduce its environmental impact. Through digital transformation of the
operations of the company, promoting paperless transactions, and utilizing data analytics, the company plans
to minimize consumption of paper, energy and other resources. Further, the company has also plan to use solar
and renewal energy for the operation of the company.

Recognizing the growing impact of climate change on the insurance industry, Shikhar Insurance has enhanced
its climate risk management strategies in insurance product development. The company has developed number
of insurance products such as weather index-based apple insurance, index-based flood insurance, index-based
paddy insurance, etc. to address climate change risk management. We have plans to use advanced modeling
techniques to assess and mitigate climate-related risks, ensuring that it can provide reliable coverage in the face
of increasing environmental uncertainties.

We have collaborated with international and local partners to advance sustainability climate change risk
management goals. We have collaborated with Sakchhyam UKaid Access to Finance, Insu- resilience fund,
Germany for the development of new insurance products relating to sustainability and climate change.
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By regularly reviewing and updating its sustainability strategies, Shikhar Insurance ensures that it remains at
the forefront of sustainable business practices. As Shikhar Insurance continues to evolve and adapt to emerging
challenges, it serves as a model for other organizations striving to make a positive impact on the world.

Initiatives Towards Environmental Conservation,

Social Development and Sustainability

The company has taken the following direct and indirect initiatives towards environmental conservation, social

development and sustainability:

- Organizational policy to replace ICE vehicles with electric vehicles to reduce carbon emission

- Policy of using solar and renewal energy for the operation of the company

- Development of innovative insurance products for climate change risk management

- Development of auto plus insurance policy that provides the huge depreciation deduction in the electric vehicle
in the motor insurance policy.

- Blood donation programs

- Plantation programs

- Distribution of walnut trees to 3,000 households in Karnali region

- Insurance of more than 5,000 houses in Karnali region in cooperation with the local government.

Disclosure in Relation to Corporate Social Responsibility

CSRinitiatives of the company are governed by the directives of the NIA relating to corporate social responsibility.
As per the regulation, an insurance company must spend at least one percentage of the net profit for corporate
social responsibility. As per the provision of the directives of the NIA, an insurance company can spend money
on the following projects through the CSR reserve:

a. Social welfare projects: Education, health, disaster management, economic upliftment of deprived sector
public, insurance awareness, insurance protection and insurance of marginalized public.

b. Direct subsidy: education and health of deprived and marginalized public
c. Poverty reduction: insurance protection of deprived sector public from natural disaster

d. Expense of childcare center for children of the staff of the company.

Shikhar insurance has made expense on following CSR activities during FY 2023/24.

Walnut plant distribution

With an objective to uplift the economic status of the public of Raskot municipality, Karnali Province, Shikhar
insurance distributed walnut plant to the 3,000 households of Raskot Municipality. The total amount of the walnut
distributed was Rs. 1,078,000. Walnuts are a high-value crop with a strong demand in both domestic and
international markets. By cultivating and harvesting walnuts, households can generate a substantial income
through sales. Additionally, walnut trees contribute to environmental sustainability by preventing soil erosion,
improving soil fertility, and promoting biodiversity. The distribution of walnut plants encourages local entrepreneurship,
and the development of small businesses focused on walnut products. This can lead to economic diversification
and resilience, reducing reliance on traditional farming practices.

Financial contribution to earthquake victims of Karnali Province

Financial support of Rs. 11 lakhs were provided to Karnali Province Government for the earthquake victims of
Jajarkot and Rukum of Karnali Province. In response to the earthquake in Karnali Province, Shikhar Insurance's
provision of financial support represents a crucial lifeline for the victims. We expected that this aid would help
meet urgent needs for shelter, food, water, and medical supplies to the earthquake victims at the Karnali Province.
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Blood Donation Program

Each year Shikhar insurance has been running blood donation programs as CSR initiatives. Shikhar Insurance
conducted blood donation programs in 17 different locations throughout the country. The total cost of the blood
donation Program conducted throughout the country was around Rs. 8 lakhs. Through the blood donation
campaign, more than 1200 pints of blood were collected that helped to provide critical blood supplies essential
for saving lives during dengue outbreaks and accidents cases.

Financial Aid to the community school of Dhangadhi Sub Metropolitan City

Shikhar Insurance provided financial aid of Rs. 1,315,000 to a community school operated by the Dhangadhi
Sub metropolitan city. The aid helped to uplift the education of female students studying at community schools
of Dhangadhi areas.

Insurance Awareness Activities

With an objectives of corporate social responsibilities, Shikhar Insurance is conducting different insruance
awareness activities throughout the countries including TV program for insurance awareness, seminaar and
insurance training porograms, mobile insurance awareness activities.

Other CSR programs to support educational programs

The company also provided financial aid of Rs. 1,300,000 to different organizations to support the educational
objectives. The amount includes financial aids provided to the “Govind Biyogi Patrakarita Adhyan Kendra
(Rs.550,000), Martin Chautari Library (Rs.250,000), Shree Gargi kanya Gurukul Pratisthan (Rs.300,000) and
Sahana Pradhan Foundation Rs.200,000. Apart from the above programs the company provided financial aids
to multiple other programs in different areas including social welfare, public health and insurance awareness.
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Risk Management Policy / Framework and Mechanism to Manage Risks

Risk management aims to reduce uncertainty in business while internal control ensures that all operations within
the company are effectively performed and are within established standards.

The company has developed a risk management framework which aims to continuous identification and
measurement of the unknowns; developing mitigation plan; selecting, planning, and implementing appropriate
risk mitigations strategy; and tracking the implementation to ensure successful risk reduction and mitigation.
The Board of Directors approves the risk management strategy and risk policies pertaining to core activities that
give rise to insurance risk. The senior management is nominated to implement and lead the risk management
team for the successful implementation of the risk management framework. The Risk and Actuarial Department
is responsible for ensuring the implementation of risk management framework in departments, perform quantitative
risk assessments and implementing mitigation measures within the framework boundaries. The internal audit
validates the functioning of risk policies.

Risks are assessed on a regular basis and based on findings mitigation strategies are designed and implemented
to address those risks.

The company employs stress testing, risk diversification and reinsurance as the main tool for risk management.
Core Risk Categories

1. Insurance Risk

e Underwriting Risk: Underwriting Risk may refer to the likelihood of an insurance company suffering a
financial loss due to their underwriting activities.

e Claim Settlement Risk: Claims settlement risk is the risk arising from the process by which insurers fulfil
their contractual obligations to policyholders.

e Product development Risk: Product development risk refers to all the uncertainties and risks that can
cause a product development effort to be unsuccessful.

e Reinsurance Risk: Reinsurance risk refers to the inability of the ceding company or the primary insurer
to obtain insurance from a reinsurer at the right time and at an appropriate cost.

e Reserving Risk: Reserving risk is the risk that the reserves set aside by the insurer for its insurance
liabilities (net of reinsurance and other recoveries for those liabilities) will be inadequate to meet the net
amount payable when the insurance liabilities occur.

2. Market Risk and Credit Risk

e Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the exposure of a bank's current or future earnings and capital
to adverse changes in market rates.

e Equity Risk: The risk of losing money due to a reduction in the market price of shares is known as equity
risk.

o Exchange Rate Risk: Exchange rate risk refers to the risk that a company's operations and profitability
may be affected by changes in the exchange rates between currencies

e Liquidity Risk: Liquidity risk is the risk of loss resulting from the inability to meet payment obligations in
full and on time when they become due.

e Credit Risk: "Credit risk "means the risk of adverse changes in the value of capital resources due to
unexpected changes in the actual default as well as in the deterioration of obligor's credit worthiness short
of default, including migration risk, spread risk due to defaults and concentration risk.

3. Operational Risks
e Legal Risk: Legal risk is a type of risk that arises from the potential for legal action or liability

e Cyber Risk: Any risks that emanate from the use of electronic data and its transmission, including
technology tools such as the internet and telecommunications networks.
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e Reputational Risk: Reputational risk is a threat or danger to the good name or standing of a business
or entity

e Data Risk: Data risk is defined as exposure to loss of value or reputation caused by issues or limitations
to an organization's ability to acquire, store, transform, move, and use its data assets.

e Human Resource Risk: Human resources risk is the potential for losses and shortfalls related to employees
and other members of a workforce.

e Information Technology (IT) Risk: IT risks include hardware and software failure, human error, spam,
viruses and malicious attacks, as well as natural disasters such as fires, cyclones or floods

Climate Change Risk

Transition Risks: Transition risks mean risks that arise from the transition to a low-carbon and climate-
resilient economy

Physical Risks: Physical risks mean risks that arise from the physical effects of climate change,

Liability Risks: Liability risk means the risk of claims arising under liability policies, as well as direct actions
against insurers, for failing to manage climate risk

Strategic Risk
Risk of loss to the insurer from potential failures or errors in strategic planning and/or implementation, either
due to internal or external events, leading to the insurer not achieving its core objectives.

Compliance Risk
Compliance risk is the risk of loss to the insurer due to failing to comply with the legal and regulatory
requirements.

Conduct Risk

The conduct risk is the risk of loss or poor outcome or unfair treatment towards the current and future
policyholders or adverse consequences to the insurance market due to improper business conduct or business
malpractice or unwillingness to comply with regulatory market conduct requirements by the insurer and/or
its representatives.

Money Laundering & Financing of terrorism Risk
The risk that illegal funds and assets are converted into legitimate funds and assets using insurer as the
vehicle.

Emerging Risks
Emerging risks are new or foreseeable risks with insufficiently known hazard potential andEeffects that are
difficult to assess.

Guiding Principles of Risk Management

All business decisions will be made with prior information and acceptance of risk involved

The Risk Management Policy shall assist in the enhancement and protection of business value from
uncertainties and consequent losses

All employees of the company should be made aware of risks in their respective departments and their
mitigation measures

The risk mitigation measures adopted by the company shall be effective in the long run and to the extent
possible be embedded in the business processes of the company

Risk tolerance levels will be regularly reviewed and decided upon depending on the change in company’s
strategy

The occurrence, progress and status of all risks will be promptly reported, and appropriate actions be taken
thereof

Risk Management Framework
The risk management framework establishes a systematic approach to risk identification, assessment, and
management. It consists of six core components:

. Risk Identification where all potential risks are identified to ensure they are controllable and manageable.
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2. Risk Assessment where risks are assessed quantitatively by making informed decisions and managing
accumulations.

3. Risk Analysis where risk analysis is conducted using a risk matrix for likelihood and impact, taking the
existing controls into consideration.

>

Risk Mitigation where plans and strategies shall be considered in determining the suitable risk treatment.

5. Risk control and monitoring uses the output of a risk assessment and implements countermeasures to
reduce the risks identified to an acceptable level.

6. Risk Reporting where internal and external transparency on risk exposures are provided and compliance
with disclosure requirements. Risk reporting is communicated from each department risk owners to risk
committee and audit committee through Chief Risk Officer.

Advanced Risk Management Practices

1. Integrated Risk Models

We are in the process of using proprietary integrated risk models to assess exposures, determine capital
requirements, and ensure compliance with solvency frameworks. These models are regularly updated to
reflect evolving market conditions and regulatory standards.

Further Qualitative Risk Reporting Template (QRRT) is used from this year to determine the capital requirements
as per risk-based capital model and solvency of the company.

2. Scenario Analysis and Stress Testing
We have planed to conduct scenario analysis to evaluate the impact of extreme events and stress testing
to gauge financial resilience under adverse conditions.

3. Sustainability and ESG Considerations
Factoring environmental, social, and governance risks into decision-making processes to align with global
sustainability goals.

4. Decentralized Risk Oversight
Embedding Chief Risk Officer and risk owners within each legal entity to ensure localized risk oversight and
alignment with group-wide policies.

Key Risk Management Functions
Effective risk oversight is ensured by the company. Chief Risk Officer and risk teams embedded within the
organizational structure monitor adherence to risk policies and provide specialized expertise.

Central risk owners in each department support these functions by offering analysis in day-to-day risk activities,
maintaining compliance frameworks, and providing oversight across all risk categories.

Climate Risk Related Disclosure

Climate risk is a significant concern for the company, particularly due to the increasing frequency and severity
of weather-related losses (physical risks), changes in regulations and market conditions that impact on our
reinsurance business and investments (transition risks), and the rising number of environmental-related lawsuits
against businesses and public institutions (legal risks). Shikhar Insurance is committed to climate risk management
through governance, assessment, measurement, and mitigation measures.

Climate-related risks in the company are overseen by the Risk Management Committee and managed at the
operational level. The company's strategy for managing climate change risks is as follows:

a. Develop climate risk related strategy to increase the resilience of the company against the adverse impacts
of climate change.

b. Develop key metrics and other measurements relating to climate change risk management.
Shi Khar
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Define targets to be used by the company in managing climate change risks.

d. Develop necessary action plans for the achievement of the key metrics and targets relating to climate change
risk management.

e. Measure actual performance against the key metrics, measurements and targets of the company relating
to climate change risk management.

For management of climate-related risk the company has adopted the following measures:

a. Climate Risk Consideration in the Insurance Business
i. Catastrophic Reinsurance Program
Catastrophic reinsurance protection includes risk coverage of earthquakes, floods, storm, landslide which
limits the net retention of the company and protects from the spillover of the event limit of the reinsurance
treaty.

ii. Innovative New products
Shikhar Insurance has developed innovative products to cater the climate related risks such as weather
index-based apple insurance, Index based flood insurance, index based paddy insurance.

b. Green Initiatives
i. Use of Electric Vehicles
The company has started to use and purchase electric vehicles for official use. The company has promoted
the use of electric vehicles to its staff. Additional benefits are provided to the staff who purchase electric
vehicles under the employee vehicle scheme.

ii. Plantation in Office
The company has implemented office plantation initiatives to enhance green spaces and promote
environmental sustainability.

iii. Use of natural lights
Shikhar Insurance promotes energy saving behavior at work and employees make sure there are no
appliances working when not required. The office spaces are designed to utilize natural light, reducing
the need for artificial lighting during the daytime.

iv. Less use of paper
The company has reduced usage of paper through automation of the process. Use of paper is discouraged
as far as possible for all the operation of the company.

v. Solar Energy
The company has planned to install solar panels at the corporate office of the company to promote the
use of renewal energy.

Reinsurance Policy and Adequacy of Reinsurance Coverage Including Catastrophic Reinsurance

The company’s reinsurance policy is guided by the risk appetite, risk capacity and risk tolerance level of the
company along with due consideration of the directives from the NIA regarding reinsurance management. Each
year, reinsurance optimization study is carried out though the consulting actuary of the company. Actuarial
analysis of historical data and risk profile is conducted before developing reinsurance plans and programs.

The company selects reinsurers based on their creditworthiness, ensuring financial strength and reliability and
NIA directives relating to reinsurance. The reinsurance program is structured to align with the company's exposure,
providing adequate protection across all lines of business. The company communicates regularly with reinsurers
to strengthen partnership and mutual understanding, enhancing trust and transparency which reduces counterparty
credit risk by ensuring clarity in claim expectations, claim settlement schedules, timely updates, and effective
issue resolution.

The reinsurance strategy includes proportional treaties to manage predictable risks and excess of loss agreements

to cover high-severity events. Facultative reinsurance fills the reinsurance gap and provides coverage for policies
not included under our regular reinsurance.
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Adequacy of Catastrophic Reinsurance

Shikhar Insurance has taken catastrophic whole account reinsurance coverage of Rs. 700 crores which covers
spillovers from the event limit of proportional reinsurance treaty and limits the maximum retention of the company
to Rs.5 crore per catastrophic event. The company’s catastrophic reinsurance program is a comprehensive
program that covers all major portfolios including property, marine, motor, engineering, cattle and miscellaneous
insurance. The company’s catastrophic reinsurance covers losses from natural disasters, including earthquakes
and floods and other catastrophes such as fire.

The current catastrophic reinsurance program implemented by Shikhar Insurance represents the highest level
of coverage among all catastrophic reinsurance plans adopted by Nepalese general insurance companies.

Effectiveness of Insurer's Internal Control System

Control Environment

a. Board of Directors and Committees
An active and independent Board of Directors, along with a board committee for different functions viz. Audit
Committee, HR Committee, Claim Committee, Risk Management Committee, AML Committee, Investment
Committee and ORSA Committee provides oversight and guidance that play a vital role in establishing a
strong control environment.

b. Organizational Structure
A clear organizational structure has been developed that delineates clear responsibilities and authorities.
Separate legal and compliance department, audit department, AML/CFT department have been formed.

c. Ethical Values and Integrity
The company promotes a culture of honesty and ethical behavior. Each employee along with board members
is required to follow the Codes of conduct. Regular training, and robust whistleblowing programs have been
implemented to maintain integrity.

Risk Assessment

a. Risk Identification
A comprehensive risk register has been prepared that covers all foreseeable risks of all departments. A risk
dashboard has been developed that facilitates risk trigger mechanism.

b. Risk Analysis
The potential impact and likelihood of each risk have been properly analyzed. Detail analysis of the risk is
done for the emerging risks as cyber risk. The reinsurance plan and the program has been developed based
on the proper analysis of risk capacity, risk tolerance level and risk appetite of the company.

c. Risk Mitigation
Based on the risk analysis appropriate risk mitigation plans have been implemented. Following risk mitigation
initiatives have been taken by the company to mitigate the likelihood of the operational risks:

- Reinsurance program has been designed based on the risk capacity, risk tolerance level and risk appetite
of the company

- A sufficient catastrophic reinsurance program has been taken based on the risk profile of the company
that covers spillovers from the proportional treaty and limits the net retention of the company to Rs.5 crore
only on occurrence of any catastrophic event.

- The company’s IT infrastructure has been strengthened to mitigate cyber-related risks. The company
strictly prohibits the use of pirated software. Regular cyber hygiene training is provided to the employees.

- Regular training is provided to the staff regarding operational, regulatory and compliance aspects.
- Third Party vendor assessment is carried out for all major vendors and service providers of the company
- Regular audits including internal audit
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Control Activities

a. Segregation of Duties
Each department and unit of the company has defined roles, responsibilities, and authority. Each employee
of the company is provided with job descriptions which includes clear definition of the roles and responsibilities

b. Authorization and Approval
Financial transactions, underwriting activities, reinsurance activities and claim sanction activities are controlled
through clear authorities given to the persons responsible. Any transaction exceeding the authority level
needs prior approval of the higher authority.

c. Reconciliation and Review
Regular reconciliation of accounts and review of transactions is carried out to help detect and correct
discrepancies promptly.

d. Physical controls
Following physical Control measures have been implemented to assets and information from unauthorized
access and misuse.
- Access control systems to restrict entry to authorized personnel only.
- Surveillance cameras to monitor and record activities in and around the premises.
- Secure storage for sensitive documents and assets.
- Regular maintenance and inspection of physical security infrastructure.
- Alarm systems
- Implementation of visitor management protocols.

e. IT Controls
Following IT controls are implemented to safeguard data integrity, confidentiality, and availability. These
controls include access controls, data encryption, and regular security assessments.
- Use of genuine software and operating systems. The company has provided Microsoft 365 plans to all
staff of the company.
- Access controls
- Backup and Recovery procedures
- Disaster Management Plans
- Data Encryption, Firewall and Intrusion Detection Systems
- Regular Security Assessments and Audits
- Patch Management
- Multifactor Authentication
- Incident Response Plan

Communication

a. Internal Reporting
Following internal reporting mechanisms have been implemented by the company that facilitates proper
reporting relating to the risk.

Operational Risk Reports relating to business, claim, reinsurance, policy renewals.

Financial and investment report which includes potential financial risks such as financial risks, such as credit
risk, market risk, and liquidity risk.

Compliance Report
Reports relating to IT and cyber security
MIS and Risk Dashboard

b. External Reporting
The company must comply with regulatory requirements for external reporting. This includes timely and
accurate submission of financial statements and other mandated reports.

c. Communication Channels
The communication channels for risk reporting include internal communication channel and external
communication channel. Internal communication channels include email, internet, meetings and instant
messaging through Microsoft team or telephone or verbal communication. External Communication channel
includes reporting to regulators, communication with shareholders and public disclosures.
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Monitoring

a. Regular Monitoring
Continuous monitoring activities, such as regular meetings, risk and MIS dashboard, supervisory reviews
and performance evaluations have helped identify and address control deficiencies promptly.

b. Separate Evaluations
Periodic independent evaluations, such as internal audits and external audits, provide an objective assessment
of the effectiveness of internal controls.

c. Reporting Deficiencies
A mechanism for reporting and addressing control deficiencies have been placed to ensures that issues are
escalated and resolved in a timely manner.

IT System and Control

Shikhar Insurance Company remains committed to strengthening its IT infrastructure, governance, and security
framework to support business operations, ensure regulatory compliance, and enhance digital transformation
initiatives. The company continuously improves its IT strategies to safeguard data integrity, confidentiality, and
availability while embracing modern technologies to drive operational efficiency.

Overview of IT Infrastructure
The company's IT infrastructure is designed to provide a reliable and secure digital ecosystem for both internal
and external stakeholders:

e Servers: A combination of virtualized on-premises servers and secure cloud-hosted systems ensures
uninterrupted operation of critical applications.

e Storage Solutions: Centralized backup systems, complemented by cloud synchronization, provide data
redundancy and ensure secure access.

e Network Connectivity: A secure and resilient network infrastructure connects all branches via private
communication channels.

e Core Applications: Specialized business management software supports critical operations, including
insurance underwriting, human resource management, compliance, and other productivity tools.

e Cloud Services: The company has adopted cloud-based productivity solutions, providing employees with
access to genuine software and secure collaboration tools.

IT Governance
To maintain a structured and compliant IT environment, Shikhar Insurance follows best practices in IT governance:

e The company adheres to regulatory guidelines and is actively aligning its IT policies with international
standards, including ISO 27001.

e Approved IT policies, including acceptable use and data privacy policies, have been fully implemented across
the company.

e Additional policies have been developed to meet ISO 27001 requirements and are currently in the implementation
phase.

e The IT committee oversees project approvals, major IT investments, and strategic initiatives to align technology
with business goals.

Security Measures
Shikhar Insurance has implemented robust security controls to protect systems, data, and user access:

e Access Controls: A strict role-based access mechanism ensures that employees have appropriate permissions
based on their responsibilities.

e Use of Genuine Software: The company ensures the use of licensed operating systems and software, with
Microsoft 365 plans provided to all staff.

o Firewall and Intrusion Detection Systems: Advanced security solutions monitor and protect the IT
environment from unauthorized access and cyber threats.

e Data Encryption: Encryption mechanisms safeguard sensitive data both in transit and at rest.
Shi khar
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e CCTV Monitoring: Surveillance systems are deployed in critical areas to enhance physical security.
e Multi-Factor Authentication (MFA): MFA is implemented in key systems to strengthen access security.

Risk Management and Compliance
To mitigate IT-related risks and enhance compliance, the company follows a structured risk management
approach:

e Regular Security Assessments and Audits: Internal audits and external evaluations are conducted
periodically to identify vulnerabilities and enforce compliance.

e Patch Management: Systems and applications are regularly updated with security patches to mitigate
potential threats.

e Incident Response Plan: A formalized plan is in place to address security incidents and ensure timely
resolution.

e Risk Register: A comprehensive IT risk register is maintained to document, track, and mitigate risks effectively.

Disaster Recovery and Business Continuity
Shikhar Insurance has implemented a robust disaster recovery and business continuity framework to ensure
resilience against disruptions:

e Backup and Recovery Procedures: Multiple backup copies are maintained across on-premises and cloud
storage solutions.

e Disaster Management Plan: The company has a structured response strategy to minimize downtime in
case of unforeseen events.

e Regular Disaster Recovery Drills: Recovery tests are conducted to validate response efficiency, ensuring
minimal disruption to business operations.

IT Performance and Monitoring
To ensure optimal system performance and availability, the IT team employs various monitoring and evaluation
tools:

e Automated Dashboards: Real-time monitoring of critical systems ensures early detection of potential issues.
e Alert Mechanisms: Proactive alerts enable swift action on incidents that could impact business operations.

e System Availability and Response Time Metrics: Performance is continuously measured to maintain high
operational efficiency.

Digital Transformation
Shikhar Insurance continues to drive digital transformation to enhance efficiency, improve customer experience,
and integrate with emerging technologies:

e Process Automation: The company is implementing automation in internal processes to enhance efficiency
and reduce manual workload.

e Enhanced Customer Experience: Digital platforms enable seamless policy purchases, claims management,
and third-party integrations to offer superior customer service.

e Third-Party Integrations: The company collaborates with external systems and partners to facilitate B2B
and B2C interactions.

e Future Innovations: Investments in data analytics, artificial intelligence (Al), and machine learning (ML) are
planned to improve business insights and decision-making.

Future IT Plans
Looking ahead, Shikhar Insurance aims to further enhance its IT capabilities through:

e Expansion of digital transformation initiatives to improve internal and external operations.
e Investments in advanced analytics, Al, and ML to enable data-driven decision-making.

e Development of an in-house knowledge-based system—a secure Al-powered assistant that allows employees
to query internal company data without relying on external sources. This system will enhance operational
efficiency, improve decision-making, and ensure quick access to organizational knowledge.

e Continuous efforts toward achieving international compliance standards, reflecting the company’s commitment
to strong IT governance and security.
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» info@rjac.co.in
https://rjac.co.in/ R) Actuaries
and Consultants

ERTIFICATION BY APPOINTED ACTUARY

I, Raunak Jha, the Appointed Actuary of Shikhar Insurance Company Limited, hereby certify that,

a. [ have complied with the Risk Based Capital and Solvency Directive, 2022 (2078) issued by
the Nepal Insurance Authority;

b. Ihave taken into account all contingencies appropriate to the business that is valued and that
the assumptions employed in the valuation are appropriate;

c. the mathematical reserves have been based on the data provided and verified by the company
and have been calculated and reported accurately;

d. [Ihave calculated the Risk Based Capital accurately; and

e. the mathematical reserves along with the Risk Based Capital make good and sufficient
provision for all the unmatured obligations under the terms of the policies on the books of

the insurer.

Raunak Jha,
Founder and Consulting Actuary
Date: 12/02/2025
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Responsibility of Chief Finance Officer
in respect of the Financial Statements

This statement outlines the core responsibilities and obligations of the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) of Shikhar
Insurance in relation to the annual financial statements.

1. Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements

The CFO is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the annual financial statements in accordance

with applicable accounting standards, legal requirements, and regulatory guidelines. This involves:

e Ensuring that the financial statements are prepared in compliance with the Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) and prevailing regulations, as applicable.

e Overseeing the consolidation of financial data from various departments and subsidiaries to produce
comprehensive and accurate financial statements.

e Presenting the annual financial statements and other financial reports to stakeholders, including shareholders,
investors, and analysts.

e Providing clear and accurate explanations of financial performance and any significant variances from
expected results.

2. Internal Controls and Financial Reporting

The CFO is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control systems to ensure the

accuracy and reliability of financial reporting. Key responsibilities include:

e Designing and implementing internal controls to prevent and detect fraud, errors, and misstatements in
the financial records.

e Regularly evaluating and updating internal control procedures to adapt to changes in the business and
regulatory environment.

e Ensuring that all financial transactions are recorded accurately and in a timely manner.

3. Compliance and Ethical Standards

The CFO is accountable for ensuring that the organization adheres to all relevant laws, regulations, and

ethical standards related to financial reporting. This includes:

e Staying informed about changes in financial regulations and accounting standards and ensuring that the
organization complies with them.

e Liaising with external auditors, tax authorities, and regulatory bodies to ensure transparency and compliance
in financial reporting.

e Promoting a culture of ethical behavior and integrity within the finance department and the broader
organization.

4. Risk Management and Financial Strategy
The CFO is responsible for managing the risks and developing strategies to safeguard the company’s
financial health. Responsibilities in this area include:
e Identifying and assessing risks that could impact the organization’s performance and implementing
strategies to mitigate these risks.
e Developing and executing financial plans and budgets that align with the company’s strategic objectives.
5. Communication with Stakeholders
The CFO is responsible for serving as a key point of contact for stakeholders regarding the financial
performance and position of the organization. Responsibilities include:
e Presenting the annual financial statements and other financial reports to stakeholders, including shareholders,
investors, and analysts.
e Providing clear and accurate explanations of financial performance and any significant variances from
expected results.
e Ensuring that stakeholders receive timely and relevant information to make informed decisions about the
organization.
Suraj Rajbahak
Chief Financial Officer
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G.P.Rajbahak & Co.

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Shareholders of Shikhar Insurance Company Limited

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of M/s Shikhar Insurance Company Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise
the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024), and the Statement of Profit or Loss, the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying Financial Statements present fairly, in all material respects, the Financial Position of the Company as
at Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024) and its Financial Performance and its Cash Flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards [NFRS].

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing [NSA]. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the
key audit matters to be communicated in our report:

S.N. Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response

a) | Revenue Recognition (Premium Income): | Our audit approach included:

Premium Income comprises major part of revenue | a. Obtain clear understanding of process of issuing the insurance policies
which is recorded on issue of policy as prescribed as per the directives issued by the Nepal Insurance Authority and
by the directives of Nepal Insurance Authority. understanding the process of recording such income.

Unearned Premium Income is recorded/adjusted |

. ; Understood and tested the design, implementation and operating
as estimated by the Company appointed Actuary.

effectiveness of key controls over premium collection and its recognition.

Unearned premiums are those proportions of | ¢ Verified on a sample basis the policies and other related underwriting

premiums written in a year that relate to periods documents including premium calculations therein as per the regulatory
of risk after the reporting date. Unearned premiums requirements and Internal Policies of the Company along with premium
are calculated on a daily pro rata basis. receipt with the time stamp to confirm the recognition of revenue in
The proportion attributable to subsequent periods correct accounting period.

is deferred as a provision for unearned premiums. | d. Verified on a sample basis, the premium ceded to the reinsurers as per
Reinsurance Treaty/ Agreement.

e. \Verified unearned premium income as assessed by the Company
appointed Actuary in his Actuarial Valuation Report.

b) Insurance Claim and Provision for Outstanding Our audit approach included:
Claim: o ) a. Obtained clear understanding of the process and guidelines for claim
Insurance Claim is the major area of expense for processing as per the directives issued by Nepal Insurance Authority.

the C . . . - ) .
© Lompany. b. Reviewed the company’s operational guidelines for claim processing,

The company makes the provision of an amount performed test of controls, test of details and analytical procedures on
of 100% of remaining amounts of the payment outstanding claims.

against the claim made by company before the
expiry of financial year and Claims Incurred but
Not Reported (IBNR) is recognized as higher of
15% of outstanding claim or that determined by
actuarial methods. e. Incase of Incurred but Not Reported (IBNR) and Incurrgé i

c. Verified the claim paid and provision on a sample basis along with the
evidence of payment, documentation as well as surveyor report and
understanding the recording process in the books of account.

The payment and processing of claims required actuary appointed by the company. The actuarial ¥
significant auditor attention and has been identified respect of IBNR and IBNER as at Ashadh 31,208
as a Key Audit Matter in our report '
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S.N. Key Audit Matters How the matters were addressed in our Audit

c) Investment Valuation, Identification and Impairment: | Qur audit approach included:
Investment of Company comprises of investment in | a. Review of the investment of company and its valuation with reference
quoted/unquoted equity instruments, debentures and to NFRS issued by the Accounting Standard Board of Nepal.

fixed deposits of various banks and financial institutions. o ) ) o )
b. Verification of investment requirement to be maintained by the insurance

The valuation of aforesaid securities has been done company as per Investment Directive 2079.
in compliance with NFRS 9. The investment in fixed
deposit has been recognized at Amortized Cost on
reporting date whereas the investment in equity
instruments quoted and unquoted, other than those
held for trading are valued at Fair Value through
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income.

c. Assessment of nature of expected cash flow of the investments as
well as business model adopted by the management on the basis of
available evidence/ circumstances and ensured that the classification
of investment is commensurate with nature of cash flow and
management intention of holding the investment.

d. For the investment valuation that are done at amortized cost, we
checked the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) and amortization schedule
on test basis.

Given the varieties of treatments recommended for
valuation of investment based on nature of cash flow,
the business model adopted, complexity of calculations

and the significance of amount involved in such e. For the investment valued through OCI for quoted investment, we
investments, same has been considered as Key Audit ensured the fair valuation has been done at closing price in NEPSE
Matter in our report. as on the reporting date.

d) Information Technology: Our audit approach included:
IT Controls with respect to recording of transactions, | a. Understanding the Core Insurance Software and other allied systems
generating various reports in compliance with Nepal used by the company for accounting and reporting purposes.

Insurance Authority guidelines and other compliances
to regulators is an important part of process. Such
reporting is highly dependent on the effective working
of Software and other allied systems.

b. Understanding the process of feeding data in the system and going
through the extraction of the financial information and statements from
the IT systems existing in the company.

c. Checking of user requirements for any changes in the regulations/

We have considered this as key audit matter as any )
policy of the company.

control lapses, validation features, incorrect input data
and wrong extraction of data may result in wrong | e. Conducted a sample review of system generated reports and verified
reporting of data to the management, shareholders, the premium income/expenses and claim payments related to issued
regulators and stakeholders. policies and claim intimated on test basis.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with NFRS, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether caused due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, international omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the group’s internal control.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based o 2 audit evide

cause the Company to cease as a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statement, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the Group’s Activities to express an opinion on
Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance, regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
We have determined to communicate following matters in accordance with the requirements of Nepal Insurance Authority Directives,
Companies Act 2063, Nepal Insurance Act 2079 and other regulatory requirements and other regulatory requirements: -

® \We have obtained all the information and the explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purpose of our audit.

® Based on our audit, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company.

® The Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement, and
the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the Company.

® Returns received from the branch offices of the Company were adequate for the purpose of our audit though the statements are
independently not audited.

® The Special Reserve and other mandatory reserves maintained by the company are adequate considering the Directives issued by
Nepal Insurance Authority.

® In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations and from our examination of the books of accounts
of the Company, we have not come across any case where the Board of Directors or any office bearer of the Company have acted
contrary to the provisions of law, or committed any misappropriation or caused any loss or damage to the Company and violated
Directives issued by Nepal Insurance Authority or acted in a manner, as would jeopardize the interest and security of the Company
and its shareholders

® The business of the Company has been conducted satisfactorily and operated within its jurisdiction and has been functioning as per
Nepal Insurance Authority Directives.

o We did not obtain any information indicating engagement of the company in activities other than insurance business as approved/
licensed by the Nepal Insurance Authority.

e We did not obtain any Information indicating company’s activities which is prejudicial to the interest of the insured.
® The Internal Control System implemented by the Company was found to be effective.

® To the best of our knowledge, the Company is capable of bearing its long-term liabilities from its assets.

Ashesh Rajbahak
Partner
G. P. Rajbahak & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

Date: January 28, 2025
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

UDIN: 250130CA00278xF28U
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Financial Position
As At 15th July, 2024 (Ashad End 2081)

Fig. in NPR
Particulars Notes Current Year | Previous Year
Assets
Goodwill & Intangible Assets 4 9,731,690 8,935,489
Property and Equipment 5 725,474,278 698,992,977
Investment Properties 6 78,427,771 82,652,887
Deferred Tax Assets 7 72,442,756 92,413,559
Investment in Subsidiaries 8 - -
Investment in Associates 9 163,611,239 72,891,606
Investments 10 4,562,299,198 | 4,185,325,305
Loans 11 - -
Reinsurance Assets 12 4,082,692,043| 3,914,328,283
Current Tax Assets 21 129,122,387 5,918,345
Insurance Receivables 13 540,782,925 924,393,584
Other Assets 14 364,055,047 343,418,853
Other Financial Assets 15 720,205,955 596,439,335
Cash and Cash Equivalent 16 145,852,288 117,852,994
Total Assets 11,594,697,578 | 11,043,563,217
Equity & Liabilities
Equity
Share Capital 17(a) 2,654,947,300| 2,654,947,300
Share Application Money Pending Allotment 17(b) - -
Share Premium 17(c) - -
Special Reserves 17(d) 1,687,491,319| 1,462,322,730
Catastrophe Reserves 17(e) 138,137,767 115,620,908
Retained Earnings 17(f) 287,508,942 89,456,264
Other Equity 17(9g) 592,329,039 564,419,374
Total Equity 5,360,414,366 | 4,886,766,576
Liabilities
Provisions 18 157,075,048 132,588,380
Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities 19 5,294,093,391| 5,062,237,863
Deferred Tax Liabilities 7 -
Insurance Payable 20 214,734,502 121,305,735
Current Tax Liabilities 21 - -
Borrowings 22 27,000,000 147,801,819
Other Liabilities 23 416,263,447 385,516,148
Other Financial Liabilities 24 125,116,823 307,346,696
Total Liabilities 6,234,283,211( 6,156,796,641
Total Equity and Liabilities 11,594,697,578 | 11,043,563,217
The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.
As per our report on even date

Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana Gaurav Agrawal Ashesh Rajbahak, FCA
Chief Executive Officer Director Director Chairman Partner

G.P. Rajbahak & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya ~ Skand Amatya  Dr. Shrujana Shrestha Puskar Mahat
Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director Director
Date: January 28, 2025
Place: Kathmandu
S hi khar
Happysurance




Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Statement of Profit or Loss
For the Period 17th July, 2023 - 15th July, 2024
(For the Year Ended Ashad 2081)

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Notes Current Year | Previous Year
Income:
Gross Earned Premiums 25 5,258,225,935| 5,296,243,137
Premiums Ceded 26 3,960,349,045 | 3,918,450,072
Net Earned Premiums 1,297,876,890 | 1,377,793,065
Commission Income 27 719,726,915 645,807,783
Other Direct Income 28 38,826,018 13,362,376
Income from Investments & Loans 29 337,029,490 375,393,271
Net Gain/ (Loss) on Fair Value Changes 30 - -
Net Realised Gains/ (Losses) 31 (2,225,184) (16,560,007)
Other Income 32 51,874,207 52,489,677
Total Income 2,443,108,336 | 2,448,286,165
Expenses:
Gross Claims Paid 33 2,248,775,676 | 2,674,944,599
Claims Ceded 33 (1,380,878,573) | (1,554,598,906)
Gross Change in Contract Liability 34 76,281,731 | (355,751,668)
Change in Contract Liability Ceded to Reinsurers 34 (80,572,665) 288,515,461
Net Claims Incurred 863,606,169 | 1,053,109,486
Commission Expenses 35 34,338,483 28,806,728
Service Fees 36 11,159,515 11,524,057
Other Direct Expenses 37 21,215,423 16,800,708
Employee Benefits Expenses 38 568,311,619 516,020,781
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 39 48,470,113 36,850,394
Impairment Losses 40 6,375,000 36,823,135
Other Operating Expenses 41 230,501,816 220,797,642
Finance Cost 42 32,234,177 41,370,356
Total Expenses 1,816,212,315| 1,962,103,287
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year Before Share of Net Profits of
Associates Accounted for Using Equity Method and Tax 626,896,021 486,182,878
Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted using Equity Method 9 293,608.00 (39,427)
Profit Before Tax 627,189,629 486,143,450
Income Tax Expense 43 181,882,609 260,018,136
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year 445,307,020 226,125,314
Earning Per Share 51 - -
Basic EPS 16.77 8.52
Diluted EPS 16.77 8.52
The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.

As per our report on even date
Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana Gaurav Agrawal Ashesh Rajbahak, FCA
Chief Executive Officer Director Director Chairman Partner
G.P. Rajbahak & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Skand Amatya  Dr. Shrujana Shrestha Puskar Mahat

Chief Financial Officer Director Director

Date: January 28, 2025
Place: Kathmandu
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the Period 17th July, 2023 - 15th July, 2024
(For the Year Ended Ashad 2081)

Fig. in NPR
Particulars Notes | Current Year | Previous Year
Net Profit/(Loss) For the Year 445,307,020 226,125,314
Other Comprehensive Income
a) Items that are or may be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Debt Instruments -
Cash Flow Hedge - Effective Portion of Changes in Fair Value -
Exchange differences on translation of Foreign Operation -
Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for
using the equity method 9 90,426,025 (20,130)
Income Tax Relating to Above ltems (27,127,808) 6,039
Reclassified to Profit or Loss
b) Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
Changes in fair value of FVOCI Equity Instruments (40,781,784) 30,815,300
Revaluation of Property and Equipment/ Goodwill & Intangible Assets 663,000 8,049,000
Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations (505,082) (3,034,101)
Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for
using the equity method 9 - -
Income Tax Relating to Above Items 12,187,160 (10,749,060)
Total Other Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax 34,861,511 25,067,048
Total Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax 480,168,531 251,192,362
The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.
As per our report on even date
Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana Gaurav Agrawal Ashesh Rajbahak, FCA
Chief Executive Officer Director Director Chairman Partner
G.P. Rajbahak & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Skand Amatya  Dr. Shrujana Shrestha Puskar Mahat
Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director Director

Date: January 28, 2025
Place: Kathmandu

Shikhar
-+

a;:fatl.tu;‘ance



Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Period 17th July, 2023 - 15th July, 2024

(For the Year Ended Ashad 2081)

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Cash Flow From Operating Activities:

Cash Received

Gross Premium Received

Reinsurance Commission Received

Claim Recovery Received from Reinsurers
Realised Foreign Exchange Income other than on Cash and
Cash Equivalents

Other Direct Income Received

Others

Cash Paid

Gross Benefits and Claims Paid

Reinsurance Premium Paid

Commission Paid

Service Fees Paid

Employee Benefits Expenses Paid

Other Expenses Paid

Other Direct Expenses Paid

Others (to be specified)

Income Tax Paid

Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities [1]

Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Acquisitions of Intangible Assets

Proceeds From Sale of Intangible Assets
Acquisitions of Investment Properties
Proceeds From Sale of Investment Properties
Acquisitions of Property & Equipment
Proceeds From Sale of Property & Equipment
Investment in Subsidiaries

Receipts from Sale of Investments in Subsidiaries
Investment in Associates

Receipts from Sale of Investments in Associates
Purchase of Equity Instruments

Proceeds from Sale of Equity Instruments
Purchase of Mutual Funds

Proceeds from Sale of Mutual Funds
Purchase of Preference Shares

Proceeds from Sale of Preference Shares
Purchase of Debentures

Proceeds from Sale of Debentures

Purchase of Bonds

Proceeds from Sale of Bonds

Investments in Deposits

Maturity of Deposits

Loans Paid

Proceeds from Loans

Rental Income Received

Proceeds from Finance Lease

5,413,799,732
736,782,056
1,764,489,232

346,369
38,826,018
49,673,350

(2,248,775,676)
(3,925,267,392)
(54,244,041)
(41,634,309)
(548,932,842)
(525,700,046)
(21,215,423)

(300,056,495)

5,317,152,621
593,962,569
1,479,629,167

13,362,376
8,730,178

(2,506,545,999)
(3,980,459,144)
(28,820,244)
(47,472,405)
(571,199,191)
(288,013,729)
(16,800,708)

(139,512,251)

338,090,533 (165,986,761)
(1,873,000) (2,882,426)
(50,530,811) (35,792,289)
202,699 2,633,904

- (20,000,000)

(146,305,016)
(27,138,004)

(31,671,000)

(213,500,000)

19,034,979

(81,058,255)
(52,340,585)
(67,865,000)

(15,752,000)

17,891,025

68hikhar
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Period 17th July, 2023 - 15th July, 2024

(For the Year Ended Ashad 2081)

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Interest Income Received

Dividend Received

Investment in CIT

Advance Against Investment

Total Cash Flow From Investing Activities [2]

Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Interest Paid

Proceeds From Borrowings

Repayment of Borrowings

Payment of Finance Lease

Proceeds From Issue of Share Capital

Share Issuance Cost Paid

Dividend Paid

Dividend Distribution Tax Paid

Others (to be specified)

Utilization of CSR Expenses

Total Cash Flow From Financing Activities [3]

Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash & Cash Equivalents [1+2+3]
Cash & Cash Equivalents At Beginning of The Year/Period
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash & Cash Equivalents At End of The Year/Period

Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash In Hand

Cheuge in Hand

Term Deposit with Banks (with initial maturity upto 3 months)
Gold Coin

Balance With Banks

316,102,944 350,478,132

1,553,841 5,385,412
(1,366,840)

- (1,600,000)

(135,490,209) 99,097,918

(22,469,299) (32,155,352)

(120,801,819)
(24,809,171)

(52,426,800)
(20,412,751)

- (1,905,759)

- (19,414,005)
(1,988,618) -
(4,532,123) (5,004,099)
(174,601,030) (131,318,766)
27,999,294 (198,207,609)
117,852,994 316,060,603
145,852,288 117,852,994
68,111 207,384
1,207,822 1,105,887
144,576,355 116,539,723

Notes:
The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.

As per our report on even date

Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana Gaurav Agrawal Ashesh Rajbahak, FCA
Chief Executive Officer Director Director Chairman Partner
G.P. Rajbahak & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Skand Amatya Dr. Shrujana Shrestha Puskar Mahat
Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director Director
Date: January 28, 2025
Place: Kathmandu
Sh | khar
Happysurance
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
For the Period 17th July, 2023 - 15th July, 2024
(For the Year Ended Ashad 2081)

Particulars

Opening Balance in Retained Earnings
Transfer from OClI reserves to retained earning in current year
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss

Appropriations:

i) Transfer to Insurance Fund

ii) Transfer to Special Reserve

iii) Transfer to Catastrophe Reserve

iv) Transfer to Capital Reserve

v) Transfer to CSR reserve

vi) Transfer to/fromRegulatory Reserve

vii) Transfer to Fair Value Reserve

viii) Transfer of Deferred Tax Reserve

ix) Transfer to OCI reserves due to change in classification

X) Others (to be Specified)

Add: Transfer from Catastrophe Reserve

Add: Share Premium

Less: Bonus Share Issue

Less: Cash Dividend

Deductions:

i) Accumulated Fair Value Gain on each Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL

a) Equity Instruments

b) Mutual Fund

c) Others (if any)

Accumulated Fair Value gain on Investment Properties

iii) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Hedged Items in Fair Value Hedges

iv) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Hedging Instruments in Fair Value Hedges

v) Accumulated Fair value gain of Ineffective Portion on Cash Flow Hedges

vi)) Goodwill Recognised

vii) Unrealised Gain on fluctuation of Foreign Exchange Currency

viii) Accumulated Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted using Equity Method included in
Investment Account

ix) Overdue loans

x) Fair value gain recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss

xi) Investment in unlisted shares

xii) Delisted share Investment or mutual fund investment

xiii) Bonus share/ dividend paid

xiv) Deduction as per Sec 17 of Financial directive of NIA

xiv) Deduction as per Sec 18 of Financial directive of NIA

xv) Prior Period Expenses

xvi) Transaction costs on issue of share

xvii) Actuarial Reserve

Adjusted Retained Earning

Add: Transfer from Share Premium Account

Less: Amount apportioned for Assigned capital

Less: Deduction as per sec 15(1) Of Financial directive of NIA

Add/Less: Others (to be specified)

Total Distributable Profit/(loss)

i

Fig. in NPR

Current Year Previous Year
89,456,263 239,365,639
445,307,020 226,125,314
(225,168,588) (126,162,231)
(22,516,859) (12,616,223)
(4,503,372) (2,523,245)
- 242,643
- (9,240,879)
5,030,156 (19,178,801)
- 22,727,272
- 160,902,639
- (368,866,100)
- (19,414,005)
(2,859,650) (2,668,215)
- (25,676,865)
(1,988,618) -
g (1,905,759)
282,756,352 61,111,184
282,756,352 61,111,184

Dip Prakash Panday Ramesh Kumar Luitel Saurav J.B. Rana Gaurav Agrawal
Chief Executive Officer Director Director Chairman
Suraj Rajbahak Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya Skand Amatya  Dr. Shrujana Shrestha Puskar Mahat
Chief Financial Officer Director Director Director Director
Date: January 28, 2025
6Place Kathmandu
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As per our report on even date

Ashesh Rajbahak, FCA
Partner
G.P. Rajbahak & Co.
Chartered Accountants



Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15", 2024)

1. Reporting Entity

Shikhar Insurance Company Limited (herein after referred to as the 'Company') is a public limited company,
incorporated on 15" Jestha 2061 and operated as Non-Life Insurance Company after obtaining license on
16! Kartik 2061 under the Insurance Act 2049.

The registered office of the Company is located at Thapathali, Kathmandu. The Company's share is listed
on Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd.

The principal activities of the company are to provide various non-life insurance products through its province
offices, branches, sub-branches, and network of agents.

2. Basis of Preparation

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Reporting Period and approval of financial statements
The Company reporting period is from 18t Shrawan 2080 to 315t Ashadh 2081 with the corresponding
previous year from 15! Shrawan 2079 to 315! Ashadh 2080. These financial statements have been
approved by the Board of Directors on January 28, 2025 (Magh 14, 2081).

(b) Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements of the Company comprises of Statement of Financial Position, Statement of
Profit or Loss and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income shown as two separate statements,
Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to the Financial Statements which
have been prepared in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) issued by
the Nepal Accounting Standards Board (ASB) and in compliance with the requirements of the Companies
Act , 2006, directives issued by Nepal Insurance Authority and required disclosures as per Securities
Board of Nepal. The format used in the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements and
disclosures made therein also complies with the specified formats prescribed in the directives of Nepal
Insurance Authority.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The term NFRS includes all
the standards and the related interpretations which are consistently used.

(c) Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for following Assets
& Liabilities which have been measured at Fair Value amount:
i. Certain Financial Assets and Liabilities which are required to be measured at fair value
ii. Defined Employee Benefits

iii. Insurance Contract Liabilities which are required to be determined using actuarial valuation for
Liability Adequacy Test (LAT).

Historical cost is generally Fair Value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
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In addition, for Financial Reporting purposes, Fair Value measurements are categorized into Level 1,
or 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the Fair Value measurements are observable &
the significance of the inputs to the Fair Value measurements in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

o Level1 - |Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical Assets or Liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date.

o Level 2 - |Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the
Asset or Liability, either directly or indirectly.

o Level 3 - Inputs are unobservable inputs for the Asset or Liability.

(d) Use of Estimates

The preparation of these Financial Statements in conformity with NFRS requires management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the reported
balance of Assets & Liabilities, disclosures relating to Contingent Liabilities as at the date of the Financial
Statements and the reported amounts of Income & Expenses for the year presented. Actual results may
differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Changes in estimates are reflected in the Financial Statements in the period in which changes are made
and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

(e) Functional and Presentation Currency
These Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Company's functional
currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except
were indicated otherwise.

(f) Going Concern
The financial statements are prepared on going concern basis. The Board of Directors have considered
a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of
profitability, cash flows and capital resources while assessing the going concern basis. Furthermore,
Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon Company's ability
to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operation of it.

(g) Change in Accounting Policies
Accounting Policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the
Company in preparing and presenting financial statements. The Company is permitted to change an
accounting policy only if the change is required by a standard or interpretation; or results in the financial
statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of transactions, other
events or conditions on the entity's financial position, financial performance, or cash flow.

(h) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Accounting standards issued and effective
All the accounting standards made effective by the ASB are applied while preparing financial statements
of the company.

Accounting standards issued and non-effective
NFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”

(i) Carve-outs
The Company has not applied any carve outs provided by the ASB.

(j) Presentation of financial statements
The assets and liabilities of the Company presented in the Statement of Financial Position are grouped
by nature and listed in an order that reflects their relative liquidity and maturity pattern.
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(k) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of
Financial Position, only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Income and expenses are not offset in the Statement of Profit or Loss unless required or permitted by
Nepalese Financial Reporting Standards or Interpretation (issued by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standard Interpretations Committee (SIC) and as specifically
disclosed in the Significant Accounting Policies of the Company.

() Materiality and Aggregation
Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. Items of
dissimilar nature or function are presented separately, unless they are immaterial as permitted by the
Nepal Accounting Standard-NAS 1 on 'Presentation of Financial Statements'.

Notes to the Financial Statements are presented in a systematic manner which ensures the understandability
and comparability of Financial Statements of the Company. Understandability of the Financial Statements
is not compromised by obscuring material information with immaterial information or by aggregating
material items that have different natures or functions.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the significant policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements.
(a) Property and Equipment

i) Recognition
Freehold land is carried at historical cost and other items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation when, it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and it can be used for
more than one year and the cost can be measured reliably.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it meets the recognition criteria as mentioned above. The carrying amount
of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

ii) Revaluation
After recognition as an assets, lands and buildings whose fair value can be measured reliably, have
been carried at revalued amount at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Valuations are being performed to
ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not materially differ from its carrying amount
as on the reporting date. Valuation of the land and buildings are undertaken by professionally
qualified valuers.

An increase in the carrying amount as a result of revaluation, is recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation reserve. However, the increase
is recognized in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset
previously recognized in profit and loss. A decrease in the carrying amount as a result of revaluation
is recognized in profit or loss. However, the decrease is recognized in other comprehensive income
to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.

Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.
Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred
directly to retained earnings.
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Difference between depreciation on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation
based on the asset's original cost is transferred to retained earnings.

iii) Depreciation
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment other than the Freehold Land i.e. the Company's
Freehold Building, Plant & Machinery, Vehicles & Other Assets is provided on "Straight Line Method
(SLM) based on Useful Life estimated by technical expert of the management.

The Assets Useful Life/ Rate of Depreciation and Residual Values are reviewed at the Reporting
date and the effect of any changes in estimates are accounted for on a prospective basis.

Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment based on SLM is categorized as stated below:

List of Asset Categories Useful Life (In Years) for SLM
Land Not Applicable
Buildings 50
Leasehold Improvement Lease Period
Furniture & Fixtures 20
Computers and IT Equipments 5
Office Equipment 10
Vehicles 10
Other Assets 8

iv) Derecognition
An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized up to disposal or when no Future
Economic Benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising from the disposal or retirement of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized
in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

v) Impairment of Assets
Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which
the Asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher
of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated
future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets. Assets that suffer
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period. In case of such reversal, the carrying amount of the asset is increased so as not to exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had there been no impairment loss.

vi) Capital Work-In-Progress
These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plants
and machinery and system development which are to be capitalized. Capital Work in Progress
would be transferred to the relevant asset when it is available for use. Capital Work in Progress
is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

(b) Intangible Assets

i) Recognition
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development
costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in Statement of profit or loss in

the year in which the expenditure is incurred.
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Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is
expensed as incurred.

Goodwill on business combination is recognized on the acquisition date at the excess of (a) over
(b) below:

(a) The aggregate of:

1. The consideration transferred measured in accordance with the NFRS 3, which generally
requires acquisition-date fair value

2. The amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree measured in accordance with
the NFRS 3, and

3. In a business combination achieved in stages, the acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree.

(b) The net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed.

ii) Amortization
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. An intangible asset
shall be regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on an analysis of all of the relevant
factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net
cash inflow for the entity.

Amortization is recognized in statement of profit of loss on Straight Line Method (SLM) over the
estimated useful life of the intangible assets, from the date that is available for use since this most
closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in
the asset. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes
in accounting estimates, The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized
in the statement of profit or loss.

Useful Life of Intangible Assets based on SLM is categorized as stated below:

List of Asset Categories Useful Life (In Years) for SLM
Softwares 10
Licences Licence Period

iii) Derecognition
An Intangible Asset is derecognized when no Future Economic Benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising on the derecognition is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the Asset and is recognized in
the Statement of Profit or Loss.

iv) Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that Intangible
Assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. An impairment loss is recognized in the
Statement of Profit or Loss to the extent, asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
risk specific to the assets.

Shikhar
-+

ﬂPPI’SM}‘ﬂHGQ




(c) Investment Properties

Cost Model

Property that is held for rental income or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as investment
property. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including related transaction cost. It is
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to
the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the company and the cost can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

Land is carried at historical cost; however, buildings are depreciated over their estimated useful lives
as mentioned above.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of, or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognized in the
statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfer is made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer
from investment property, the Company accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under PPE up to the date of change in use.

(d) Cash & Cash Equivalent
Cash & Cash Equivalent includes Cash in Hand, Cheque in Hand, Bank Balances, and short-term
deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

(e) Financial Assets

i) Initial Recognition & Measurement
Financial Assets are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of
its Financial Assets at initial recognition.

When Financial Assets are recognized initially, they are measured at Fair Value, plus, in the case
of Financial Assets not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the Financial Asset. Transaction costs of Financial Assets carried at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

ii) Subsequent Measurement

a) Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost (AC)
A Financial Asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income in these
financial assets is measured using effective interest rate method.

b) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
A Financial Asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling Financial Assets and the
contractual terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These financial assets
are measured at fair value and changes are taken to the statement of other comprehensive
income.

c) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
A Financial Asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.
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(9)

(h)

iii) De-Recognition

A Financial Asset is de-recognized only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive
cash flows from the Financial Asset. Where the Company has transferred an Asset, the Company
evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the Financial
Asset. In such cases, the Financial Asset is derecognized. Where the Company has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the Financial Asset, the Financial Asset is not
de-recognized. Where the Company retains control of the Financial Asset, the Asset is continued
to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the Financial Asset.

iv) Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred 'loss event') and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial Liabilities

i) Initial Recognition & Measurement
Financial Liabilities are recognized when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the Financial Instrument. The Company determines the classification of
its Financial Liabilities at initial recognition.

All Financial Liabilities are recognized initially at Fair Value, plus, in the case of Financial Liabilities
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of the
Financial Liability.

ii) Subsequent Measurement
After initial recognition, Financial Liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
Effective Interest Method.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the date of the Statement of Financial
Position, the carrying amounts approximate Fair Value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

iii) De-Recognition
A Financial Liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing Financial Liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amount is recognized in the Statement
of Profit or Loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the Statement of Financial
Position where there is legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Reinsurance Assets

Reinsurance assets are the assets which are created against insurance contract liabilities of the amount
which are recoverable from the reinsurer. These assets are created for the reinsurer's share of insurance
contract liabilities.
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Areinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after
the initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the Company may not receive all amounts due to
it under the terms of the contract, and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amount that
the company will receive from the re-insurer. If a reinsurance asset is impaired, the company reduces
the carrying amount accordingly and is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

(i) Equity
Financial Instruments issued by the Company are classified as Equity only to the extent that they do
not meet the definition of a Financial Liability or Financial Asset.

() Reserves and Funds

i) Share Application Money Pending Allotment: If the company has received any calls in advance
amount, the amount will be presented under this head.

ii) Share Premium: If the Company issues share capital at premium, it receives an extra amount other
than share capital such amount is transferred to share premium. The amount in share premium is
allowed for distribution subject to provisions of company act & regulatory requirement.

iii) Catastrophe Reserve: The Company has allocated catastrophe reserve for the amount which is
10% of the distributable profit for the year as per Regulator's Directives.

iv) Fair Value Reserve: The Company has a policy of creating a fair value reserve equal to the amount
of Fair Value Gain recognized in statement of other comprehensive income as per regulator's
directive.

v) Regulatory Reserves: Reserve created out of net profit in line with different circulars issued by
Nepal Insurance Authority.

vi) Actuarial Reserves: Reserve against actuarial gain or loss on present value of defined benefit
obligation resulting from, experience adjustments (the effects of difference between the previous
actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred); and the effects of changes in actuarial
assumptions.

vii) Cashflow Hedge Reserves: Is the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a
particular risk associated with all or a component of a recognized asset or liability or a higher
probable forecast transaction and could affect profit or loss. Reserve represents an effective portion
of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognized in other comprehensive income.

viii)Revaluation Reserves: Reserve created against revaluation gain on property, plant & equipment
& intangible assets, other than the reversal or earlier revaluation losses charged to profit or loss.

ix) Special Reserve: The Company has allocated a special reserve as per Regulator's Directive. 50%
of net profit after adjustment of deferred tax reserve is transferred to special reserve.

x) Other Reserves: Reserve other than the above reserves, for e.g. deferred tax reserve & Corporate
Social Responsibility Reserve.

(k) Insurance Contract Liabilities

i) Provision for unearned premiums
Unearned premiums reserve represents the portion of the premium written in the year but relating
to the unexpired term of coverage.

Change in reserve for unearned insurance premium represents the net portion of the gross written
premium transferred to the unearned premium reserve during the year to cover the unexpired period
of the policies.

ii) Outstanding claims provisions
Outstanding claims provisions are based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but
not settled at the statement of financial position date, whether reported or not, together with related
claims handling costs.
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iii) Provision for claim incurred but not reported (IBNR)
Significant delays are experienced in the notification and settlement of certain types of claims, the
ultimate cost of which cannot be known with certainty at the statement of financial position date.

The liability is calculated at the reporting date using a range of standard actuarial claim projection
techniques, based on empirical data and current assumptions that may include a margin for adverse
deviation.

Liability adequacy

At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk, and a liability adequacy test is
performed to determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred
acquisition costs over unearned premiums. The calculation uses current estimates of future
contractual cash flows after taking account of the investment return expected to arise on assets
relating to the relevant non-life insurance technical provisions. If these estimates show that the
carrying amount of the unearned premiums is inadequate, the deficiency is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss by setting up a provision for liability.

() Employee Benefits

i) Short Term Obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service are recognized in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligation in the Statement of Financial Position.

ii) Post-Employment Benefits

- Defined Contribution Plan

The Company pays Provident Fund contributions to publicly administered Provident Funds as per
local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions
are recognized as Employee Benefit Expenses when they are due.

- Defined Benefit Plan

For the Defined Benefit Plan, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit
Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each statement of financial position.
Actuarial gains & losses are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which
they occur. Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are already
vested and otherwise is amortized on a straight-Line basis over the average period until the benefits
become vested. The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the statement of financial position
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past
service cost, as reduced by the Fair Value of plan Assets (If Any). Any Asset resulting from this
calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions
in future contributions to the plan.

iii) Long Term Employee Benefits
The liabilities for un-availed earned leaves are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. Leave Encashment
has been computed using Actuarial Assumptions and these are measured at the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end
of the year using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The benefits are discounted using the market
yields at the end of the year that have terms approximating to the terms of assumptions.
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iv) Termination
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the company before the normal
retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary retirement in exchange of these benefits.
The company recognizes termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:

a) When the company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and

b) When the entity recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of NAS 37 and
involves the payment of termination benefits. The termination benefits are measured based
on the number of employees expected to accept the offer in case of a voluntary retirement
scheme.

(m) Revenue Recognition

i) Gross Earned Premium
Gross Earned Premiums are arrived at after deducting unearned premium reserves from direct
premium and reinsurance accepted premium. Directs premiums comprise the total premiums
receivable for the whole period of cover provided by contracts entered during the reporting period.
They are recognized on the date on which the policy commences.

ii) Unearned Premium Reserves
Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of
risk after the reporting date. Unearned premiums are calculated on a pro rate basis. The proportion
attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for unearned premium reserves.

iii) Premiums on Reinsurance Accepted
Premiums on reinsurance accepted comprise the total premiums receivable for the whole cover
provided by contracts entered into the period and are recognized on the date on which the policy
incepts. Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect of reinsurance
contracts incepting in prior accounting periods. Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions
of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk after the reporting date.

Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been presented
as negative items within premiums and net benefits and claims, respectively, because this is
consistent with how the business is managed.

iv) Reinsurance Premium
Direct Reinsurance premiums comprise the total premiums payable for the whole cover provided
by contracts entered into the period and are recognized on the date on which the policy incepts.
Premiums include any adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect of reinsurance
contracts incepting in prior accounting periods.

Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate
to periods of risk after the reporting date. Unearned reinsurance premiums are deferred over the
term of the underlying direct insurance policies for risks- attaching contracts and over the term of
the reinsurance contract for losses occurring contracts.

Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been presented
as negative items within premiums and net claims, respectively, because this is consistent with
how the business is managed.

v) Commission Income
Commission Income is recognized on an accrual basis. If the income is for future periods, then they
are deferred and recognized over those future periods.

vi) Investment Income
Interest income is recognized in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by
using the EIR method. Fees and commission that are an integral part of the effective yield of the
financial asset are recognized as an adjustment to the EIR of the instrument.
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(n)

(o)

Investment income also includes dividends when the right to receive payment is established.

vii) Net realized gains and losses
Net realized gains and losses recorded in the statement or profit or loss include gains and losses
on financial assets and properties. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as
the difference between net sales proceeds and the original or amortized cost and are recorded on
occurrence of the sale transaction.

Claims and Expenses

i) Gross Claims
Claims includes the cost of all claims arising during the year, including external claims handling
costs that are directly related to processing and settlement of claims. Benefits and claims that are
incurred during the financial year are recognized when a claimable event occurs and/or the insurer
is notified.

Incurred But Not Reported Claims (IBNR) are determined based on the following actuarial reserving
methods.

a) Chain Ladder Method based on paid claims

b) Chain Ladder Method based on incurred claims

c) Expected loss ratio method

d) Bornhuetter- Ferguson Method based on paid claims

e) Bornhuetter- Ferguson Method based on claims incurred

ii) Reinsurance Claims
Reinsurance claims are recognized when the related gross insurance claim is recognized according
to the terms of the relevant contracts.

Product Classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company has accepted significant insurance risk
from the policyholders by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain future event
(the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, the Company determines
whether it has significant insurance risk by comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured
event did not occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk.

The Company has following portfolios under which it operates its business:

i)  Property Portfolio - Property/Fire insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying
out contracts of insurance, otherwise than incidental to some other class of insurance business
against loss or damage to property due to fire, explosion, storm and other occurrences customarily
included among the risks insured against in the property/fire insurance business.

ii) Motor Portfolio - Motor insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts
of insurance against loss of, or damage to, or arising out of or in connection with the use of, motor
vehicles, inclusive of third-party risks but exclusive of transit risks.

iiiy Marine Portfolio - Marine insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out
contracts of insurance against loss of consignment of goods during transit.

iv) Engineering Portfolio - Engineering insurance business means the insurance that provides economic
safeguard to the risks faced by the ongoing construction project, installation project, and machines
and equipment in project operation.

v) Micro Portfolio - Micro Insurance protects against loss of or damage to micro property, crops and
livestock. It has great potential to provide value to low-income farmers and their communities, both
by protecting farmers when shocks occur and by encouraging greater investment in crops.

vi) Aviation Portfolio — Aviation Insurance provides coverage for hull losses as well as liability for
passenger injuries, environmental and third-party damage caused by aircraft accidents.
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vii) Cattle and Crop Portfolio - Cattle and Crop Insurance provides insurance against loss of or damage
to Cattle and crops.

viii) Miscellaneous Portfolio — All the insurance business which doesn't fall in above categories fall under
miscellaneous insurance business. Group Personal Accidents, Medical Insurances, Professional
indemnity insurance etc. fall under this category of business.

(p) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets is substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

(q) Cash Flow Statement
Cash Flows are reported using the direct method, whereby major classes of cash receipts and cash
payments are disclosed as cash flows.

(r) Leases
The lease liability has been accounted for under NFRS 16 “Leases”. For the lease agreement having
more than Rs 50,000 monthly rate, the Right-of-Use assets have been recognized at its initial recognition
under cash model. The Lease liability has been recognized at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. The lease payment has been discounted at the incremental borrowing
rate in lease which is 10%.

After the commencement date, the right of use asset has been measured using cost model. The lease
liability has been increased to reflect interest on the lease liability & has been reduced by the lease
payment.

(s) Income Taxes
Income Tax Expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable & Deferred Tax.

i) Current Tax
Current Tax Expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate.
Provision for Current Income Tax is made for the Tax Liability payable on Taxable Income after
considering tax allowances, deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the applicable
tax rates and the prevailing tax laws.

ii) Deferred Tax
Deferred Tax is recognized on temporary difference between the carrying amounts of Assets and
Liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position and their Tax Base. Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities
are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of
Assets & Liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting
nor taxable Profit nor Loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred Tax Assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible Temporary difference and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred Tax Liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable Temporary Difference.
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The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the Deferred Tax Asset to be utilized.

(t) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets

i) Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate to
determine the present value is a Pre-Tax Rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognized as interest expenses.

Provisions for Contingent Liability are recognized in the books as a matter of abundant precaution
and conservative approach based on management's best estimate. However, Management believes
that chances of these matters going against the company are remote and there will not be any
probable cash outflow.

ii) Contingent Liabilities
Contingent Liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events due to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Company or where any present obligation cannot be measured in terms
of future outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made.
Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis and only those having a largely probable outflow
of resources are provided for.

iii) Contingent Assets
Contingent assets where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company are
not recognized but disclosed in the Financial Statements.

(u) Functional Currency & Foreign Currency Transactions
The Financial Statements of the Company are presented in Nepalese Rupees, which in the Company's
Functional Currency. In preparing the Financial Statements of the Company, transactions in currencies
other than the Company's Functional Currency i.e. Foreign Currencies are recognized at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

(v) Earnings Per Share
Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the company by
the Weighted Average Number of equities shares outstanding during the Financial Year.

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted
to assumed conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

(w) Operating Segment
Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker (CODM) as defined by NFRS 8," Operating Segment".

Company's Income & Expenses including interest are considered as part of un-allocable Income &
Expenses which are not identifiable to any business segment. Company's Asset & Liabilities are
considered as part of un-allocable Assets & Liabilities which are not identifiable to any business.

Shikhar
-+

ﬂPPI’JM}‘ﬂHGQ




Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

4 Goodwill & Intangible Assets

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Softwares

Goodwill

Others

(to be Specified)

Total

Gross carrying amount

As at Shrawan 01, 2079

Additions during the year

Acquisition

Internal Development

Business Combination (to be Specified)
Disposals during the year
Revaluation/Adjustment

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080
Additions during the year

Acquisition

Internal Development

Business Combination (to be Specified)
Disposals during the year
Revaluation/Adjustment

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2081

Accumulated amortization and impairment
As at Shrawan 01, 2079

Additions during the year

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080

Additions during the year

Disposals during the year

Impairment during the year

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2081

Capital Work-In-Progress

As at Shrawan 01, 2079
Additions during the year
Capitalisation during the year
Disposals during the year
Impairment during the year
Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080
Additions during the year
Capitalisation during the year
Disposals during the year
Impairment during the year
Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2081

Net Carrying Amount
As on Ashadh 31, 2080
As on Ashadh 31, 2081

5,212,779

5,212,779

8,286,426

8,286,426

13,499,205

13,499,205

1,873,000

1,873,000

15,372,205

15,372,205

4,216,331

4,216,331

347,385

347,385

4,563,716

4,563,716

1,076,799

1,076,799

5,640,515

5,640,515

8,935,489

8,935,489

9,731,690

9,731,690
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

6 Investment Properties

Investment Properties at Cost

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Land

Building

Total

Gross carrying amount

As at Sharawan 01 2079
Additions during the year
Acquisition

Subsequent Expenditure

Assets classified as held for sales
Disposals during the year
Revaluation/Adjustment

Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2080
Additions during the year
Acquisition

Subsequent Expenditure

Assets classified as held for sales
Disposals during the year
Revaluation/Adjustment

Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2081

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
As at Sharawan 01 2079
Depreciation during the year
Disposals during the year
Impairment during the year
Transfer/Adjustments

Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2080
Depreciation during the year
Disposals during the year
Impairment during the year
Transfer/Adjustments

Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2081

Capital Work-In-Progress

As at Sharawan 01 2079
Additions during the year
Capitalisation during the year
Disposals during the year
Impairment during the year
Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2080
Additions during the year
Capitalisation during the year
Disposals during the year
Impairment during the year
Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2081

Net Carrying Amount
Net Balance As At Ashad 31, 2080
Net Balance As At Ashad 31, 2081

82,652,887

82,652,887

82,652,887

82,652,887

(2,175,156)

(2,175,156)

80,477,731

80,477,731

2,049,960

2,049,960

2,049,960

2,049,960

82,652,887

82,652,887

78,427,771

78,427,771
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

(i) Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year |Previous Year
Rental income 19,034,979.00 17,891,025
Direct operating expenses from property that generated rental income - -
Direct operating expenses from property that didn't generated rental income - -
Profit from investment properties before depreciation 19,034,979.00 | 17,891,025.00
Depreciation charge 2,049,960 -
Profit from investment properties 16,985,019 17,891,025
7 Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
Through SOPL | Through SOCI Total Through SOPL | Through SOCI Total
Intangible Assets (520,211) - (520,211) (261,577) - (261,577)
Property and Equipment 2,930,255  (50,227,107) (47,296,852) 2,877,561 (50,028,207) | (47,150,646)
Financial Assets at FVPTL - - - - - -
Financial Assets at FVTOCI - 2,989,945 2,989,945 -1 (9,244,590) (9,244,590)
Provision for Leave 11,404,954 3,297,312 14,702,266 10,444,738 3,145,787 13,590,525
Provision for Gratuity 12,017,473 - 12,017,473 12,017,473 - 12,017,473
Impairment Loss on Financial Assets - - - - - -
Impairment Loss on Other Assets 11,046,941 - 11,046,941 11,046,941 - 11,046,941
Earthaquake Reserve 3,258,080 3,258,080
Unearned Premiums Reserve - - - 88,007 - 88,007
Incurred But Not Reported including IBNER 47,169,724 - 47,169,724 52,141,701 - 52,141,701
Margin For Adverse Deviation 3,403,611 - 3,403,611 3,078,838 - 3,078,838
Premium Deficiency Reserve 1,745,902 - 1,745,902 1,598,365 - 1,598,365
Carry forward of unused tax losses - - - - - -
Changes in tax rate - - - - - -
Others (specify if any) - - - - - -
- Unamortized portion of Bond - - - - - -
- Deferred Agency Commission (13,299,274) - (13,299,274) (2,997,728) - (2,997,728)
- Insurance Contract Liabilities net of
Insurance Assest - - - - -
- Lease Expenses (NFRS 16 Impact) 3,456,821 - 3,456,821 2,644,613 - 2,644,613
- Remeasurement of Post-Employment
Benefit Obligations - - - - -
- Deferred Commission Income 59,385,663 - 59,385,663 54,269,120 - 54,269,120
- Provision for Other Loss 2,730,000 - 2,730,000 2,730,000 - 2,730,000
- Share of Net Profit of Associates using
Equity Method (1,225,564)|  (27,121,769) (28,347,333) (1,143,521) 6,038 (1,137,483)
Total 143,504,375| (71,061,619) 72,442,756 148,534,531| (56,120,972) 92,413,559
Deferred Tax Asstes - - 72,442,756 - - 92,413,559
Deferred Tax Liabilities - -
Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
Movements in deferred tax Assets/ (Liabilities)
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
SOPL SOCI Total SOPL SOCI Total
As at Shrawan 1, 2080 148,534,531 (56,120,972) 92,413,559 174,733,680 (45,377,950) | 129,355,730
Charged/(Credited) to Statement of
Profit or Loss (5,030,156) - (5,030,156) |  (26,199,149) - 1(26,199,149)
Charged/(Credited) to Other
Comprehensive Income -| (14,940,647) | (14,940,647) -1(10,743,022) |(10,743,022)
As at Ashadh 31, 2081 143,504,375( (71,061,619) 72,442,756 148,534,531 (56,120,972) | 92,413,559

8 Investment in Subsidiaries

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries - -
Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries - -
Less: Impairment Losses = -
Total = -

Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries

. Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
........... Shares of Rs..........each of .......... Ltd. - - - -
........... Shares of Rs..........each of .......... Ltd. - - - -
Total - - - -
Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries
. Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
........... Shares of Rs..........eachof .......... Ltd. - - - -
........... Shares of Rs..........eachof .......... Ltd. - - - -
Total - o - -

Information Relating to Associates

. Percentage of Ownership

Particulars
Current Year |Previous Year
........... Shares of Rs..........each of .......... Ltd. - -
........... Shares of Rs..........each of .......... Ltd. - -
........... Shares of Rs..........eachof .......... Ltd. - -
........... Shares of Rs..........eachof .......... Ltd. - -
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

9 Investment in Associates

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Quoted Associates

Investment in Unquoted Associates 163,611,239 72,891,606
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Total 163,611,239 72,891,606
Investment in Quoted Associates
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
Cost Fair Value [ (or) Equity Method Cost Fair Value | (or) Equity Method
Shares of ..... Rs. Each of ....... Ltd.

. Shares of ..... Rs. Each of ....... Ltd.

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years

Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year

Total

Investment in Unquoted Associates

) Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
Cost Fair Value | (or) Equity Method Cost Fair Value | (or) Equity Method

106,187 Shares of Rs 100 each of

Machhapuchchhre Capital Limited 9,100,000 9,100,000 9,100,000 9,100,000
600,000 Shares of Rs 100 each of

Kriti Venture Fund 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000 60,000,000
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years 3,791,606 3,851,163
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year 293,608 (39,427)
Add: Share of OCI Income /(loss) for

Current Year - 90,426,025 - (20,130)
Total 69,100,000 163,611,239 69,100,000 72,891,606

Information Relating to Associates

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year| Current Year | Previous Year

Name Machhapuchchhre Capital Limited Kriti Venture Fund

Place of Business Kathmandu Kathmandu

Accounting Method Equity Equity

% of Ownership 3.97% 3.97% 20.00% 20.00%

Current Assets 224,851,061 205,772,506 189,527,708 197,404,332

Non-Current Assets 93,909,915 120,437,072 723,316,414 13,300,892

Current Liabilities 4,404,063 9,496,217 453,474 22,060,399

Non-Current Liabilities 16,427,110 17,136,746 139,583,973 -

Income

Net Profit or Loss 73,571 9,224,727 1,453,434 (2,028,247)

Other Comprehensive Income - (507,061) 452,130,126

Total Comprehensive Income 73,571 8,717,666 453,583,560 (2,028,247)

Company's share of profits

Net Profit or Loss 2,921 366,222 290,687 (405,649)

Other Comprehensive Income - (20,130) 90,426,025 -
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

10 Investments

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investments measured at Amortised Cost 3,729,023,164 3,482,485,324
i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions - -
i) Investment in Debentures 762,817,000 731,146,000
iii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government) - -
iv) Fixed Deposits in "A" Class Financial Institutions 2,447,500,000 2,309,500,000
v) Fixed Deposits in Infrastructure Banks - -
iv) Fixed Deposits in "B" Class Financial Institutions 467,000,000 380,500,000
iv) Fixed Deposits in "C" Class Financial Institutions 34,500,000 45,500,000
v) Investment in Gratuity Fund (CIT) 17,206,164 15,839,324
vi) Others - -
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Investments at FVTOCI 833,276,033 702,839,981
i) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted) 269,840,494 454,592,645
ii) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted) 464,219,413 176,169,214
iii) Investment in Mutual Funds 99,216,126 72,078,122
v) Investment in Debentures - -
v) Others (to be Specified) - -
Investments at FVTPL

i) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted) = -
ii) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted) = -
ii) Investment in Mutual Funds = -
iv) Others -Investment in CIT - -
Total 4,562,299,198 4,185,325,305

a) Details of Impairment Losses

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions
Investment in Debentures

Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/NRB/Guaranteed by
Nepal Government)

Fixed Deposit with"A" Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks

Fixed Deposit with"B" Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposit with"C" Class Financial Institutions

Others (to be Specified)

Total
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

b) Investments having expected maturies less than 12 months:

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted) 269,840,494 454,592,645
Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted) - -
Investment in Mutual Funds 99,216,126 72,078,122
Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions - -
Investment in Debentures - -
Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/NRB/Guaranteed by Nepal Government) - -
Fixed Deposit with"A" Class Financial Institutions 2,447,500,000 2,309,500,000
Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks - -
Fixed Deposit with"B" Class Financial Institutions 467,000,000 380,500,000
Fixed Deposit with"C" Class Financial Institutions 34,500,000 45,500,000
Others -Investment in CIT - -
Total 3,318,056,621 3,262,170,767

c) Information relating to investment in equity instruments

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
Quantity | Cost Price | Fair Value | Quantity Cost Price Fair Value

Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)
Agriculture Development Bank Limited. 4200 | 1,479,324 | 1,234,800 2,431 1,076,520 568,611
Arun Valley Hydropower Development Company Limited. 5543 1,459,971 986,100 2,171 1,182,746 706,605
Asian Life Insurance Company Limited 1,925 | 1,337,221 1,199,275 902 788,674 672,080
Bishal Bazar Company Ltd. 23 87,252 94,001 198 763,757 679,140
Bottlers Nepal (Terai) Limited 100 | 1,200,100 | 1,300,000 80 1,112,549 1,104,000
Central Finance Company Ltd. Promoter Share 188,016 | 15,000,000 | 31,586,688 188,016 15,000,000 79,906,800
Chimmek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 2,623 | 2,705,772 | 2,360,700 2,498 2,704,775 2,498,000
Chilime Hydropower Company Limited. 1,321 648,120 614,265 1,001 547,190 537,237
Chandragiri Hills Limited 100 80,559 90,800 - - -
Citizen Investment Trust - - - 1,300 2,976,090 2,715,700
Citizens Bank International Limited. 15,390 | 5,111,942 | 2,977,965 15,124 5,164,241 2,617,964
City Hotel Ltd. 700 453,390 520,800 - - -
Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 1,000 813,560 841,000 578 745,463 477,428
Everest Bank Limited. 20,687 | 19,486,007 | 11,584,720 20,687 | 19,486,007 11,646,781
Forward Microfinance Lagubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited. 1,004 | 1,344,432 | 1,418,652 6 3,389 7,926
Garima Bikash Bank Ltd. 9,102 | 3,797,210 | 3,505,180 7,342 3,425,678 2,973,510
Global IME Bank Limited. 4,919 | 1,956,090 955,270 5,860 2,358,591 1,089,960
Gurkhas Finance Ltd. 100 67,043 72,000
Global IME Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. - - - 87 - 92,307
First Microfinance Development Bank Limited 500 349,225 340,500
Himalayan Bank Limited. 2,670 714,144 545214 3,470 928,200 738,416
Himalayan Distillery Limited. 2 3,556 2,768 2 3,556 4,496
Hydroelectricity Investment and
Develoment Company Ltd. (promoter) 9,000 918,000 927,000 9,000 929,520 925,200
Himalayan Life Insurance Limited. 3,105 | 1,320,436 | 1,214,055 1,679 1,067,063 851,253
ICFC Finance Limited. 4,708 | 2,765,307 | 2,730,640 - - -
Jyoti Bikas Bank Limited. 9,277 | 4,192,276 | 2,912,978 9,277 4,192,276 2,764,546
Kamana Sewa Bikas Bank Limited. 3,000 | 1,259,970 | 1,248,000 1 - 327
Kumari Bank Limited. 2,094 370,980 321,848 1,694 405,377 279,510
Kumari Bank Limited Promoter Share. 358,211 | 39,011,950 | 37,253,944 358,211 39,011,950 40,728,591
Life Insurance Company Nepal. 3,102 | 4,643,082 | 4,460,676 1,062 1,859,339 1,651,410
Machhapuchchhre Bank Limited. 1,135 218,665 227,000 2 - 464

Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
Quantity | Cost Price | Fair Value [ Quantity Cost Price Fair Value

Manjushree Finance Limited. 1,000 564,240 602,900 - - -
Molung Hydropower Company Limited 2,000 825,180 820,000 - - -
Mountain Energy Nepal Limited 1,025 594,699 611,925 - - -
Muktinath Bikas Bank Limited. 5739 | 2,598,580 | 2,106,213 4,229 2,193,613 1,721,203
Muktinath Krishi Company Ltd. 200 234,856 278,000

Nabil Bank Limited. 792 539,740 415,008 792 749,763 474,566
National Hydropower Company Limited. 1,000 171,900 162,900 2,000 481,900 355,800
National Life Insurance Company Limited. 7,364 | 5,349,501 | 4,381,580 6,232 4,937,161 4,019,640
Nepal Bank Limited. 921 365,766 211,370 1,686 807,661 419,814
Nepal Republic Media Limited 1,000 419,220 437,400 - - -
Ngadi Group Power Limited 800 254,336 272,800 - - -
Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited. 990 840,920 836,550 18 18,637 16,324
Nepal Infrastructure Bank Limited. 1,080 493,830 246,240 1,080 493,830 241,920
Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited. 1,171 298,394 205,042 41,732 10,698,027 7,253,072
Nepal Investment Mega Bank Limited Promoter Share. 47,823 | 12,329,051 | 6,642,655 7,262 2,437,941 1,117,622
Nepal Life Insurance Company Limited. 1,235 764,971 764,465 735 489,429 546,840
Nepal Reinsurance Company Limited 2,171,935 /163,089,374 | 163,093,507 | 2,075,276 | 162,262,129 | 162,272,705
Nepal SBI Bank Ltd. 1 284 328 1 - 341
Nerude Mirmire Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 1 - 720 - - -
NIC Asia Bank Limited. 13,610 | 7,883,697 | 6,031,952 6,942 5,833,771 5,510,560
NIC Asia Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 500 357,000 352,500 1,339 1,647,000 976,131
NMB Bank Limited. 1 - 218 1 - 226
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 2510 2,730,780 | 1,786,869 2,510 2,730,780 1,920,150
Oriental Hotel Ltd. 200 146,626 157,000 - - -
Prabhu Bank Limited. 303,684 | 34,495,073 | 49,713,071 8,604 2,317,779 1,399,010
Prabhu Bank Limited Promoter Share. 189,924 | 15,076,054 | 18,992,400 485,355| 47,710,954 54,845,114
Prabhu Mahalaxmi Life Insurance Limited. 1,000 616,790 564,100 1,000 616,790 587,000
Prime Commercial Bank Limited. 10,663 | 4,396,355 | 2,365,053 12,036 4,912,105 2,347,020
Ridi Power Company Limited. - - - 2,780 867,944 675,540
RMDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. - - - 310 - 240,250
Sana Kisan Bikash Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 661 - 564,296 940 771,485 845,060
Salt Trading Corporation Limited. 33 152,134 161,865 39 158,797 191,061
Sanima Bank Limited. 16,338 | 6,091,623 | 4,558,302 14,989 6,091,679 3,904,635
Sarbottam Cement Ltd. 200 161,602 161,300 - - -
Sanima Mai Hydropower Limited. 5497 | 2,349,130 | 1,866,232 4,725 2,251,467 1,677,375
Sanima Reliance Life Insurance Limited. 1,558 874,614 735,999 1,558 874,614 866,248
Sagarmatha Jalbidhyut Company Ltd. 500 204,730 203,000 - - -
Shivam Cements Limited. 5592 | 3,076,145 2,808,862 3,801 3,403,715 2,476,352
Shine Resunga Development Bank Limited. - - - 1 228 384
Shreejansil Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited. - - - 692 839,368 821,404
Siddhartha Bank Ltd. 8,766 | 3,447,317 | 2,480,778 7,266 3,101,697 1,838,298
Standard Chartered Bank Ltd. 6,440 | 3,344,930 | 3,876,880 7,012 3,596,020 3,717,061
Soaltee Hotel Limited 3,000 | 1,384,000 | 1,326,000 - - -
Sonapur Minerals and Oil Ltd. 2,100 976,470 957,810 - - -
Super Madi Hydropower Limited. 465 205,005 289,230 1,000 455,840 422,000
Synergy Power Development Ltd. 1,000 249,410 254,900 - - -
Laxmi Sunrise Bank Limited. 18,536 | 7,449,026 | 3,243,800 18,536 7,449,026 3,208,582
Sun Nepal Life Insurance Company Ltd. 1,500 892,500 766,950 - - -
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
Quantity | Cost Price | Fair Value [ Quantity Cost Price Fair Value

Suryajyoti Life Insurance Company Limited. 5292 | 3,242,091| 2,275,031 3,528 2,547,745 2,152,080
Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited. 2,274 | 2,263,485| 2,137,560 1,846 2,007,444 1,662,508
Taragaon Regency Hotel 200 145,566 161,400 - - -
Universal Power Company Limited. 3,256 829,238 671,062 3,000 829,260 657,000
Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Ltd. 263,280 | 26,328,000 | 26,328,000 263,280 26,328,000 26,328,000
Upakar Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited. - - - 467 984,310 645,487
Trishuli Jalvidhyut Company Limited 500 268,500 248,500 - - -
Citizen Life Insurance Company Ltd. 322,500 | 32,250,000 | 32,250,000 322,500 32,250,000 32,250,000
Nepal Warehousing Ltd. 600,000 | 60,000,000 | 60,000,000 600,000| 60,000,000 60,000,000
Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)

Lower Erkhuwa Hydropower Co. Ltd. 400,000 | 40,000,000 | 40,000,000 400,000 40,000,000 40,000,000
White Lotus Power Ltd. 379,892 | 37,989,214 | 37,989,214 138,892 13,889,214 13,889,214
Clean City Vehicle Service Ltd. 152,500 | 15,250,000 | 15,250,000 152,500 15,250,000 15,250,000
Sindhuli Agro Co. Ltd. 100,000 | 10,000,000 | 10,000,000 100,000| 10,000,000 10,000,000
Insurance Institute of Nepal. 47,800 | 4,780,000 | 4,780,000 47,800 4,780,000 4,780,000
Power Trade and Exchange Ltd. 21,333 | 2,133,333 | 2,133,333 - - -
Shreenagar Agritech Industires Ltd. 1,000,000 {100,000,000 (100,000,000 - - -
Total 6,792,740 |734,570,863 |734,059,907  5,389,571| 595,800,076 630,761,859

d) The company has earmarked investments amounting to NPR 1,975,900,000.00 to Nepal Insurance

Authority.

11 Loans

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Loans measured at Amortised Cost
Loan to Employees

Others (to be Specified)

Less: Impairment Losses

Total

a) Expected repayment of loan within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Loan to Employees = -
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total - -
12 Reinsurance Assets

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Reinsurance Assets on:

Unearned Premiums Reserve (UPR)
Unexpired Risk Reserve (URR)
Earthaquake Premium Reserve

Incurred but not reported (IBNR)

Incurred but not enough reported (IBNER)
Outstanding Claims

Others- Margin over best estimate

Less: Impairment Losses

Total

2,020,359,256
9,178,550
93,459,687
309,720,096
1,649,974,454

1,932,568,161
18,528,243

319,639,896
1,627,609,989
15,981,995

4,082,692,043

3,914,328,283
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

13 Insurance Receivables

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Receivable from Reinsurer

Receivable from Other Insurance Companies
Others( to be Specified)

Less: Impairment Losses

Total

231,826,754
345,779,306

(36,823,135)

212,353,245
748,863,474

(36,823,135)

540,782,925

924,393,584

a) Expected receivable within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Receivable from Reinsurer

Receivable from Other Insurance Companies
Others (to be Specified)

Total

231,826,754 | 212,353,245
345,779,306 | 748,863,474
577,606,060 | 961,216,719

14 Other Assets

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Capital Advances

Prepaid Expenses 24,506,051 19,651,968
Claim Advances 72,791,895 93,085,688
Advance To Suppliers - -
VAT Receivable -
Staff Advances 39,505,152 38,694,858
Printing and Stationary Stocks - -
Stamp Stocks - -
Deferred Expenses - -
Deferred Reinsurance Commission Expenses - -
Deferred Agent Commission Expenses 44,330,913 9,992,425
Lease Receivables - -
Other Receivable 328,504 1,738,182
Covid Insurance Claim Receivable 182,592,532 180,255,732
Less: Provision for doubtful debt - -
Total 364,055,047 343,418,853

Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

a) Expected to be recovered/ settled within 12 months:

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Capital Advances

19,651,968

Prepaid Expenses 24,506,051

Claim Advances 72,791,895 93,085,688
Advance To Suppliers - -
VAT Receivable - -
Staff Advances 39,505,152 38,694,858
Printing and Stationary Stocks = -
Stamp Stocks - -
Deferred Expenses - -
Deferred Reinsurance Commission Expenses - -
Deferred Agent Commission Expenses 44,330,913 9,992,425
Lease Receivables - -
Other Receivable 328,504 1,738,182
Covid Insurance Claim Recovery 182,592,532 180,255,732
Less: Provision for doubtful debt - -
Total 364,055,047 343,418,853

15 Other Financial Assets

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Security Deposits

Accured Interest

Other Receivables

Other Deposits

Sundry Debtors

Bank Guarantee Margin

Rent Receivable

Water and Electricity Receivable
Subsidy Receivable

Advance Against Investment
Less: Provision for other losses

Total

77,614,297 46,172,033
31,996,452 31,658,726
1,390,689 1,390,689
1,876,323 3,063,264
752,124 1,312,407
606,576,070 511,242,216
- 1,600,000
720,205,955 596,439,335

a) Expected maturies within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year |Previous Year
Security Deposits 77,614,297 46,172,033
Accured Interest 31,996,452 31,658,726
Other Receivables - -
Other Deposits 1,390,689 1,390,689
Sundry Debtors 1,876,323 3,063,264
Other -Bank Guarantee Margin 752,124 1,312,407
Rent Receivable - -
Water and Electricity Receivable = -
Subsidy Receivable 606,576,070 511,242,216
Advance Against Investment - 1,600,000
Less: Provision for other losses = -
Total 720,205,955 596,439,335
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

16 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Cash in Hand

Cheque in Hand

Bank Balances

i) Balance With"A" Class Financial Institutions
ii) Balance With Infrastructure Banks

iii) Balance With"B" Class Financial Institutions
iv) Balance With"C" Class Financial Institutions
Less: Impairment Losses

Deposit with initial maturity upto 3 months
Others (Gold Coins)

Less: Impairment Losses

Total

68,111 207,384
119,953,673 88,973,816
19,305,808 21,374,057
5,316,874 6,191,850
1,207,822 1,105,887
145,852,288 117,852,994

17 (a) Share Capital

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Ordinary Shares

As at Shrawan 1, 2080

Additions during the year

i) Bonus Share Issue

ii) Right Share Issue

As at Ashadh 31, 2081

Convertible Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)
As at Shrawan 1, 2080

Additions during the year

As at Ashadh 31, 2081

Irredeemable Preference Shares (Equity Component Only)
As at Shrawan 1, 2080

Additions during the year

As at Ashadh 31, 2081

2,654,947,300

2,286,081,200

368,866,100

Total

2,654,947,300

2,654,947,300

(i) Ordinary Shares

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Authorised Capital:

40,000,000 Equity Share @ Rs. 100
Issued Capital:

26,549,473 Equity Share @ Rs. 100
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:
26,549,473 Equity Share @ Rs. 100

4,000,000,000

2,654,947,300

2,654,947,300

4,000,000,000

2,654,947,300

2,654,947,300

Total

2,654,947,300

2,654,947,300
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
(ii) Preference Share Capital

Particulars Current Year |Previous Year
Authorised Capital:
........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ........... Each - -
........ Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ........... Each - -
Issued Capital:
........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ........... Each - -
........ Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ........... Each - -
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:
........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. ........... Each - -
........ Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. ........... Each - -
Total - -

(iii) Shareholding Structure of Share Capital

Number of Shares Percentage

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year| Current Year | Previous Year
Promoters
Government of Nepal - - - -
Nepali Organized Institutions 2,350,339 2,350,339 8.86% 8.86%
Nepali Citizens 11,189,891 11,189,891 42.14% 42.14%
Foreigners - - - -
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total (A) 13,540,230 13,540,230 51.00% 51.00%
Other than Promoters
General Public 13,009,243 13,009,243 49.00% 49.00%
Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Total (B) 13,009,243 13,009,243 49.00% 49.00%
Total(A+B) 26,549,473 26,549,473 100.00% 100%

Details of shareholders holding 1% or more than 1% of the aggregate shares in the Company:

Number of Shares Percentage

Particulars Current Year |Previous Year| Current Year | Previous Year

Bikash Jung Bahadur Rana 953,744 953,744 4.04% 4.04%
Buddha Air Pvt. Ltd. 1,639,501 1,639,501 6.18% 6.18%
Gaurav Agrawal 3,271,999 3,271,999 12.32% 12.32%
Kailash Prasad Sirohiya 973,637 973,637 3.67% 3.67%
Pabitra Kumar Karki 444,810 444,810 1.68% 1.68%
Shekhar Basnet 278,015 278,015 1.05% 1.05%
Rajendra Prasad Shrestha 968,277 968,277 3.65% 3.65%
Lomush Investment Pvt. Ltd. 712,837 712,837 2.69% 2.69%
Jitendra Baheti 376,112 376,112 1.46% 1.46%
Kiran Prakash Pandey 298,909 298,909 1.13% 1.13%
Pawan Kumar Agrawal 457,372 457,372 1.72% 1.72%
Shashikanta Agrawal 1,149,485 1,149,485 4.33% 4.33%
Chanda Sherpa 1,694,701 1,694,701 6.38% 6.38%
Birendra Bahadur Basnet 491,852 491,852 1.85% 1.85%
Continue...
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Notes to the Financial Statements

17(b) Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Share Application Money Pending Allotment

Total

17 (c) Share Premium

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

As on Shrawan 1, 2080

Increase due to issue of shares at premium
Decrease due to issue of bonus shares
Transaction costs on issue of share

Others (to be Specified)

As on Ashadh 31, 2081

160,902,639

(160,902,639)

17 (d) Special Reserves

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

As on Shrawan 1, 2080

Additions

Utilizatio

ns

As on Ashadh 31, 2081

1,462,322,731

1,335,849,418

225,168,588

126,473,312

1,687,491,319

1,462,322,730

17 (e) Catastrophe Reserves

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

As on Shrawan 1, 2080 115,620,908 125,669,741
Additions 22,516,859 12,678,439
Utilizations - (22,727,272)

As on Ashadh 31, 2081 138,137,767 115,620,908
Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

17 (f) Retained Earnings

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

As on Shrawan 1, 2080

Opening Adjustment

Restated Balance as on Shrawan 1, 2080

Net Profit or Loss

Iltems of OCI recognised directly in retained earnings
Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations
Transfer to reserves

Revaluation Reserves

Special Reserves

Capital Reserves

Catastrophe Reserves

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserves
Insurance Fund including Insurance Reserves

Fair Value Reserves

Actuarial Reserves

Deferred Tax Reserves

Other Reserve

Share Premium

Transfer from Catastrophe Reserves

Transfer from Regulatory Reserve

Transfer of Depreciation on Revaluation of Property and Equipment
Transfer of Disposal of Revalued Property and Equipment
Transfer of Disposal of Equity Instruments Measured at FVTOCI
Issue of Bonus Shares

Transaction costs on issue of Shares

Dividend Paid

Cash Dividend (Dividend Distribution Tax)

Others -Prior Period Expenses

As on Ashadh 31, 2081

89,456,263

89,456,263
445,307,020

(225,168,588)

(22,516,859)

273,666,342
(34,300,703)
239,365,639
226,125,314

(126,162,231)

(12,616,223)

(4,503,372)|  (2,523,245)
(9,240,879)

5,030,156 | (19,178,801)
160,902,639

-l 22,727,272

242,643

1,892,940 -

-| (368,866,100)

-l (1,905,759)

-l (19,414,005)
(1,988,618) -
287,508,942 89,456,264

17 (g) Other Equity

Particulars Current Year |Previous Year
Revaluation Reserves 399,982,543 401,411,383
Capital Reserves - -
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserves 228,260 257,011
Insurance Fund including Insurance Reserves - -
Regulatory Reserves - -
Fair Value Reserves (6,976,539) 21,570,710
Actuarial Reserves (7,693,727) (7,340,170)
Deferred Tax Reserve 143,504,375 148,534,531
Other Reserve-Investment in Associates 63,284,127 (14,091)
Total 592,329,039 564,419,374
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

18 Provisions

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year |Previous Year
Provision for employee benefits - -
i) Provision for Leave 38,016,513 34,815,792
ii) Provision for Gratuity 40,058,242 40,058,242
ii) Termination Benefits - -
iv) Other Employee Benefit obligations- Bonus 63,525,293 48,614,346
Provision for tax related legal cases - -
Provision for non-tax legal cases - -
Others-Provision for losses for Investment 15,475,000 9,100,000
Total 157,075,048 132,588,380
(a) Movement of Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Description Opening Additions Utilised Reversed Unwinding of Closing
Balance During the Year | During the Year | During the Year Discount Balance

Provision for employee benefits

i) Provision for Leave

i) Provision for Gratuity

iii) Termination Benefits

iv) Other Employee Benefit
obligations (to be Specified)

Provision for tax related legal cases

Provision for non-tax legal cases

Others (to be Specified)

(b) Provision with expected payouts within 12 months

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Provision for emoloyee benefits

i) Provision for Leave

ii) Provision for Gratuity

ii) Termination Benefits

iv)Other Employee Benefit obligations (to be Specified)
Provision for tax related legal cases

Provision for non-tax related legal cases
Others-Provision for losses for Investment

Total

38,016,513

34,815,792

40,058,242 40,058,242
63,525,293 48,614,346
15,475,000 9,100,000
157,075,048 132,588,380

19 Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Unearned Premiums Reserves (UPR)
Unexpired Risk Reserves (URR)
Earthquake Risk Reserve

Margin Over Best Estimates (MOBE)
Incurred but not reported (IBNR)

Incurred but not enough reported (IBNER)
Outstanding Claims

Others

Total

2,805,536,976
14,998,223
10,860,268
11,345,369
139,542,135
452,300,397
1,859,5610,024

2,649,963,179
23,856,125

26,244,788

524,895,768
1,837,278,004

5,294,093,391

5,062,237,863
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

20 Insurance Payable

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Payable to Reinsurer

Payable to Other Insurance Companies
Withdrawal Premium

Withdrawal Claims

Others -Payable to Local Reinsurers
Total

214,734,502.00 37,693,031
- 83,612,704
214,734,502 121,305,735

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Payable to Reinsurer

Payable to other Insurance Companies
Withdrawal Premium

Withdrawal Claims

Others (to be Specified)

Total

214,734,502.00 37,693,031
- 83,612,704
214,734,502 121,305,735

21 Current Tax Assets/(Liabilities) (Net)

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Income Tax Liabilities 174,685,072 233,818,987
Income Tax Assets 303,807,459 239,737,332
Total 129,122,387 5,918,345
22 Borrowings

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Bonds - -
Debentures - -
Term Loans-Bank and Financial Institution - -
Bank Overdrafts 27,000,000 147,801,819
Others -Short term loan - -
Total 27,000,000 147,801,819
Payable within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Bonds - -
Debentures - -

Term Loans-Bank and Financial Institution
Bank Overdrafts

Others (to be Specified)

Total

27,000,000

147,801,819

27,000,000

147,801,819

68hikhar
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
23 Other Liabilities

Particulars Current Year |Previous Year
TDS Payable 17,991,760 10,676,673
VAT Payable 64,383,418 59,021,931
Unidentified deposits 5,813,636 7,595,526
Advance Premiums - -
Insurance Service Fee Payable 40,603,498 41,634,309
Lease Liability 87,450,246 85,690,641
Deferred Reinsurance Commission Income 197,952,209 180,897,068
Deferred Income - -
Others(to be specified) 2,068,680 -
Total 416,263,447 385,516,148

Payable within 12 months

Particulars Current Year |Previous Year
TDS Payable 17,991,760 10,676,673
VAT Payable 64,383,418 59,021,931
Unidentified Deposits 5,813,636 7,595,526
Advance Premiums - -
Insurance Service Fee Payable 40,603,498 41,634,309
Lease Liability 87,450,246 85,690,641
Deferred Reinsurance Commission Income 197,952,209 180,897,068
Deferred Income - -
Others (to be specified) 2,068,680 -
Total 416,263,447 385,516,148

24 Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars Current Year |Previous Year
Redeemable Preference Shares - -
Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares - -
Refundable Share Application Money 209,000 209,000
Payable to Insured 13,561,382 23,051,517
Payable to Agents 25,340,454 10,907,524
Payable to Surveyor 15,977,717 19,075,858
Sundry Creditors 29,600,967 51,324,195
Retention and deposits 944,907 944,907
Short-term employee benefits payable - -
i) Salary Payables 1,713,155 1,703,717
i) Bonus Payables 13,802,214 12,718,032
iii) Other employee benefit payable ( to be Specified) 20,135,074 19,456,503
Audit Fees Payable 624,400 501,750
Actuarial Fees Payable 1,681,575 -
Dividend Payable - -
Petty Cash Payable 1,525,978 1,085,430
Claims Paybable - 166,368,263
Total 125,116,823 307,346,696

@Sh khar
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Payable within 12 months

Particulars

Redeemable Preference Shares
Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares
Refundable Share Application Money
Payable to Insured

Payable to Agents

Payable to Surveyor

Sundry Creditors

Retention and deposits

Short-term employee benefits payable

i) Salary Payables

i) Bonus Payables

iii) Other employee benefit payable ( to be Specified)
Audit Fees Payable

Actuarial Fees Payable

Dividend Payable

Petty Cash Payable

Claims Paybable

Total

Fig. in NPR
Current Year | Previous Year
209,000 209,000
13,561,382 23,051,517
25,340,454 10,907,524
15,977,717 19,075,858
29,600,967 51,324,195
944,907 944,907
1,713,155 1,703,717
13,802,214 12,718,032
20,135,074 19,456,503
624,400 501,750
1,681,575 -
1,525,978 1,085,430
- 166,368,263
125,116,823 307,346,696

25 Gross Earned Premiums

; : Premium on Reinsurance Gross Change in .
Particulars Direct Premiums Accepted Unearned Pre?nium Gross Earned Premiums

Current Year | Previous Year| Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Property 1,370,628,916 | 1,164,803,837 - -1 (32,393,290) (99,830,516) | 1,338,235,626 | 1,064,973,321
Motor 1,304,188,754 | 1,226,515,870 | 144,915,186 212,520,162 | (109,915,438) 152,075,063 |1,339,188,502 | 1,591,111,095
Marine 180,821,628 | 294,259,528 - -| (20,003,839) 202,669,479 160,817,789 496,929,007
Engineering 1,064,702,320 | 1,187,079,760 - - 65,774,948 | (146,764,119)(1,130,477,268 | 1,040,315,641
Micro 1,845,206 5,437,043 - - 1,795,918 (186,251) 3,641,124 5,250,792
Aviation 116,326,752 | 112,606,700 - - (1,860,026) 12,124,038 114,466,726 124,730,738
Cattle and Crop | 723,108,504 | 582,101,657 -| (70,503,423) | (105,245,579)| 652,605,081 476,856,078
Miscellaneous | 507,262,466 | 531,828,064 - - 11,531,353 (35,751,599)| 518,793,819 496,076,465
Total 5,268,884,546 | 5,104,632,459 | 144,915,186 212,520,162 | (155,573,797) (20,909,484) | 5,258,225,935 | 5,296,243,137

25.1 Direct Premiums

Particulars New Business Premium Renewal Premium Co-Insurance Premium Total Direct Premium

Current Year | Previous Year| Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Property 1,370,628,916 | 1,164,803,837 - - - -1,370,628,916 | 1,164,803,837
Motor 1,304,188,754 | 1,226,515,870 - - - -(1,304,188,754 | 1,226,515,870
Marine 180,821,628 | 294,259,528 - - - -| 180,821,628 294,259,528
Engineering 1,064,702,320 | 1,187,079,760 - - - -11,064,702,320 | 1,187,079,760
Micro 1,845,206 5,437,043 - - - - 1,845,206 5,437,043
Aviation 116,326,752 | 112,606,700 - - - -| 116,326,752 112,606,700
Cattle and Crop | 723,108,504 | 582,101,657 - - - -| 723,108,504 582,101,657
Miscellaneous 507,262,466 | 531,828,064 - - -| 507,262,466 531,828,064
Total 5,268,884,546 | 5,104,632,459 -15,268,884,546 | 5,104,632,459
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

26 Premiums Ceded

Fig. in NPR

PremiL!m Ceded to Reinsurer's Share of phange in Premium Ceded
Reinsurers Unearned Premiums
Particulars

Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Property 1,230,598,484| 1,000,483,284 (45,529,199) (48,291,747)(1,185,069,285 | 952,191,537
Motor 560,711,912 414,202,969 |  (172,559,759) 260,814,041 388,152,153 | 675,017,010
Marine 162,476,406 243,176,310 62,292,534 129,841,490 | 224,768,940 | 373,017,800
Engineering 1,025,101,630| 1,182,098,632 83,084,729 (187,193,896) | 1,108,186,359 | 994,904,736
Micro 1,404,150 4179,113 1,387,481 (1,591,414) 2,791,631 2,587,699
Aviation 123,748,380 105,673,369 (7,166,640) 7,869,894| 116,581,740 113,543,263
Cattle and Crop 607,135,438 466,934,610 (70,727,055) (84,181,021)| 536,408,383 | 382,753,589
Miscellaneous 336,963,740| 466,201,013 61,426,814 (41,766,575)| 398,390,554 | 424,434,438
Total 4,048,140,140| 3,882,949,300 (87,791,095) 35,500,772 3,960,349,045 | 3,918,450,072

26.1 Portfolio-wise detail of Net Earned Premiums

Gross Earned Premiums Premium Ceded Net Earned Premium
Particulars

Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Property 1,338,235,626| 1,064,973,321| 1,185,069,285 952,191,537 153,166,341 112,781,784
Motor 1,339,188,502| 1,591,111,095 388,152,153 675,017,010 951,036,349 | 916,094,085
Marine 160,817,789 496,929,007 224,768,940 373,017,800 (63,951,151)| 123,911,207
Engineering 1,130,477,268| 1,040,315,641| 1,108,186,359 994,904,736 22,290,909 45,410,905
Micro 3,641,124 5,250,792 2,791,631 2,587,699 849,493 2,663,093
Aviation 114,466,726| 124,730,738 116,581,740 113,543,263 |  (2,115,014) 11,187,475
Cattle and Crop 652,605,081 476,856,078 536,408,383 382,753,589 116,196,698 94,102,489
Miscellaneous 518,793,819| 496,076,465 398,390,554 424,434,438 120,403,265 71,642,027
Total 5,258,225,935( 5,296,243,137 | 3,960,349,045 3,918,450,0721,297,876,890 | 1,377,793,065

27 Commission Income

Reinsurance Commission Deferred Commission X — .
sl Income Income Profit Commission Commission Income

Current Year | Previous Year| Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Property 279,512,727 | 206,831,088 (6,987,818) 9,641,890 25,156,145 24,959,461| 297,681,054 241,432,439
Motor 62,233,253 66,405,753 (1,555,831) 49,416,553 28,004,964 14,675,101| 88,682,386 130,497,407
Marine 60,982,180 35,603,840 (1,524,555) 1,184,068 914,733 2,374,732| 60,372,358 39,162,640
Engineering 66,449,492 64,959,328 (1,661,237) (7,403,495) 500,607 -| 65,288,862 57,555,833
Micro 210,622 648,862 (5,266) (214,124) - - 205,356 434,738
Aviation 13,711,763 - (342,794) 9,609,699 - - 13,368,969 9,609,699
Cattle and Crop | 106,490,701 79,378,884 (2,662,268) (9,519,650) - -| 103,828,433 69,859,234
Miscellaneous 92,614,869 98,125,519 (2,315,372) (869,727) - -| 90,299,497 97,255,792
Total 682,205,607 | 551,953,274 | (17,055,141) 51,845,214 54,576,449 42,009,295 719,726,915 645,807,783
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28 Other Direct Income

Fig. in NPR

Other Direct Income Other (to be Specified) Total Other Direct Income
Particulars

Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Property - - - -
Motor 37,002,018 11,496,813 37,002,018 11,496,813
Marine - - - -
Engineering - - - -
Micro 1,824,000 1,865,563 1,824,000 1,865,563
Aviation - - - -
Cattle and Crop
Miscellaneous - - - -
Total 38,826,018 13,362,376 38,826,018 13,362,376
29 Income from Investments & Loans

Particulars

Interest Income from Financial Assets Designated at Amortised Costs
i) Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Financial Institutions

i) Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank E

ii) Fixed Deposit with "B" Class Financial Institutions

iv) Fixed Deposit with "C" Class Financial Institutions

v) Debentures

vi) Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government)
vii) Bank Deposits other than Fixed Deposit

xiii) Employee Loans

ix) Other Interest Income ( CIT)

Financial Assets Measured at FVTOCI

i) Interest Income on Debentures

i) Dividend Income

iii) Other Interest Income ( to be specified)

Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL

i) Interest Income on Debentures

i) Dividend Income

iii) Other Interest Income ( to be specified)
Rental Income

Others-Miscellaneous Income

Total

Current Year | Previous Year
198,344,129 | 231,090,488
36,861 ,09$; 37,214,051-
4,019,984 4,637,420
72,446,744 69,030,521
3,538,314; 8,838,20(;
1,230,40(; 1,306,154;
1,553,841- 5,385,412-
19,034,975; 17,891 ,025-
337,029,49(; 375,393,271-
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30 Net Gain/ (Loss) on Fair Value Changes

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Changes in Fair Value of Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL

i) Equity Instruments

i) Mutual Fund

iii) Others (to be specified)

Changes in Fair Value on Investment Properties

Changes in Fair Value on Hedged Items in Fair Value Hedges
Changes in Fair Value on Hedging Instruments in Fair Value Hedges
Gains/(Losses) of Ineffective Portion on Cash Flow Hedges

Other ( to be Specified)

Total

31 Net Realised Gains/ (Losses)

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Realised Gain/(Losses) on Derecognition of
Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL

i)  Equity Instruments

i) Mutual Fund

iii) Others (to be specified)

Realised Gain/(Losses) on Derecognition of
Financial Assets at Amortised Costs

i) Debentures

i) Bonds

iii) Others (to be specified)

(2,225,184)

(16,560,007)

Total

(2,225,184)

(16,560,007)

32 Other Income

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Unwinding of discount on Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
i) Employee Loan - -
i) Bonds - -
ii) Others (to be specified) = -
Foreign Exchange Income 346,369 -
Interest Income from Finance Lease = -
Amortization of Deferred Income = -
Profit from disposal of Property and Equipment (544,533) 2,064,367
Amortization of Deferred Income - -
Stamp Income - -
Others
- Gain on Remeasurement of Lease 2,399,021 -
- Provision written back - 39,361,246
- Miscellaneous 49,673,350 11,064,064
Total 51,874,207 52,489,677
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
33 Gross Claims Paid and Claims Ceded
Gross Claims Paid Claims Ceded Net Claims Paid
Particulars

Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Property 349,396,691 410,019,326 284,721,645 284,401,253 64,675,046 125,618,073
Motor 838,687,603 1,103,574,227 299,111,657 350,452,688 539,575,946 | 753,121,539
Marine 50,879,227 115,702,818 39,768,980 101,300,456 11,110,247 14,402,362
Engineering 87,988,773 86,705,856 69,118,908 61,020,803| 18,869,865 25,685,053
Micro 4,594,182 27,431,031 769,438 3,488,255 3,824,744 23,942,776
Aviation - - - - - -
Cattle and Crop 477,894,524 519,189,696 393,167,935 415,334,307 84,726,589 103,855,389
Miscellaneous 439,334,676 412,321,645 294,220,010 338,601,144 | 145,114,666 73,720,501
Total 2,248,775,676( 2,674,944,599| 1,380,878,573 1,554,598,906| 867,897,103 | 1,120,345,693
33.1 Details of Gross Claim Paid

Claim Paid Survey Fees Total Claims Paid
Particulars

Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Property 349,396,691 410,019,326 -| 349,396,691 410,019,326
Motor 838,687,603| 1,103,574,227 -| 838,687,603 | 1,103,574,227
Marine 50,879,227 115,702,818 -|  50,879,227| 115,702,818
Engineering 87,988,773 86,705,856 -| 87,988,773 86,705,856
Micro 4,594,182 27,431,031 - 4,594,182 27,431,031
Aviation - - - - -
Cattle and Crop 477,894,524 519,189,696 - -| 477,894,524 519,189,696
Miscellaneous 439,334,676| 412,321,645 - -| 439,334,676| 412,321,645
Total 2,248,775,676| 2,674,944,599 -12,248,775,676 | 2,674,944,599

34 Change in Insurance Contract Liabilities

Gross Change in Insurance

Change in Reinsurance

Net Change in Insurance

Particulars Contract Liabilities Assets Contract Liabilities

Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Property (226,488,761)| (194,670,538)| (215,310,450) (179,701,773)| (11,178,311)| (14,968,765)
Motor (13,931,775)|  (36,154,746) 27,028,976 20,694,254 | (40,960,750) | (56,849,000)
Marine 33,102,907 (2,825,792) 29,352,527 (1,908,472) 3,750,380 (917,320)
Engineering 63,407,383 21,424,775 62,464,477 24,394,434 942,906 (2,969,660)
Micro 746,678 | (231,333,605) 1,151,822 (231,236,623) (405,144) (96,982)
Aviation 29,178,769 (7,482,086) 29,579,589 (7,677,893) (400,821) 195,807
Cattle and Crop 218,453,122 71,440,795 178,285,553 62,092,283 40,167,569 9,348,512
Miscellaneous (28,186,592) 23,849,529 (31,979,829) 24,828,329 3,793,237 (978,800)
Total 76,281,731 (355,751,668) 80,572,665 (288,515,461) (4,290,934)| (67,236,207)
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35 Commission Expenses

Fig. in NPR

Commission Expenses | Commission Expenses on Premium|  Deferred Commission Total Commission
Particulars on Direct Premiums on Reinsurance Accepted Expenses Expenses

Current Year|Previous Year| Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Property 8,823,054 7,952,959 - (29,679) | (4,411,527) 273,635 4,411,527 8,196,915
Motor 5,985,087 6,763,964 - (2,992,544) 165,366 2,992,543 6,929,330
Marine 588,671 712,631 1,000,647 (794,659) 59,020 794,659 771,651
Engineering 1,133,521 1,864,200 - (566,761) 3,231 566,760 1,867,431
Micro 21,763 309,955 - (10,882) (25,934) 10,881 284,021
Aviation - - - - - - -
Cattle and Crop | 46,124,803 6,295,528 - (23,062,402) (1,539,441)| 23,062,401 4,756,087
Miscellaneous 4,999,425 5,970,905 - 6,898 | (2,499,713) 23,490 2,499,712 6,001,293
Total 67,676,324 29,870,142 1,000,647 (22,781) | (34,338,488) (1,040,633)( 34,338,483 28,806,728
36 Service Fees

Service Fees Reinsurer's Share of Service Fees Net Service Fees
Particulars
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year |Current Year | Previous Year
Property 10,279,717 9,359,400 8,950,708 8,034,946 1,329,009 1,324,454
Motor 10,868,280 11,562,904 4,078,315 3,328,193 6,789,965 8,234,711
Marine 1,356,162 2,364,426 1,181,766 1,953,964 174,396 410,462
Engineering 7,985,267 9,538,391 7,456,035 9,498,367 529,232 40,024
Micro 13,839 43,688 10,213 33,580 3,626 10,108
Aviation 872,451 904,814 900,079 849,104 (27,628) 55,710
Cattle and Crop 5,423,314 4,677,288 4,415,975 3,751,900 1,007,339 925,388
Miscellaneous 3,804,468 4,273,331 2,450,892 3,750,131 1,353,576 523,200
Total 40,603,498 42,724,242 29,443,983 31,200,185 11,159,515 11,524,057
37 Other Direct Expenses
Other Direct Expenses Other (to be Specified) Total Other Direct Expenses
Particulars
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Property - - - - - -
Motor 18,343,694 13,450,643 - .| 18,343,694 13,450,643
Marine - - - - - -
Engineering - - - - - -
Micro 71,901 214,445 - - 71,901 214,445
Aviation - - - - - -
Cattle and Crop 2,799,828 3,135,620 - - 2,799,828 3,135,620
Miscellaneous - - - - - -
Total 21,215,423 16,800,708 21,215,423 16,800,708
S hi khar
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38 Employee Benefits Expenses

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Salaries

Allowances

Festival Allowances
Medical Allowamces

Defined Benefit Plans
i) Gratuity
i) Leave

Defined Contribution Plans
i) Provident Fund/ Social Security Fund
i) Gratuity

Leave Encashments
Termination Benefits
Training Expenses

Uniform Expenses

Staff Medical Expenses

Staff Insurance Expenses
Staff Welfare

Vehicle Allowance

Other Allowances

Sub Total

Employees Bonus

Total

143,352,738 | 135,264,564
201,815,696 190,830,709
27,624,931 26,145,423
36,847,303 23,218,822
28,670,548 27,051,063
4,836,050 3,094,941
9,696,340 8,986,752
6,005,358.0 6,299,712
11,877,983 10,652,017
9,045,728 9,966,779
20,231,948 20,799,317
5,588,034 5,096,337
505,592,657 | 467,406,436
62,718,962 48,614,345
568,311,619| 516,020,781

39 Depreciation and Amortization Expenses

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Amortization of goodwill & Intangible Assets (Refer Note. 4)
Depreciation on Property and Equipment (Refer Note.5)
Depreciation on Investment Properties (Refer Note. 6 )
Total

1,076,799 347,385
45,343,354 36,503,009
2,049,960 -
48,470,113 36,850,394
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Fig. in NPR

40 Impairment Losses

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Impairment Losses on Property and Equiment, Investment\
Properties and Goodwill & Intangible Assets

i) Property and Equipment - -
ii) Investment properties - -
iii) Goodwill & Intangible Asssets - -

Impairment Losses on Financial Assets
i) Investments 6,375,000 -
ii) Loans = -
ii) Other Financial Assets = -
iv) Cash and Cash Equivalents = -
v) Others (Investment in MCL) - -

Impairment Losses on Other Assets
i) Reinsurance Assets S -
ii) Insurance Receivables - 36,823,135
iii) Lease Receivables = -
iv) Others (Doubtful Debt) - -
Total 6,375,000 36,823,135

41 Other Operating Expenses

Particulars Current Year |Previous Year
Rent Expenses 25,792,436 21,394,639
Electricity and Water 5,302,316 7,129,991
Repair & Maintenance
i) Building 281,341 961,669
i) Vehicle 2,668,181 2,583,434
iii) Office Equipments 1,341,345 648,800
iv) Others (to be Specified) 3,481,162 2,221,738
Telephone & Communication 13,253,749 12,020,268
Printing & Stationary 19,626,723 18,723,172
Office Consumable Expenses 12,361,146 12,011,508
Travelling Expenses
i) Domestic 4,333,287 4,268,976
i) Foreign 3,345,648 1,022,000
Transportation & Fuel Expenses 27,213,379 25,374,973
Agent Training 98,649 -
Other Agent Expenses - -
Insurance Premium 6,789,070 6,519,434
Security & Outsourcing Expenes 6,073,537 5,780,584
Legal and Consulting Expenses 9,817,512 8,776,271
Newspapers, Books and Periodicals 147,009 138,585
Advertisement & Promotion Expenses 22,229,870 20,999,177
Business Promotion 14,063,517 6,911,740

Continue...
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Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Guest Entertainment 3,461,095 1,591,615
Gift and Donations 1,273,212 545,044
Board Meeting Fees and Expenses

i) Meeting Allowances 4,302,000 2,564,000
ii) Other Allowances 407,567 839,446
Other Committee/ Sub-committee Expenses

i) Meeting Allowances 3,347,800 2,142,873
ii) Other Allowances 989,359 388,967
Annual General Meeting Expenses 2,678,590 3,439,928
Actuarial Service Fee 2,684,865 2,206,772
Other Actuarial Expenses - -
Audit Related Expenses

i) Statutory Audit 500,000 325,000
i) Tax Audit 30,000 75,000
iii) Long Form Audit Report 30,000 50,000
iv) Other Fees 844,284 1,480,174
v) Internal Audit 600,000 500,000
vi) Other -Audit Expenses 1,304,480 1,219,736
Bank Charges 1,128,235 1,508,380
Fee and Charges - -
Postage Charges 5,195,919 4,771,352
Foreign Exchange Losses - 15,238,354
Fines and Penalties - -
Others (to be Specified)

a. Membership and subscription fees 120,000 110,000
b. Pooja expenses 634,564 651,009
c. Notice Expenses 1,407,353 754,567
d. Miscellaneous 1,924 1,289,932
e. Computer support service 6,308,428 4,495,253
f. Other Program Expenses 7,457,915 8,499,947
g. Ghumti Beema 378,727 396,315
h. CSR Expenses 1,914,822 2,575,182
i. Rate and Duties 4,744,678 5,651,837
j- Insurance Awarness program 536122 -
Total 230,501,816 220,797,642

42 Finance Cost

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Unwinding of discount on Provisions

Unwinding of discount on Financial Liabilities at Amortised Costs
Interest Expenses - Bonds

Interest Expenses - Debentures

Interest Expenses - Term Loans

Interest Expenses - Leases

Interest Expenses - Overdraft Loans

Others ( to be Specified)

Total

9,764,878 9,215,004
22,469,299 32,155,352
32,234,177 41,370,356
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43 Income Tax Expense

(a) Income Tax Expense

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Current Tax
i) Income Tax Expenses for the Year 174,685,072 149,505,967
i) Income Tax Relating to Prior Periods 2,167,381 84,313,020
Deferred Tax For The Year
i)  Originating and reversal of temporary differences 5,030,156 26,199,149
ii) Changes in tax rate - -
iii) Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - -
iv) Write-down or reversal - -
v) Others ( to be Specified) - -
Income Tax Expense 181,882,609 260,018,136

(b) Reconciliation of Taxable Profit & the Accounting Profit

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Accounting Profit Before Tax 627,189,629 486,143,450
Applicable Tax Rate 30% 30%
Tax at the applicable rate on Accounting Profit 188,156,889 145,843,035
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose
i) Donation 381,964 163,513
i) Inadmissible Expenses - 772,555
iii) Unabsorbed repairs 12,879 -
iv) Depreciation as per books 14,541,034 11,055,118
v) Provision for leave 808,692 625,275
v) Provision for Doubtfuldebt - 11,046,941
vi) Tax effect of bonus share distributed from share premium - 48,270,792
Less: Tax effect on exempt income and additional deduction
i) Dividend Income 466,152 (1,615,624)
ii) Provision written back - (11,808,374)
i )Depreciation as per the Act 10,575,897 (9,160,812)
iv) (Profit) Loss on Sale of Fixed Asset - (619,310)
Less: Adjustments to Current Tax for Prior Periods 2,167,381
Add/ (Less): Others (to be Specified)
i) Adjustment for Profit as per NFRS and GAAP (35,228,278)| (45,067,142)
i) Fine and Penalties - -
Income Tax Expense 181,882,609 149,505,967
Effective Tax Rate 29% 31%
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44 Employee Retirement Benefits

a) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Contribution Plans
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 (15th July, 2024 ) the company has recognised an amount of NPR.
3,200,721.00 as an expenses under the defined contribution plans in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

b) Post Employment Benefit - Defined Benefit Plans
For Defined Benefit Plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, with Actuarial Valuations being carried out.

c) Total Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss

Fig. in NPR

Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year

Current service cost 4,437,806 4,636,651 2,077,849 2,031,720
Past service cost - - - -
Net interest cost - - - -
a. Interest expense on defined benefit obligation (DBO) 2,149,885 1,748,087 984,000 861,949
b. Interest (income) on plan assets - - - -
c. Total net interest cost

Net Actuarial Losses/(Gains) Recognised during the period - - - -
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or Loss 6,587,691 6,384,738 3,061,849 2,893,669

d) Remeasurement effects recognised in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars - -
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year
a. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to financial assumption
changes in DBO 1,415,023 (1,397,247) 662,614 (634,009)
b. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to experience on DBO - (143,094) - (64,455)
b. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to demographic assumptions (1,230,195) 4,104,309 (342,359) 1,168,597
d. Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount rate - - - -
Total actuarial (gain)/ loss included in OCI 184,828 2,563,968 320,255 470,133
e) Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income
Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars - -
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year
Cost recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 6,587,691 6,384,738 3,061,849 2,893,669
Remeasurements effects recognised in OCI 184,828 2,563,968 320,255 470,133
Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income 6,772,519 8,948,706 3,382,104 3,363,802
Continue...
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Fig. in NPR
f) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation

Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars - -
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year
Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 23,900,390 20,010,059 10,915,402 9,687,382
Service cost 4,437,806 4,636,651 2,077,849 2,031,720
Interest cost 2,149,885 1,748,087 984,000 861,949
Benefit payments from plan assets (4,803,090) (5,058,375) (2,150,811) (2,135,782)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - financial assumptions 1,415,023 (1,397,247) 662,614 (634,009)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - demographic assumptions - (143,094) (342,359) 1,168,597
Actuarial (gain)/ Loss - experience (1,230,195) 4,104,309 - (64,455)
Defined Benefit Obligation As At Year End 25,869,819 23,900,390 12,146,695 10,915,402
g) Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets
] Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars - -
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year

Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year
Expected return on plan assets

Employer contributions

Participant contributions

Benefit payments from plan assets

Transfer in/ transfer out

Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets

Fair value of Plan Assets At End of Year

h) Net Defined Benefit Asset/(Liability)

Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars - -
Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Defined Benefit Obligation 25,869,819 23,900,390 12,146,695 10,915,402
Fair Value of Plan Assets - - - -
(Surplus)/Deficit Recognised in Statement of
Financial Position 25,869,819 23,900,390 12,146,695 10,915,402
i) Expected Company Contributions for the Next Year
Home Leave Sick Leave

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Expected company contributions for the next year
(Surplus)/Deficit Recognised in Statement of
Financial Position

Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

i) Reconciliation of amounts in Statement of Financial Position

Fig. in NPR

Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars
Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Net defined benefit liability/(asset) at prior year end 23,900,390 20,010,059 10,915,402 9,687,382
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or Loss 6,587,691 6,384,738 3,061,849 2,893,669
Total remeasurements included in OCI 184,828 2,563,968 320,255 470,133
Acquisition/ divestment - - - -
Employer contributions (4,803,090) (5,058,375) (2,150,811) (2,135,782)
Net defined benefit liability/(asset) 25,869,819 23,900,390 12,146,695 10,915,402
k) Reconciliation of Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
Home Leave Sick Leave

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss, beginning of period

Total remeasurements included in OCI 184,828 2,563,968 320,255 470,133
Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss 184,828 2,563,968 320,255 470,133
I) Current/Non - Current Liability
Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars
Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Current Liability 3,488,711 3,744,502 1,642,170 1,726,919
Non - Current Liability 22,381,107 20,155,888 10,504,526 9,188,483
Total 25,869,818 23,900,390 12,146,696 10,915,402
m) Expected Future Benefit Payments
Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars
Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Within 1 year 3,642,321 3,927,267 1,714,476 1,811,208
Between 1-2 years 3,539,454 3,363,853 1,671,836 1,534,038
Between 2-5 years 6,844,847 9,128,151 4,537,957 4,168,973
From 6 years and beyond 3,907,263 30,431,324 16,296,684 155,564,888
Total 17,933,885 46,850,595 24,220,953 163,079,107
n) Plan assets
Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars
Current Year | Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

(% Invested)

(% Invested)

(% Invested)

(% Invested)

Government Securities (Central and State)
Corporate Bonds (including Public Sector bonds)
Mutual Funds

Deposits

Cash and bank balances

Others (to be Specified)

Total
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
o) Sensitivity Analysis
Home Leave Sick Leave
Particulars - -
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year Previous Year
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Increase in Discount Rate 24,444,795 22,669,140 11,484,081 10,356,051
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Decrease in Discount Rate 27,458,066 25,276,487 12,890,099 11,540,140
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Increase in Salary Escalation Rate 27,467,499 25,297,638 12,894,340 11,549,412
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Decrease in Salary Escalation Rate 24,422,146 22,630,408 11,468,939 10,338,742
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Increase in Attrition Rate 26,087,358 24,179,567 12,248,174 11,041,181
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1%
Decrease in Attrition Rate 25,628,947 23,591,220 12,034,421 10,776,236
p) Assumptions
Particulars Home Leave Sick Leave
Discount Rate 9.00% 9.00%
Escalation Rate (Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels) 7.00% 7.00%
Attrition Rate (Employee Turnover) 8.00% 8.00%
Mortality Rate During Employment NALM 2009 NALM 2009

45 Fair Value Measurements

(i) Financial Instruments by Category & Hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the Fair Values of the Financial
Instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at Amortised Cost
and for which Fair Values are disclosed in the Financial Statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining Fair Value, the Company
has classified its financial instruments into Three Levels prescribed as per applicable NFRS.

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
Level FVTPL FVOCI |Amortised Cost| FVTPL FVOCI | Amortised Cost
Investments
i) Investment in Equity Instruments - - - - - -
Investment in Equity (Quoted) 1 - | 269,840,494 - - 454,592,645 -
Investment in Equity (Quoted) 3 -| 464,219,413 - -(176,169,214 -
ii) Investment in Mutual Funds 1 -| 99,216,126 - -| 72,078,122 -
iii) Investment in Preference Shares
of Bank and Financial Institutions - - - - -
iv) Investment in Debentures 3 - - 762,817,000 - 731,146,000
v) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/
NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government) 3 - - - - -
vi) Fixed Deposits 3 - - | 2,949,000,000 -| 2,735,500,000
vii) Others (to be specified) 3 - - 17,206,164 - 15,839,324
Loans 3 - - - - -
Other Financial Assets 3 - 720,205,955 - - 596,439,335
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 145,852,288 - -| 117,852,994 - -
Total Financial Assets 145,852,288 | 833,276,033 | 4,449,229,119( 117,852,994 702,839,981 4,078,924,659
Loans and Borrowings - - 27,000,000 - - 147,801,819
Other Financial Liabilities 3 - - 125,116,823 - - 307,346,696
Total Financial Liabilities 152,116,823 - 455,148,515
Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Level 1

Level 2

Level 1 Hierarchy includes Financial Instruments measured using Quoted Prices.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using

valuation techniques which maximises the use of observable market data and rely as little as
possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to determine Fair Value
of an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3
is included in Level 3.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument

There is no transfer of Financial Instruments between different levels as mentioned above during the year.

(ii) Valuation Technique Used to Determine Fair Value

a) Use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

b) Fair Value of remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis

(iii) Valuation Process

The finance and accounts department of the Company performs the valuation of financial assets and
liabilities required for financial reporting purposes. Discussion on valuation processes and results are

held at least once in a year.

The main level 3 inputs are derived and evaluated as follows:
a) Discount rate is arrived at considering the internal and external factors.
b) Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of the

discounting is material

(iv) Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Carrying Amount

Fair Value

Carrying Amount

Fair Value

Investments

i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and
Financial Institutions

i) Investment in Debentures

iii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/
Guaranteed by Nepal Government)

iv) Fixed Deposit

v) Others (to be Specified)

Loans

i) Loan to Associates

ii) Loan to Employees

v) Others (to be Specified)

Other Financial Assets

Total Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

Loans and Borrowings

i) Bond

ii) Debenture

iif)y Term Loan - Bank and Financial Institution

iv) Bank Overdraft

v) Others (to be Specified)

Other Financial Liabilities

Total Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost

762,817,000

2,949,000,000

720,205,955

762,817,000

2,949,000,000

720,205,955

731,146,000

2,735,500,000

15,839,324.00
596,439,335

731,146,000

2,735,500,000

15,839,324.00
596,439,335

4,432,022,955

4,432,022,955

4,078,924,659

27,000,000

125,116,823

27,000,000

125,116,823

4,078,924,659

147,801,819

307,346,696

147,801,819

307,346,696

152,116,823

152,116,823

455,148,515

455,148,515

The fair values of the above financial instruments measured at amortised cost are calculated based on cash

flows discounted using current discount rate.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to

their short-term nature.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements
46 Insurance Risk

Insurance risk includes the risk of incurring higher claims costs than expected owing to the random nature
of claims, frequency and severity and the risk of change in the legal or economic conditions of insurance
or reinsurance cover. This may result in the insurer having either received too little premium for the risks it
has agreed to underwrite and hence has not enough funds to invest and pay claims, or that claims are in
excess of those expected.

The Company seeks to minimise insurance risk through a formalised reinsurance arrangement with an
appropriate mix and spread of business between classes of business based on its overall strategy. This is
complemented by observing formalised risk management policies.

The Company considers insurance risk to be a combination of the following components of risks:
a) Product development

b) Pricing

c) Underwriting

d) Reinsurance

e) Claims Handling

f) Reserving

a) Product development:
The Company principally issues the following types of Non-Life Insurance contracts:
- Fire
- Motor
- Marine
- Engineering
- Micro
- Aviation
- Cattle and Crop
- Miscellaneous

The significant risks arising under the Non-Life Insurance portfolio emanates from changes in the climate
leading to natural disasters, behavioral trends of people due to changing life styles, the steady escalation
of costs in respect of spares in the auto industries.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by the diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts
and geographical areas. The variability of risks is improved by careful selection and implementation of
underwriting strategies, which are designed to ensure that risks are diversified in terms of type of risk
and level of insured benefits.

Furthermore, strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed review
of claims handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims are put in place
to reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The Company further enforces a policy of actively managing
and promptly pursuing claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that
can negatively impact the business.

b) Pricing:
The pricing of an insurance product involves the estimation of claims, operational and financing costs
and the income arising from investing the premium received. The pricing process typically comprises
collecting data on the underlying risks to be covered, determining the pricing assumptions and the base
rate, setting the final premium rate, and monitoring the review of the appropriateness of pricing.

Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The Company collects adequate data to validate the reasonableness of the underlying assumptions
used for pricing. The base rate represents the amount required to meet the value of anticipated benefits,
expenses, and margins for risks and profit. Data primarily relates to the company's own historical
experience and that of the industry where relevant. These may be supplemented by other internal and
external data, and could include trends observed in claims costs and expenses.

Pricing is done by modelling all identified risks, using appropriate methodologies depending on the
complexity of the risks and available data. Adequate buffers are kept in the premiums to cushion against
the risk that actual experience may turn out to be worse than expected.

c) Underwriting:
The Company’s underwriting process is governed by the by the internal underwriting procedures. Some
of the actions undertaken to mitigate underwriting risks are detailed below:

i) Investments are made on the training and development of underwriting and claims management
staff, including those attached to the distribution network.

i) Application of Four-Eye principle on underwriting process.

iii) Pre-underwriting inspections are made on new business over a predetermined threshold to evaluate
risk prior to acceptance

iv) Post-underwriting reviews are conducted to ensure that set guidelines have been observed.

v) Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place and reviews are undertaken to ensure the adequacy
of these covers

d) Reinsurance

The Company purchases reinsurance as part of its risks mitigation programme. Premium ceded to the
reinsurers is in accordance with the terms of the programmes already agreed based on the risks written
by the insurance companies. Recoveries from reinsurers on claims are based on the cession made in
respect of each risk and is estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provisions made
for the loss. Although we mitigate our exposures through prudent reinsurance arrangements, the obligation
to meet claims emanating from policy holders rests with the Company. Default of reinsurers does not
negate this obligation and in that respect the Company carries a credit risk up to the extent ceded to
each reinsurer.

~

e) Claims handling:
Some of the actions undertaken to mitigate claims risks is detailed below:

i) Claims are assessed immediately.

ii) Assessments are carried out by in-house as well as independent assessors / loss adjustors working
throughout.

iii) The service of a qualified independent actuary is obtained annually to assess the adequacy of
reserves made in relation to Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) and

iv) Incurred But Not Enough Reported (IBNER) claims.
v) Post-underwriting reviews are conducted to ensure that set guidelines have been observed.

vi) Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place and reviews are undertaken to ensure the adequacy
of these covers

Sensitivities
The non-life insurance claim liabilities are sensitive to the key assumptions as mentioned in the table
below.

The following analysis is performed for reasonably possible movements in key assumptions with all other
assumptions held constant, showing the impact on gross and net liabilities, profit before tax and profit
after tax. The correlation of assumptions will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate claims
liabilities, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in assumptions, assumptions had to be changed
on an individual basis.

Continue...
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f) Reserving

Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR

Insurance Contract Liabilities are created to cover this risk based on the actuarial valuation report.

The table below sets out the concentration of risk associated with above mentioned products. Risk as at
year end has been measured as insurance contract liabilities and disclosed as below:

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
Insurance Assets Liabilities Insurance Assets Liabilities
Liabilities Liabilities
Fire 943,316,370| 830,597,921 112,718,449| 1,137,411,840 1,000,379,172 137,032,668
Motor 1,222,966,928| 499,778,270 723,188,658| 1,126,983,264 300,189,535 826,793,729
Marine 257,436,190| 140,228,707 117,207,484 204,329,444 173,168,714 31,160,731
Engineering 781,537,889 752,878,964 28,658,925 783,905,454 773,499,215 10,406,239
Micro 955,726,623| 955,356,871 369,752 956,775,863 955,592,530 1,183,333
Aviation 93,890,508 93,510,792 379,716 62,851,714 56,764,563 6,087,151
Cattle and Crop 689,498,444 568,940,577 120,557,867 400,541,899 319,927,969 80,613,930
Miscellaneous 349,720,439 241,399,942 108,320,497 389,438,385 334,806,585 54,631,800
Total 5,294,093,391| 4,082,692,043| 1,211,401,348( 5,062,237,863 3,914,328,283 1,147,909,580

47 Financial Risk Management

The Company's activities expose it to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk & Market Risk.

i) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss as a result of the default or failure of third parties to meet their
payment obligations to the Company. Thus, for an insurance contract, credit risk includes the risk that
an insurer incurs a financial loss because a reinsurer defaults on its obligations under the reinsurance

contract.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company’s exposure to credit

risk:

a) Company has credit risk policy which sets out the assessment and determination of what constitutes
credit risk for the Company. Compliance with the policy is monitored and exposures and breaches
are reported to the Company’s risk committee. The policy is regularly reviewed for pertinence and
for changes in the risk environment.

b) Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentration of risk
is avoided by entering into agreement with more than one party. At each reporting date, management
performs an assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the reinsurance purchase
strategy, ascertaining suitable allowance for impairment.

c) The company deals with only creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufficient collateral where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashad 31, 2081
Gross Expected Carrying
Particulars éf:j; Carrying | Probability of crgéﬂeféig os | Amount After
Amount Default Provision
Credit Risk has not significantly increased hw%?sﬁlg)&lvaatq%emonths
since initial recognition expected credit losses - - - -
Credit Risk has significantly increased and Loss allowance
not credit impaired measured at life-time - - - -
expected credit losses
Credit Risk has significantly increased and
credit impaired - - - _
Expected Credit Losses for Financial Assets at Amortised Costs as at Ashad 31, 2080
Gross Expected Carrying
Particulars éf;j; Carrying | Probability of Crggigelf;gges Amount After
Amount Default Provision
Credit Risk has not significantly increased Irﬁ(:asassﬁlg)&”;q%emonths
since initial recognition expected credit losses - - - -
Credit Risk has significantly increased and Loss allowance
not credit impaired measured at life-time - - - -
expected credit losses
Credit Risk has significantly increased and
credit impaired - - - -
Reconciliation of Loss Allowance Provision
Measured at life-time expected credit losses
Measured at 12 months

Particulars

expected credit losses

Credit Risk has
significantly increased
and not credit impaired

Credit Risk has
significantly increased
and credit impaired

Loss Allowance on Ashad 31, 2078
Changes in loss allowances
Write-offs

Recoveries

Loss Allowance on Ashad 32, 2079

ii) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. In respect of catastrophic
events there is also a liquidity risk associated with the timing differences between gross cash out—flows
and expected reinsurance recoveries.

Maturity of Financial Liabilities:
The table below summarises the Company's Financial Liabilities into Relevant Maturity Groupings based
on their Contractual Maturities for all Financial Liabilities.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars 1 Year to More than 1 Year to More than
Upto 1 Year 5 Year 5 Year Upto 1 Year 5 Year 5 Year
Borrowing 27,000,000 - - 200,228,619 -
Other Financial Liabilities 125,116,823 - - 200,736,039 -
Total Financial Liabilities 152,116,823 - - 400,964,658

iii) Market Risk

al) Foreign Currency Risk Exposure
Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Company to experience volatility in the value of its
assets, liabilities and solvency and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of changes in value
between the currencies of its assets and liabilities and its reporting currency. The Company does
not maintain foreign currency denominated assets in its investment portfolios and as such is not
exposed to foreign exchange risk related to investments.

Alternative note for Foreign Currency Risk Exposure (where there is Foregn Currency Risk)
Operation of the Company has exposed it to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency
transactions, with respect to the USD and Indian Rupees. The risk is measured through a forecast
of highly probable foreign currency cash flows. The objective of the hedges is to minimise the
volatility of the NPR cash flows of highly probable forecast transactions.

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in
NPR, are as follows:

. Current Year Previous Year
Particulars

usb Indian Rupees usb Indian Rupees

Investments . - - R
Loans - - - R
Insurance Receivables 914,552 68,663,810 505,430 91,284,974
Other Financial Assets - - .

Less: Derivative Assets
i) Foreign exchange forward contracts - Sell Foreign Currency - - - -
ii) Foreign exchange option contracts - Sell Foreign Currency - - - -

Net Exposure to Foreign Currency Risk/ (Assets) 914,552 68,663,810 505,430 91,284,974

Insurance Payables 25,930 - 286,052 -
Other Financial Liabilities = - .

Less: Derivative Liabilities
i) Foreign exchange forward contracts - Buy Foreign Currency - - - -
ii) Foreign exchange option contracts - Buy Foreign Currency - - - -

Net Exposure to Foreign Currency Risk/ (Liabilities) 25,930 - 286,052

Continue...
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
a2) Foreign Currency Risk - Sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency
denominated financial instruments and the impact on the other components of equity arising from foreign
forward exchange contracts, foreign exchange option contracts designated as cash flow hedges

. Impact on profit after tax Impact on other component of equity
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

USD sensitivity
NPR/ USD - Increases by 10% * 8,295,467 2,014,312 - (8,402,399)
NPR/ USD - Decreases by 10% * (8,295,467) (2,014,312) - 8,402,399
INR sensitivity
NPR/ Currency A - Increases by 10% * 7,697,556 10,233,502 - -
NPR/ Currency A - Decreases by 10% * (7,697,556) (10,233,502) - -

* Holding all other variable constant

b1) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The major interest rate risk that the Company is exposed to is the discount rate for determining insurance
liabilities.

b2) Interest Rate Sensitivity
Profit or Loss is sensitive to changes in Interest Rate for Borrowings. A change in Market Interest Level

by 1% which is reasonably possible based on Management's Assessment would have the following
effect on the Profit After Tax.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Interest Rate - Increase By 1%*
Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%*

(611,806)
611,806

(1,034,613)
1,034,613

* Holding all other Variable Constant
c1) Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in equity prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer,
or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company has invested in equity securities and the exposure is equity securities price risk from
investments held by the Company and classified in the statement of financial position as fair value
through OCI.

c2) Sensitivity

The table below summarises the impact of increase/decrease of the index in the Company’s equity and
impact on OCI for the period. The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had
increased/ decreased by 1% with all other variables held constant, and that all the Company's equity

instruments moved in line with the index.

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Interest Rate - Increase By 1%* = -

Interest Rate - Decrease By 1%* = -

* Other components of equity would increase/decrease as a result of gains/ (losses) on equity securities classified as fair
value through other comprehensive income.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

48 Operation Risk

Operational Risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss, or damaged reputation resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems or external events. When controls fail to perform, operational
risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to financial loss.
The Company cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous control framework
and by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks. Controls
include effective segregation of duties, access controls, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff
education and assessment processes, including the use of internal audit. Business risks such as changes
in environment, technology and the industry are monitored through the Company’s strategic planning and
budgeting process.

49 Climate Risk

Risk Governance

The board oversees climate change related matters through the Risk Management Committee. The Climate
Change Risk Officer is to be responsible for overseeing climate change risk related matters at the senior
management level. The CCO shall report to the Chief Executive Officer and the Risk Management Committee.
All heads of the departments, heads of Province office, branch offices and subbranch offices shall be
responsible for the implementation of the climate related policy of the company.

Risk Identification and Assessment
Risks relating to climate change shall be identified at the operational level. For recognizing climate change
related risks, suitable scenario analysis and stress testing mechanism shall be developed.

Risk Measurement

While measuring business implications of climate change, the way climate related risks and opportunities
are likely to affect current and future financial performance in terms of major impact categories (revenue
and expenditure) need to be assessed.

Risk Reporting and Monitoring

Risks reports relating to the exposures of the identified climate related risks and performance in managing
them and presented to the senior management and to the board. The company shall use different metrics
such as CHG emissions, energy consumption, waste generation, single event maximum risk exposure and
other metrics for monitoring climate related risk.

For management of the climate related risk the company has adopted following measures:

a. Catastrophic reinsurance protection including risk coverage of earthquake, flood, storm, landslide which
limits the net retention of the company and protects from the spillover of the event limit of the reinsurance
treaty.

b. The company has started to use and purchase electric vehicles for official use.

c. The company has promoted the use of electric vehicles to its staff. Additional benefits are provided to
the staff who purchase electric vehicles under the employee vehicle scheme.

d. The company has reduced usage of paper through automation of the process. Use of paper is discouraged
as far as possible for all the operation of the company.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements
Fig. in NPR

50 Capital Management

The Company's objectives when managing Capital are to:

a) Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern so that they can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

b) Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

Regulatory minimum paid up capital
Non-Life insurance companies were required by the Directive issued by Nepal Insurance Authority to attain
a stipulated minimum paid up capital of NPR 2.5 billion by mid-July 2023. As on the reporting date, the

company's paid up capital is NPR 2.65 billion.
Dividend

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

(i) Dividends recognised
Final dividend for the year ended Ashad 31, 2080 of NPR .../-
(Ashad 32, 2079 - 16 % bonus share and 0.8421 % cash dividend)

(ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period
Final dividend for the year ended Ashad 31, 2081 of
NPR 279,468,137 (10 % Bonus and 0.5263% Cash Dividend)

388,280,105

388,280,105

279,468,137

279,468,137

51 Earnings Per Share

Particulars Current Year |Previous Year
Profit For the Year 445,307,020 226,125,314
Less: Dividend on Preference Shares = -
Profit For the Year used for Calculating Basic Earning per Share 445,307,020 226,125,314
Add: Interest saving on Convertible Bonds
Profit For the Year used for Calculating Diluted Earning per Share 445,307,020 226,125,314
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year For
Basic Earning per Share 26,549,473 26,549,473
Adjustments for calculation of Diluted Earning per Share:
i) Dilutive Shares = -
ii) Options - -
iif)y Convertible Bonds - -
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year for
Diluted Earning Per Share 26,549,473 26,549,473
Nominal Value of Equity Shares
Basic Earnings Per Share 16.77 8.52
Diluted Earnings Per Share 16.77 8.52

Proposed Bonus Share

Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares Outstanding During the Year for
Restated Earning Per Share

Restated Basic Earnings Per Share

Restated Diluted Earnings Per Share
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

52 Segmental Information

Segment information is presented in respect of the Company's business segments. Management of the
Company has identified portfolio as business segment and the Company's internal reporting structure is
also based on portfolio. Performance is measured based on segment profit as management believes that
it is most relevant in evaluating the results of segment relative to other entities that operate within these
industries.

Segment asset is disclosed below based on total of all asset for each business segment.
The Company operates predominantly in Nepal and accordingly, the Management of the Company is of the
view that the financial information by geographical segments of the Company’s operation is not necessary

to be presented.

Business Segments of the Company’s are:

i) Fire
i) Motor
iii) Marine

iv) Engineering

v) Micro

vi) Aviation

vii) Cattle and Crop

viii) Miscellaneous
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

c) Reconciliation of Segmental Profit with Statement of Profit or Loss

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Segmental Profit

Add: Net gains/(losses) on Fair Value Changes

Add: Net Realized Gain/Losses
Add: Other Income

Less: Depreciation and Amortization
Less: Non-cash expenses other than Depreciation and Amortization
Less: Unallocable Corporate Expenditures

Less: Finance Cost
Profit Before Tax

716,200,494 | 617,786,770
(2,225,184)|  (16,560,007)
293,608 (39,427)
(48,470,113)|  (36,850,394)
(6,375,000)| (36,823,135)

(32,234,177)

(41,370,356)

627,189,628

486,143,450

d) Reconciliation of Assets

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Segment Assets

Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Investment Properties
Deferred Tax Assets
Investment in Subsidiaries
Investment in Assocites
Investments

Loans

Current Tax Assets (Net)
Other Assets

Other Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Total Assets

4,623,474,968 | 4,838,721,867
9,731,690 8,935,489
725,474,278 | 698,992,977
78,427,771 82,652,887
72,442,756 92,413,559
163,611,239 72,891,606

4,562,299,198

129,122,387
364,055,047
720,205,955
145,852,288

4,185,325,305

5,918,345
343,418,853
596,439,335
117,852,994

11,594,697,578

11,043,563,217

e) Reconciliation of Liabilities

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Segment Liabilities
Provisions

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
Loans and Borrowings
Other Financial Liabilities
Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

5,508,827,893

5,183,543,598

157,075,048 132,588,380
27,000,000 147,801,819
125,116,823 | 307,346,696
416,263,447 | 385,516,148
6,234,283,211 | 6,156,796,641
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the

53 Related Party Disclosure

(a) Identify Related Parties

Holding Company:
N.A.

Subsidiaries:
N.A.

Associates:
Machhapuchchhre Capital Limited
Kriti Venture Fund

Fellow Subsidiaries:
N.A.

Financial Statements

Board of Director & Key Management Personnel:

Gaurav Agrawal -
Ramesh Kumar Luitel -
Saurav J.B. Rana -
Dr. Shrujana Shrestha -
Dinesh Bajra Bajracharya -
Skand Amatya -
Puskar Mahat -
Dip Prakash Panday -
Bimal Raj Nepal -
Sabita Maskey -

Chairperson

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Chief Executive Officer

Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Deputy Chief Executive Officer

(b) Key Management Personnel Compensation:

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Other long-term benefits
Termination benefits

Total

Current Year | Previous Year
102,536,571 107,013,112
102,536,571 107,013,112

Payment to Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Annual salary and allowances 12,473,324 12,479,953
Performance based allowances
i) Employee Bonus - -
i) Benefits as per prevailing provisions 12,893,770 10,198,418
i) Incentives - -
Insurance related benefits
i) Life Insurance 461,428 461,428
i) Accident Insurance 3,900 3,900
iii) Health Insurance 8,400 8,400
Total 25,840,822 23,152,099
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

(c) Related Party Transactions

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Holding
Company

Subsidiaries

Associates

Fellow
Subsidiaries

Key Managerial
Personnel

Total

Premium Earned
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Commission Income
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Rental Income
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Interest Income
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Premium Paid
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Commission Expenses
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Dividend
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Meeting Fees
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Allowances to Directors
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Others
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

7,649,800
4,706,873

7,649,800
4,706,873

(d) Related Party Balances:

Particulars

Holding
Company

Subsidiaries

Associates

Fellow
Subsidiaries

Key Managerial
Personnel

Total

Receivables including Reinsurance Receivables
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Other Receivables
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Payables including Reinsurance Payables
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Other Payables
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024)
For The Year Ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
54 Leases

(a) Leases as Lessee

(i) Operating Leases:
The Company has various operating leases ranging from 1 year to 10 years. The leases are
renewable by mutual consent and contain escalation clause.
Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below

There is no non- cancellable lease as such . All the lease (rental agreements) can be cancelled by
serving the notice period as per the agreement.

Future Minimum Lease Payments Current Year |Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year - -
i) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -
iii) Later than 5 years - -

(ii) Finance Lease:
The Company does not hold assets under finance leases.

Future Minimum Lease Payments Current Year |Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year - -
i) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -
iii) Later than 5 years = -
Total Future Minimum Lease Payments - -
Less: Effect of Discounting - -
Finance lease liability recognised - -

(b) Leases as Lessor

(i) Operating Lease:
The Company has leased out certain office spaces that are renewable on a periodic basis. Rental
income received during the year in respect of operating lease is NPR 19,034,979 (Ashad 31, 2080
NPR 17,891,025).

The Company building situated at Ward No.11, Thapathali, Kathmandu is 8.5 storied and the
company has leased out 4 stories for rental purpose.

Disclosure in respect of Non-cancellable lease is as given below

There is no non- cancellable lease as such. The lease (rental agreement) can be cancelled by
serving the notice period as per the agreement.

Future Minimum Lease Income Current Year | Previous Year

i) Not Later than 1 year - -
i) Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years - -
iii) Later than 5 years - -

(ii) Finance Lease:
The Company has not leased out its asset under Finance Lease.

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Gross Unearned Finance Net Gross Unearned Net
Investment Income Investment Investment Finance Income Investment

i) Not Later than 1 year - - - - - -
ii) Later than 1 year and

not later than 5 years - - = - - -
iii) Later than 5 years - - - - - -
Total - - - - . .
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements
Fig. in NPR

55 Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for: No capital Commitments
has been made

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Intangible Assets

Property,
Investme
Total

Plant and Equipment
nt Properties

56 Contingent Liabilities

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Claims against Company not acknowledged as liabilities

a) Income Tax 105,084,796 105,084,796
b) Indirect Taxes 15,065,942 15,065,942
c) Other - -
Total 120,150,738 120,150,738

57 Events occuring after Balance Sheet

No any event has been occurred after the balance sheet date.

58 Assets Pledged as Security (only if pledged)

The carrying amount of assets pledged as security are:

Particulars Current Year |Previous Year
Reinsurance Receivables - -
Investments in equity - -
Fixed Deposits 60,500,000 60,500,000
Property, plant and equipment 559,510,000 559,510,000
Others
Total 620,010,000 620,010,000

59 Corporate Social Responsibility

Company has to allocate 1% of its profit on Corporate Social Responsibility Fund (CSR) as per the provision
of financial directives issued by Nepal Insurance Authority. The company has not only been focused on
profit and has been participating in various social activities considering its responsibility towards the society.

Company has appropriated 1 % of its net profit i.e. Rs 4,503,372 as Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve.
The company utilized amount Rs 4,532,123 corporate social responsibility reserve during this financial
year."

60 Miscellaneous

(i) Allamounts are in Nepalese Rupees unless otherwise stated.
(i) All figures are in the Nearest Rupee & Rounded off.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Annexure Il

Major Financial Indicator

SN ) Indicat Fiscal Year
a Particular o ™ 080181 2079580 | 207879 | 207778 | 2076177
A. | Equity:
1 | Networth NRs.  [5,360,414,366 | 4,886,766,576 | 4,696,198,780 | 3,843,602,198 |3,322,862,901
2 | Net Profit NRs. 445,307,020 | 226,125,314 | 263,923,452 | 311,987,941 | 409,258,334
3 | Number of Shares Number 26,549,473 26,549,473 22,860,812 17,585,240 | 10,573,106
4 | Earning per Shares (EPS) NRs. 16.77 8.52 11.54 17.74 38.71
5 | Book value per shares NRs. 202 184 205 219 314
6 | Dividend per Shares (DPS) NRs. 16.00 - 38
7 | Market Price per Shares (MPPS) NRs. 723 845 807 1,952 1,019
8 | Price Earning Ratio Ratio 43 99 70 110 26
9 | Change in Equity % 10% 4% 22% 16% 23%
10 | Return on Equity % 17% 9% 12% 18% 39%
11 | Affiliate Ratio % 3.05% 1.49% 1.13% 1.37% 2.39%
12 | Capital to Total Net Assets Ratio % 36% 38% 33% 30.88% 17.82%
13 | Capital to Technical Reserve Ratio % 219% 231% 197% 47% 36%
14 | Market Share (Direct Premium) % 12.71% 12.65% 11.91% 11.48% 12.24%
15 | Solvency Margin % 3.67% 3.33% 3.41% 4.30% 6.80%
B. [Income
16 | Net Earning Ratio % 34.31% 16.41% 21.38% 27.02% 33.89%
17 | Gross Eamed Premium Growth Rate % -0.72% 20.57% 17.01% 13.57% -3.76%
18 | Direct Premium Growth Rate
Property % 18% 5% 3.36% 42.36% 10.67%
Motor % 6% 1% 1.58% -5.75% -13.67%
Marine % -39% -19% 88.24% 1.37% 5.78%
Engineering % -10% 31% 310.04% 27.49% 59.08%
Micro % -66% 23% -92.73% -2.72% 3996.57%
Aviation % 3% -18% -48.82% 1.57% -5.56%
Cattle and Crop % 24% 57% 62.87% 108.46% 8.97%
Miscellaneous % -5% 16% 27.85% -20.81% -6.55%
19 | Retention Ratio % 25% 26% 28.10% 30.76% 36.53%
20 | Net Reinsurance inflow/(outflow) Amount in Cr, (198.51) (177.64) (157.22) (77.65) (123.80)
21 | Rl commission Income/Premium Ceded % 18% 15% 23.17% 20.86% 23.11%
22 | Gross Earned Premium to Equity % 103% 11% 102.87% 104.77% 99.48%
23 | Net Earned Premium to Equity % 25% 29% 28.91% 32.22% 36.34%
24 | Gross Earned Insurance Premium to Total Assets % 46% 48% 42.33% 42.65% 40.82%
25 | Gross Premium to Equity % 101% 109% 103.82% 102.02% 104.38%
26 | Net Profit to Gross Premium % 8% 4% 541% 7.96% 11.80%
27 | Yield on Investment and Loan % 8% 9% 7.20% 7.67% 8.78%
C. | Expenses:
28 | Reinsurance Ratio % 75% 74% 71.90% 69.24% 63.47%
29 | Management Expenses Ratio % 17% 16% 16.95% 16.82% 18.07%
30 | Regulatory Expenses Ratio % 3% 2% 2.33% 2.21% 2.26%
31 | Employee Expenses Per Employee NPR 788,756 740,153 691,954 578,870 540,956
32 | Commission Ratio % 0.65% 0.54% 0.61% 0.92% 0.91%
33 | Employee Expenses to Total expenses
(excluding claims& Benefits) % 63% 59% 63.11% 64.59% 66.65%
34 | Expenses Ratio % 5% 4% 3% 3.93% 3.60%
35 | Loss Ratio % 63% 73% 84.20% 78.21% 68.77%
36 | Combined Ratio % 68% 7% 87% 82% 72%
S hi khar
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. Fiscal Year
S.N. Particular Indicators
2080/81 2079/80 2078/79 2077I78 2076/77
D. |Assets
37 | Increment in Investment Held % 10.98% 5.14% 26.25% 2.75% 3.34%
38 | Increment in Loan % - - - - -
39 | Liquidity Ratio % 2.26 2.06 2.00 243 417
40 | Return on Assets % 6.15% 3.25% 4.20% 5.37% 6.90%
41 | Long Term Investment/Total Investments % 26.90% 21.68% 18.10% 21.39% 31.90%
42 | Short Term Investment/Total Investments % 73.10% 78.32% 81.90% 78.61% 68.10%
43 | Total Investment & loan/Gross Insurance
Contract Liabilities % 89.27% 84.12% 74.84% 66.46% 99.27%
44 | Reinsurer Receivable/Total Assets % 4.66% 8.37% 7.58% 8.31% 0.83%
45 | Investment in Shares/Total Assets % 6.33% 5.71% 5.03% 4.62% 4.56%
46 | Investment in Unlisted Shares/Total Assets % 4.00% 1.60% 3.35% 1.10%
E. [ Liabilities:
47 | Increment in Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities % 4.58% -6.20% 12.11% 53.47% 164.59%
48 | Gross Technical Provision to Gross Earned Premium % 100.68% 95.58% 122.87% 128.23% 94.89%
49 | Gross Technical Provision to Total Equity % 98.76% 103.59% 114.92% 125.25% 94.40%
50 | Outstanding Claim Number/ Number of Claim Paid % 5.33% 5.12% 81.78% 105.82% 21.99%
51 | No of outstanding claims/No of Intimated Claims % 4.94% 19.00% 29.00% 48.00% 39.00%
52 | Total Number of Inforce Insurance Policies Numbers 317,157 298,066 235,242 342,557 326,032
53 | Total Number of Renewed Insurance Policy/Last year's
Total Number of In force Policies % 26.80% 21.21% 27.66% 26.85% 17.97%
Others:
54 | Number of Offices No.s 17 113 110 106 103
55 | Number of Agents No.s 155 135 93 143 131
56 | Number of Employees No.s 640 642 621 619 615
57 | Number of Surveyor No.s 437 427 392 105 100
58 | Employee Expenses to Number of Employees NPR 788,756 740,153 691,954 578,870 540,956
Additional Financial Indicator
. . Fiscal Year
S.N. Particular Indicators
2080/81 2079/80 2078/79 2077/78 2076/77
A | Profitability Ratio
1 | Gross Profit Ratio % 22% 18% 19% 20% 29%
2 | Net Profit Ratio % 8% 4% 6% 8% 12%
3 | Eamning before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation (EBITDA) Amountin Cr. 70.79 56.44 43.71 47.08 59.35
4 | Return on Capital Employed % 8% 5% 6% 8% 12%
5 | Return on Investment % % 9% 6% 8% 9%
B | Liquidity Ratio
1 | Current Ratio Times 243 2.07 2.08 2.52 1.48
2 | Quick Ratio/Acid Test Ratio Times 243 2.07 2.08 2.52 1.48
C | Information Relating to Insurance Sector
1| Net Claim Incurred /Net Premium Earned % 67% 76% 87% 80% 65%
2 | Premium Growth Ratio % 2% 9% 24% 13% 3%
3 | Claim Settlement Ratio % 85% 85% 7% 69% 63%
4 | Reinsurance claim recovery percentage % 61% 58% 56% 60% 48%
5 | Retention Ratio % 25% 26% 28% 31% 37%

68hikhar
nsurance |,

appysarance



661°7L0'VL6TLZ | 206°062°056°98) | 900°¢88°L9°L96 |16L°0G0°6L6'G9L |G0Z'G68985°08) ) £69°)7€'626'TS6 | 990°862 LS1LLE [ejoL

L9110L°0LE Ly | ¥99'E6LTELTS | €80'/89'COV'E6C | €66'L20'CG)'E0L | 0GZ'88E'CLLVEE | LG9°VCCVBT'SS) | LLT'9T 10062 Snosue||gosIi | 8
667'91'2LL'T €¥2'9€0'600°C 629°0/8°£08'8 987'685'£1G°0L 82128208601 | 0€.'G29'92S ) 91905 929°0S doip puesped | 4
9.5'82v'v8l 98'G6686¢ v99'L¥6'018'C | (79Z'€9r'S86'y) | 0¥Z'02€'666'C | (00%'297'989'7) | 9l 02 uoneiy | 9
90€'108°G0L'} 969'€9.°10. 088'80L°€/9'C | ¥S¥'IYL'VECT 981°01G°6LLy | 0G1'G06'GEB'C v€9'LL 092} ORIN | G
orlileTole €66'720°1L€° 1¥8°125'768'6Y | ¥98'€8G'16Y'SE | 686'85L°20L0S | L18'8G9°'798'9E | 60€°T LI¥'T Buussuibuy | ¢
0G€'86€'C0E'LE | CEE'96L'6LL'GL | vB'6YSOL0'6YL | L6G'€QL'OEY'VEL | ¥61'8V6'6LE'08) | 0£6'6G€'GLI'6Y) | 66LL) Ges'yl suley | ¢
0L0LLL LIPSO 0G2'862'L0L Y9 | €9G'06€'6EY'9Z | VV8'EIV9E8'OF | €9G°10G'998°L6 | ¥6G'C9L LEGG0L | 6L 6L 881851 J0J0N | ¢
6v1'816'60C'L. | 09€°1€L9GG°0S | SOS'ZIZ'6OSEEY |928'EYS'96C vy | ¥G9°0€L'6LL YOS | 98)°GLT'EG8 Y6y | 9LL'OF 005°6Y fusdod | |

Jeap SnoiAald | Jeapjualing | Jesj snolAald | Jespjusungy | Jeap snoinald | Jespjualng | Jeaj SNOIA3Id | Jeaj Juaung sadf] soueinsu| | 'N'S
Jainsu| Aq pauiejay Jainsul-ay $9191]0d 9oueansu| Bunsixg siaquiny sa191j0d

%SIY painsu] JoN

0} Papag sty painsu|

jsurebe junowy painsu|

aoueinsu| bunsix3

junowy painsuj Jo sjie}aq
Al @Inxauuy

‘P31 Auedwos asueansuj Jeyjiys

rance
ﬂFP‘lIM}‘ﬂH‘C | 205

Shikhar
nsu
H




Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Report of Board of Directors
As per Section 5 (1) KA of Financial Directives, 2080

A Information related to Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

a s wN -

Date of establishment: 2061/02/15

Insurer license date: 2061/07/26

Insurance business type, nature: Non-life Insurance Business
Date of commencement of business: 2061/08/02

Other Matters: None

B The Board of Directors of the company has approved and declared the following

1

10

11

12

13

14
15

The company has paid the applicable tax, service charges, fines and penalties to be paid under the
relevant laws & regulations.

The share structure of the company is as below:

Promoter Share Holding :51%

Public Share Holding 1 49%

There has been no change in the shareholding structure of the company in the financial year 2080-81.
The company has been maintained the solvency ratio as prescribed by the Nepal Insurance Authority
(NIA).

a) Assets amount contained in Statement of Financial Position are not overstated than its fair value.

b) The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost convention, except for certain assets
and liabilities which are measured at fair value.

Investment made by the company are in line with investment directive issued by Nepal Insurance
Authority (NIA).

The number of claims settled within the financial year 2080-81 is 25,979 and the outstanding claim
number as on Asadh End 2081 is 1383 (excluding COVID outstanding claims). The company has the
policy to settle the outstanding claims within 21 days after receipt all the required documents/information.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standard
(NFRS) issued by Nepal Accounting Standard Board (ASB) and in compliance with the requirements
of the Companies Act, directives issued by Nepal Insurance Authority along with compliance and other
disclosure as per other applicable laws.

The appropriate accounting policy has been consistently applied, unless otherwise specifically stated.

The Financial Position of the company as on 315t Asadh 2081 and its financial performance for the
year ended 315t Asadh 2081 are presented fairly in all material respects.

The board of directors of the company has implemented adequate and appropriate provision to
safeguard the assets and for identification and mitigation against losses due to fraud, embezzlement
and irregularities.

The financial statements are prepared on going concern basis. The board of directors have considered
a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of
profitability, cash flows, and capital resources while assessing the going concern basis. Furthermore,
Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon company's ability
to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operation of it.

The internal control system of the company is commensurate with the size, nature and volume of the
company's business.

The company has not conducted any transactions contrary to the Insurance Act, 2079, Insurance
Regulation, Companies Act, 2063, related regulations and directions with any person, firm, company
and insurer's director or with any entity in which insurer's director has interest.

No penalty has been levied by Nepal Insurance Authority during the financial year 2080-81.
Other disclosure: None
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Quality of Assets and Capital Resources

A: Quality of Assets

i) Composition of Assets

The composition of the assets of the company as at 15" July 2024 is as below:

As at 15th Jul As at 16th Jul
fssets 2024 ! 2023 !
Goodwill & Intangible Assets 9,731,690 8,935,489
Property and Equipment 725,474,278 698,992,977
Investment Properties 78,427,771 82,652,887
Deferred Tax Assets 72,442,756 92,413,559
Investment in Associates 163,611,239 72,891,606
Investments 4,562,299,198 4,185,325,305
Reinsurance Assets 4,082,692,043 3,914,328,283
Current Tax Assets 129,122,387 5,918,345
Insurance Receivables 540,782,925 924,393,584
Other Assets 364,055,047 343,418,853
Other Financial Assets 720,205,955 596,439,335
Cash and Cash Equivalent 145,852,288 117,852,994
Total Assets 11,594,697,578 11,043,563,217

The total assets of the company stood at NPR 1159 crores as at the end of the current year, which was
NPR 1104 crores at the end of the previous year. Reinsurance assets and investments are major assets
of the company, both representing 75% of total assets. Other remaining assets comprise intangible
assets, property plan and equipment, investment properties, deferred tax assets, current tax assets,
insurance receivable, other assets and other financial assets. Reinsurance assets are created against
receivable from reinsurers for unexpired premium reserve (UPR), unexpired risk reserve (URR), outstanding
claims reserve, IBNER and IBNR. Reinsurance assets stood at NPR 408 crores at the end of the current
year, which was NPR 391 crores in the previous year.

The biggest share of the total assets is investment, which represents around 40% of total assets. The
investment includes investment in fixed deposit, debenture, equities, mutual fund and other assets. All
investments are made in accordance with the regulatory guidelines issued the Nepal Insurance Authority,
the investment policy, other application regulations, and assets liability management guidelines of the
company. Most of the company’s investments are in fixed deposits, debenture and equities. The fixed
income securities are invested mainly in fixed deposits and debentures of commercial banks. The primary
aim of the company’s investment is to generate adequate return while minimizing risk. The emphasis is
also on the liquidity of investment to ensure that the company meets all its obligations related to claims
and operations. The company monitors the cash position on a daily basis and short-term needs are
considered while planning investment in respect of all assets. Based on the experience, the management
has reasonable confidence in quality and the expected performance of the investments. The investment
amount has increased by 38 crores compared to the previous year and stood at 456 crores.

i) Encumbrances on Assets
The company’s assets are located within Nepal except a certain amount of reinsurance receivables
from foreign reinsurers.
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B: Quality of capital resources

i)

Capital, Solvency and Shareholders’ Funds

The Shareholders’ fund of the company stood at NPR 536 crore as at 15" July 2024 as against NPR
488 crore as at 16™ July 2023. The company continues to be one of the most efficient users of capital
in the private sector as measured by the ratio of gross written premiums to share capital.

The company is required to maintain minimum solvency margin (i. e. excess of value of assets over value
of insurance liabilities) at 150% as prescribed by the Nepal Insurance Authority. The company maintains
its solvency ratio at 378% as at 15" July 2024 as per general purpose financial statements and 367.7%
as per solvency balance sheet, which is well above the regulatory requirement of 150%.

The composition of the shareholders’ fund of the company as at 15" July 2024 is as below:

Equity

As at 15th July
2024

As at 16th July
2023

Share Capital 2,654,947,300 2,654,947,300
Special Reserves 1,687,491,319 1,462,322,730
Catastrophe Reserves 138,137,767 115,620,908
Retained Earnings 287,508,942 89,456,264
Other Equity 592,329,039 564,419,374

Total Equity

5,360,414,366

4,886,766,576

i) Return on Equity
The return on average equity for the current year is 17%, which was 9% in the previous year.

ii) Dividend
The company has registered healthy financial and operational performance consistently in the last few
years. The company also enjoys a very healthy solvency position at 367.7 % as per risk-based capital
requirements. Considering the company’s capital, solvency and liquidity position, the board of directors,
at its meeting held on 28" January 2025, declared a dividend of 10.5263% (10% bonus and 0.5263 %
cash dividend).
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Comparative Statement of Solvency Balance Sheet and NFRS based
Financial Statement

Statement of Financial Soundness

The assessment of solvency and actuarial valuation of liabilities of the company as at 15" July 2024, as per Risk
Based Capital and Solvency Directives, 2022 (2078) issued by the Nepal Insurance Authority, demonstrates the
strong financial soundness of the company. It is observed that the solvency ratio as at valuation date is 367.7%,
which is much higher than the Supervisory Target Capital level of 130%.

Summary of Balance Sheet
The summary of the annual financial statement and solvency balance sheet are as below:

Annual Financial | Solvency Balance
Statements Sheet

11,594,697,574 11,279,915,805

Particulars

Total Assets

Reinsurance Assets 4,082,692,043 3,960,668,599
All Other Assets 7,512,005,531 7,319,247,206
Total Liabilities 6,234,283,207 6,036,331,002
Technical Provision 5,294,093,391 5,294,093,391
All Other Liabilities 940,189,816 742,237,611

Excess of Assets over Liabilities

5,360,414,366

5,243,584,803

Total assets allowable for the solvency purpose is 2.71% lower than actual assets. The excess of assets over
liabilities for solvency stands at 524.35 crores, which is 2.18% lower than excess as per the annual financial

statements.

Summary of Solvency Margin

Particulars

Amount

Available Solvency Capital (ASC)
Risk Based Capital (RBC)
Solvency Surplus/Deficit)
Solvency Ratio (ASC/RBC)

4,458,876,539
1,212,505,917
3,246,370,622

367.7

The risk-based solvency ratio stands at 367.7% as per the RBC approach. The company’s Available Solvency
Capital (ASC) is 445.88 crores and risk-based capital is 121.25 crores. The company has a surplus solvency
capital of 324.63 crores.

Risk Based Capital (RBC)

Risk Based Capital (RBC) consists of the capital charges for the various categories of risks along with the
allowance for diversification benefits achieved among the risks while aggregating the individual capital charges
for the risks. The benefits of diversification are achieved owing to the fact that the risks are not perfectly positively

correlated.

Below is the table showing the bifurcation of the Total Risk-Based Capital:

Particulars Amount
Market Risk 477,984,280
Credit Risk 589,545,973
Non-life Insurance Risk 404,086,363

Sum of Individual Capital Charges
Aggregation Capital (with correlations)
Diversification benefits

Operational risk before floor/cap
Operational risk after floor/cap

Total Risk-Based Capital

1,471,616,617

1,102,278,106

369,338,511
216,551,989

110,227,811

1,212,505,917
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The following can be observed from the table.

e The highest contributing risk is the credit risk which is 40.06 % of the diversified required capital. This is mainly
comprised of Investment credit risk, Reinsurance credit risk and the concentration risks. Reinsurance credit
risk is the major component of the total credit risk, and it is 39.57% of the total credit risk.

e Market risk, being the second highest contributing factor to the RBC, comprise of Equity risk, Interest rate
risk, Currency risk and Property risk. Equity risk is the major component of the market risk, and it is 62.06%
of total market risk. Whereas the Property risk stands at 4% for the company.

e The insurance risk, which is the sum of Premium Risk, Reserve Risk and Catastrophe Risk, is the third highest
contributing factor to the RBC.

e Operational risk is the lowest component of the RBC.

Available Solvency Capital (ASC)

Available Solvency Capital (ASC) is the excess of assets over liabilities for solvency purpose after allowing for
various deductions. This is the total capital available to demonstrate the solvency for the insurer.
Below is the table showing the bifurcation of Total Available Solvency Capital.

Particulars Amount
Excess assets over liabilities as per Solvency Balance Sheet 5,243,584,803
Deductions (784,708,264)
Tier 1 Capital (after limits) 4,458,876,539
Tier 2 Capital (after limits) -
Total Solvency Available Capital Resources 4,458,876,539

The following can be observed from the above table:

e The total available solvency capital is divided into Tier 1 and Tier 2 according to the loss absorbency and
availability.

e The entire ASC comes from the Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital stands at nil.

e Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR), which is 1/3" of the RBC, is covered by the Tier 1 capital.
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Shikhar Insurance Company Ltd.

Available Capital Resources (ACR), Solvency position and MCR
ASHADH END 2081

Amounts in NPR units

TIER 1 CAPITAL. List of items Solvency balance
(capital resources that absorb losses on a going-concern basis and in winding-up basis) sheet

Excess of assets over liability as per Solvency Balance Sheet 5,243,584,803
Add: Paid-in (paid-up) subordinated debts qualified as tier 1 Available Capital Resources -
Less: Revaluation reserve (399,982,543)
Less: CSR Reserve (228,260)

Less: Fair value reserve -
Less: Actuarial reserve -
Less: Excess of deferred tax reserve shown in equity of 02.01 BS over deferred tax assets as per Financial Statement (71,061,619)
Less: Assets pledged by the insurer when the facility guaranteed is not in the liability side of the solvency balance sheet -
Less: Credit Facilities granted by the insurer and secured by its own shares when the facility is not in the liability side -
Less: Direct and indirect investments, reciprocal cross holdings, arranged either directly or indirectly between financial institutions -
Less: Assets not valued at nil whose valuation in the solvency balance sheet should not increase the Available Capital Resources (313,435,842)
Less: Deduction as per para 66(6) of Risk-Based Capital and Solvency Directive if not valued at nil in solvency balance sheet -
Less: Deduction as per para 66(7) of Risk-Based Capital and Solvency Directive if not valued at nil in solvency balance sheet -
Less: Embedded profit if already included in surplus i.e. excess of assets over liability as per 02.01 BS -

TIER 1 - TOTAL BEFORE LIMITS 4,458,876,539
TIER 2 CAPITAL. List of items Solvency balance
(capital resources that absorb losses only in winding-up basis) sheet

Cumulative irredeemable preference shares quallified as tier 2 Available Capital Resources -
Irredeemable subordinated debts quallified as tier 2 Available Capital Resources -
Other capital resources qualified as Tier 2, including unpaid preference shares, unpaid subordinated debt, letters of credit,
guarantees and mutual member calls -
Future profits embedded in the valuation of technical provisions (reserves) -
TIER 2 - TOTAL BEFORE LIMITS -
Dividend during financial year 2078 - 2079 388,280,105

Dividend during financial year 2079 - 2080 -
Dividend during financial year 2080 - 2081 279,468,137

Dividend agreed or expected during financial year 2081 - 2082 -

SOLVENCY SITUATION

Risk-Based Capital Requirement 1,212,505,917 1,212,505,917
Reduction of life technical reserves due to transitional (only where approved by the NIA) - -
Reduction of non-life technical reserves due to transitional (only where approved by the NIA) - -

Particulars Calculations without | Calculations with
transitional transitionals

Tier 1 items before limits 4,458,876,539 4,458,876,539
Tier 1 Paid-in subordinated debt before limit -

Reduction to limit up to 30% Tier 1 - -
Tier 1 Paid-in subordinated debt after deduction of the limit - -
Exceptional increase para (65)(6) Annexure V of RBC Directive - only previous NIA approval -
Tier 1 items after limits 4,458,876,539 4,458,876,539

Tier 2 before limits
Before limits - Future profits embedded in technical reserves - -
After limits - Future profits embedded in technical reserves - -
Recalculated Tier 2 after limits to Future profits embedded in technical reserves - -
Tier 2 after limit 40% RBC
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Total Solvency Available Capital Resources 4,458,876,539 4,458,876,539
Solvency surplus/deficit 3,246,370,622 3,246,370,622
Solvency ratio 367.7% 367.7%
Supervisory Target Capital Level (paragraph (85) Annexure VI of RBC Directive (%) - 130.00%
Particulars Calculations without |  Calculations with
transitional transitionals
MINIMUM CAPITAL REQUIREMENT 404,168,639 404,168,639
Tier 1 covering MCR 4,458,876,539 4,458,876,539
Tier 2 covering MCR . _
MCR surplus/deficit 4,054,707,900 4,054,707,900
MCR ratio 1103.2% 1103.2%
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Grievance Handling Mechanism

Following Grievance Handling Mechanism/Procedure has been developed to ensure that grievances received
from insured, investor and other stakeholder (hereinafter referred as stakeholder) by Shikhar Insurance are
handled in a fair, transparent, and timely manner. The procedure aims to provide a structured approach to
resolving grievances and maintaining a positive relationship with customers.

1. Procedure:

Receipt of Grievance
The stakeholder shall submit a grievance to the company through any of the following channels:

Phone: The customer can call the company's dedicated grievance number or any official telephone number.
Email: The customer can send an email to the company's designated grievance email ID.

Letter: The customer can send a letter to the company's registered address.

Online Form: The customer can fill out an online form on the company's website.

The grievance shall be acknowledged by the Nodal Officer within 24 hours of receipt and provide Grievance
Registration Number (GRN) to the stakeholder.

Initial Assessment
The Nodal Officer shall assess grievance to determine its nature and scope.

The Nodal Officer shall verify the details of the grievance and gather relevant information and forward to
concerned department for further enquiry.

Investigation
If grievance requires further investigation, the Nodal Officer shall investigate to determine the facts and
circumstances surrounding the issue.

The investigation shall be conducted in a fair and unbiased manner.

Resolution
Based on the investigation, the Nodal Officer shall propose a resolution to the grievance.

The resolution shall be communicated to the stakeholder through appropriate means of communication.

Closure
Once a resolution is provided, the Nodal Officer shall close the case and update the records accordingly.

The stakeholder shall be notified of the closure of the case via appropriate medium.

2. Records and Reporting
All grievances received, and their resolutions shall be recorded in a dedicated logbook.

A quarterly report on grievances received and their resolutions shall be prepared by the Nodal Officer.

The report shall be reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer and necessary actions taken to improve grievance
handling processes.

3. Responsibilities:
Chief Executive Officer: Responsible for providing instruction to concerned personnel for resolving reported
grievances. Responsible for informing the stakeholder relating to resolution of reported grievances.

Senior Management / Head of Department: Responsible for providing details and facts to the Officer relating
to reported grievances along with assessment of reported grievances.

Nodal Officer: Responsible for receiving, assessing, investigating, and reviewing reported grievances.
Responsible for submitting details of reported grievances to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
along with likely solutions for managing reported grievances.
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Communication Mechanism for Interaction and Information Flow to Stakeholders

The communication mechanism ensures a seamless flow of information to the concerned stakeholders, fostering
transparency, trust, and collaboration.

The primary objectives of the communication mechanism are:

e Transparency: To provide clear and accurate information about the organization's activities, decisions, and
performance.

e Engagement: To involve stakeholders in the decision-making processes and ensure their voices are heard.

e Trust: To build and maintain trust through consistent, honest, and timely communication.

e Feedback: To gather feedback from stakeholders to improve processes, products, and services.

Communication Channel
The following channels can be utilized for effective interaction and information flow:

Internal Communications

e Email: Regular newsletters, updates, and announcements can be sent to employees and internal stakeholders.

e Intranet: A centralized portal where employees can access important documents, news, and resources.

e Meetings: Regular team meetings, town halls, and one-on-one sessions to discuss updates and gather
feedback.

e Internal social media: Platforms like Microsoft Teams for real-time communication and collaboration.

External Communications

e Newspaper: important notices regarding the business affairs of the company shall be circulated through the
national daily newspaper

o Website: A well-maintained website with a dedicated section for stakeholder resources and updates.

e Social media: Active presence on platforms like LinkedIn, Twitter, and Facebook to engage with a broader
audience.

e Press Releases: Official announcements to media outlets to reach a wide audience.

o Newsletters: Regular email newsletters to keep stakeholders informed about the latest developments.

e Seminar/Webinars and Events: Events to engage with stakeholders directly.

e Telephone : Enquiry through telephone for the general inquiry and informaton

Publication of statutory notices

The following statutory notices shall be published in the national daily newspaper along with the official website
of the company:

e Quarterly proactive disclosure as required by Right to Information Act

e Quarterly financial statements

e Notice of annual general meeting or special general meeting along with the financial statements
¢ Notice regarding book closure for the AGM, issue of bonus share, issue of right share

¢ Notice regarding issue of any new share

e Any other statutory notices

Responsibility and Accountability

The concerned stakeholder can collect required and legitimate information by contacting either the information
officer or the company secretary of the company or an administrative officer of the company. The Information
Officer of the company is primarily responsible for communication relating to public information. The company
secretary is responsible for the information relating to the shareholders of the company. The administrative officer
shall be responsible for providing information relating the general information.
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ICRA
NEPAL

Shikhar Insurance Company Limited: Ratings reaffirmed

May 20, 2024
Facility/Instrument | Rated Amount (NPR Million) | Rating Action
Issuer Rating | NA | [ICRANP-IR] A+; reaffirmed

Rating action

ICRA Nepal has reaffirmed the issuer rating of Shikhar Insurance Company Limited (SICL) at [ICRANP-IR] A+ (pronounced
ICRA NP Issuer Rating A plus). Issuers with this rating are considered to have adequate degree of safety regarding timely
servicing of financial obligations. Such issuers carry low credit risk. The rating is only an opinion on the general
creditworthiness of the rated entity and not specific to any particular debt instrument. The sign of + (plus) or — (minus)
appended to the rating symbols indicate their relative position within the rating categories concerned.

Rationale

The rating reaffirmation continues to take comfort from the company’s strong competitive positioning as reflected in the
highest gross premium earnings (GPE) in the industry, its wide network of branches, seasoned management team, strong
risk management policy, strong reinsurance arrangement with catastrophic provision and good financial profile of the
lead reinsurer (Hannover Re!, Germany); which is likely to support its future growth and solvency aspects. The rating also
takes note of adequate profitability of SICL so far, despite the dilution in the last few years. Although the company’s
return indicators? have moderated marginally on account of an increased asset base/net worth and low premium
retention, the company continues to maintain a strong solvency profile. ICRA Nepal also positively factors in the growth
prospects of the company given the low penetration of insurance business in Nepal.

However, the rating remains constrained on account of steady uptick in the combined ratio and pressure on underwriting
surplus of the company stemming from low net premium levels and uptick in claims and expense ratio as the company
increased its footprint across the country in recent years. Although the H1FY2024 numbers have reported improvement
in the areas of underwriting surplus, driven by the decline in claims, its sustainability will remain a key monitorable and
rating sensitivity. Along with the pressure on underwriting surplus in the recent years, the softening of interest rates is
also likely to dampen the investment income which could pressurise the profitability profile of the company over the near
term. The impact on SICL’s market leader positioning from large sized competitors formed through merger/acquisition of
erstwhile players will also remain a monitorable. Although SICL remains adequately solvent and liquid despite the tax
paid on premium collected on further public offering (FPO) of equity shares in the past, the recent buildup of receivables
(including government subsidy receivable) and its future trend will also remain a monitorable.

Key rating drivers

Credit strengths

Long track record, strong market position and seasoned management team — Operating since 2004, SICL has a long track
record of operations in the Nepalese general insurance industry and stands as the largest player in terms of asset base,
net worth and gross premium earnings (notwithstanding the moderation in net premium earnings because of the decline
in premium retention from FY2019 onwards). The company’s market position remains stable and strong, supported by
one of the largest branch network in the country, which is likely to help in the long-term growth and diversification of
business. Its management team comprises of seasoned professionals with long industry experience, which is a positive
factor incorporated in the rating.

1 Hannover Re’s issuer credit rating has been affirmed at AA during the latest exercise by AM Best. (Published December 2023)
2 Return indicators for FY2023 affected by tax related to prior period item (premium on equity raised through FPO)
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Strong reinsurance arrangements — SICL’s lead reinsurer —'Hannover Re’?, Germany (for FY2024) has a strong credit
profile which comforts the claims paying ability of the company. SICL’s reinsurance arrangement has remained among
the strongest in the industry and continues to remain so. SICL’s adequate catastrophic reinsurance arrangement at the
time of the April 2015 earthquake not only supported its claims-paying ability but also helped its branding, enabling it to
become the largest player in the years following. The company continues to maintain adequate reinsurance
arrangements, including a strong catastrophic risk coverage for FY2024, which is likely to support the company’s solvency
during similar catastrophic events.

Strong solvency and liquidity profile — On the solvency front, SICL's solvency margin as of mid-July 2023 (Actuarial
Valuation based), calculated as per the regulatory directive, stood at ~3.33 times against ~3.41 times as of mid-July 2022,
versus a regulatory minimum of 1.3 times. The company continues to remain adequately liquid despite the pressure on
cashflows during FY2021-FY2023 because of elevated claims, higher management expenseratio and tax liabilities towards
share premium. SICL’s liquidity position remains adequate as reflected in liquid assets to net insurance contract liabilities
(gross contract insurance liabilities less reinsurance assets) ratio of 3.81 times as at mid-July 2023 vs. 3.76 times as at mid-
July 2022. However, the gradual buildup in receivables (including subsidy receivables from government) in the recent
years could pressurize the liquidity profile to some extent.

Adequate profitability profile - SICL's profitability remains adequate despite the pressure on underwriting surplus as
reflected in elevated combined ratio between FY2021-FY2023. Despite the pressure on underwriting surplus, SICL's
profitability remains supported by investment income given the healthy yield (9.5% for FY2023). The profit level in FY2023
was also affected by higher tax provision for the year (due on prior period items related to tax on share premium).
However, the return indicators remain on a moderating trend due to larger base effect of rising assets/net worth.
Although H1FY2024 profitability has remained improved, its sustainability remains to be seen. Over the near term, low
net premium |levels and recent softening of banking sector deposit rates could dampen the profitability profile.

Credit challenges

Underwriting surplus under pressure from elevated claims and expense ratio - SICL’s claims ratio has remained
generally elevated since FY2021. At the same time, the management expense ratio has also increased as a result of
increased overhead to support network expansion, which is expected to bring in business growth with a lag. As such, the
underwriting surplus has remained subdued in the last 2-3 years, despite the support from ceding commission from
reinsurers. Although the company has reported an improved underwriting performance in H1FY2024 backed by a decline
in claims ratio, its sustainability remains to be seen.

Competitive landscape and industry fragmentation - The competition in the already crowded generalinsurance industry
had further increased since FY2018, following the licensing of new players. The recent mergers between industry players
have resulted in larger players which could affect the industry dynamics and challenge the market leader position of SICL.
While the low penetration of insurance industry in Nepalese market offers growth potential for all players, the recent
economic slowdown and slowgrowth in banking sector credit could intensify the competition among the industry players.

Changes in operating environment because of new regulations — The players in the general insurance industry have
been facing frequent changes in regulatory environment, especially those related to tariff and risk cover. Additionally,
the other provisions like mandatory cession, licensing of new players, etc also affects the operating environment. While
the regulatory changes are likely to eventually result in the strengthening of overall sector over the long-term, these
regulatory changes could potentially impact the financial profile of all players over short to medium term.

Analytical approach: For arriving at the ratings, ICRA Nepal has applied its rating methodology as indicated below.
Links to applicable criteria:

https://www.icranepal.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/11/IssuerRatingMethodology15042019.pdf

! Rated “Superior” by AM Best in terms of its Financial Strength Rating and Issuer Credit Rating.
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Shikhar Insurance Co. Ltd.
Head Office

Shikhar Biz Centre,

Thapathali

P.O. Box: 10692, Kathmandu, Nepal, Tel: 01-5346101, 01-5346102
E-mail: shikharins@mos.com.np Web: www.shikharinsurance.com

Koshi Province

Chandra complex, Mahendra chowk, Blratnagar

021-578391/021-578390

Lumbini Province
Milan chowk, Butwal
071-532568

Biratnagar

Chandra complex, Mahendra chowk
021-578391/021-578390
birt@shikharinsurance.com

Birtamod

Aduwapul, Birtamod, Jhapa
023-535666
birtamod@shikharinsurance.com

Madhesh Province
Adarshanagar, Birgunj
051-528181/051-528088

Karnali Province
Birendranagar-6, Hulak chowk,
Surkhet

083-523410

Dharan Khandbari

Laxmi Sadak, Dharan-1 Khandabari-1, Pokhari bazar
025-571430 029-590355
dharan@shikharinsurance.com khandbari@shikharinsurance.com
Hile Phidim

Dhankuta-1, Hile Phidim-1, Panchthar

026-540715 024-590082
hile@shikhrainsurance.com phidim@shikharinsurance.com
lllam Taplejung

lllam-7, Bhanu path Phungling -5, Birendra chowk, Taplejung
027-521837 024-460883

Bagmati Province
Shiva Arcade, Newroad, Kathmandu
01-5333191/5315799

Sudurpashchim Province
Godawari Road, Chauraha, Dhangadhi
091-417195

Our Province Offices

Gandaki Province
Newroad, Pokhara
061-573100/570333

Our Branch Offices

Gaighat

Gaighat -11, Udayapur
035-422270
gaighat@shikharinsurance.com

Bhojpur

Bhojpur -7, Bich Bazar
029-420185
bhojpur@shikharinsurance.com

Okhaldhunga
Siddhicharan-11, Okhaldhunga
037-690111

Damak ilam@shikharinsurance.com taplejung@shikharinsurance.com
Damak-10, Main Road . Kakarbhitta, Biratchok, Duhabi
023-584634 Itahari . Terhathum Inaruwa, Lukla, Khotang
damak@shikharinsurance.com g/lza5|r_15g)552d7,:;tahan gg%hig‘éjg 6nyaglung -2, BN Bhawan
itahari@shikharinsurance.com terhathum@shikharinsurance.com
. Lahan Rajbiraj Lalbandi
Madhesh Province Lahan-8, Purbabus Stand, Mainroad, Siraha Rajbiraj-7, Saptari Sarlahi, Lalbandi -7
' 033-560932 031-530065 046-501344
g::;g)::_ 1, Mahottar lahan@shikharinsurance.com rajbiraj@shikharinsurance.com lalbandi@shikharinsurance.com
044-550697 Janakpur _ Garuda Jaleshwor .
bardibas@shikharinsurance.com Shiv Chowk, Station Road, Janakpur Garuda - 4, Rautahat Jaleshwor-4, Mahottari
Birquni 041-500134 055-565249 044-590063
Adagrsh]a nagar, Birgun] Ja-nakpur@shlkharlnsurance.com rautahat@shikharinsurance.com Jalleshw.or@shlkhannsurance.oom
051-528181/051-528088 Simara , Mirchaiya Birgunj Extension Counter
birg@shikharinsurance.com 3'5'2351‘5150'\"3'" Road g/l?igchai())lg‘-‘g, Siraha 051-590000
5 -55
simara@shikharinsurance.com mirchaiya@shikharinsurance.com
H H Banepa Madi
Bagmatl PrOVI nce Gongabu Banepa-5, Tindobatok, Kavre Basantapur-3 Madi, Chitwan
Buddha Mall, Machhapokhari, Gongabu 011-663855 056-501056

Narayangarh (Bharatpur)
Balmandir chowk, Bharatpur
056-590137/590237
narayangarh@shikharinsurance.com

Hetauda

Bank Road, Hetauda
057-526778/057-526779
hetauda@shikharinsurance.com

Newroad

Shiva Arcade, Newroad
01-5339960 /5339961
newroad@shikharnsurnce.com

Pulchok
Pulchok-20, Lalitpur
01-5452805/01-5439804

Naxal

Naxal-1, Kamalpokhari
01-4446138/4446139
naxal@shikharinsurance.com

Kalimati

Kalimati-13, Kathmandu
01-5389458
kalimati@shikharinsurance.com
Chabahil

Chabahil, chuchchepati
01-4481707 / 4481932
chabahil@shikharinsurance.com

01-4950722/4950793
gongabu@shikharinsurance.com

Bhaktapur

Barahi sthan Suryabinayak, Bhaktapur
01-6617471
bhaktapur@shikharinsurance.com

Dhading

Nilakanth -3, Dhading besi, Shanta bazar
01-0521300
dhading@shikharinsurance.com

Nuwakot

Bidur - 2, Batar Nuwakot
010-561829
nuwakot@shikharinsurance.com
Kirtipur

Kirtipur, Bahiri Gaun-9, Nayabazar
01-4334385
kirtipur@shikharinsurance.com

Rasuwa

Kailka-2, Rasuwa

010-594000
rasuwa@shikharinsurance.com

Baneshwor

Baneshwor, Kathmandu, instead of
Baneshwor-31/ Old Baneshwor
01-4464193/01-4464184
baneshwor@shikharinsurance.com

banepa@shikharinsurance.com

Maharajgunj

Chakrapath, Maharajgunj
01-4370190/01-4370089
maharajgunj@shikharinsurance.com

Tandi

Ratnanagarpalika-1, Bakulahar chowk,
Tandi

056-561114
tandi@shikharinsurance.com

Manthali

Manthali-1, Ramechhap
048-540612
manthali@shikharinsurance.com

Thimi

Thimi, Gaththaghar, Bhaktapur
01-6635765
thimi@shikharinsurance.com

New Baneshwor

Standard Chartered Bank, New Baneshwor
01-5907542
newbaneshwor@shikharinsurance.com

Naubise

Dhunibesi - 6, Dharke, Naubise
010-414142
naubise@shikharinsurance.com

224

madi@shikharinsurance.com

Chapagaon
Godabari -11, Chapagaon, Lalitpur
01-5265088
chapagaon@shikharinsurance.com

Gwarko

Gwarko - 7, Lalitpur
01-5200783
gwarko@shikharinsurance.com

Bhainsepati

Sainbu, Bhaisepati - 4, Lalitpur
01-5900633
bhaisepati@shikharinsurance.com

Thamel
Thamel- 27, Tridevi Marg, Kathmandu
9841634669

Charikot

Charikot, Dolakha

049-421414
charikot@shikharinsurance.com

Chanauli

Bharatpur-20, Chanauli Bazar
056-591979
chanauli@shikharinsurance.com



Lubhu

Mahalaxmi-8, Labhu, Lalitpur
01-5580735
lubhu@shikharinsurance.com

Mulpani

Kageshwori, Mahanara-5, Thali, Mulpani
01-4451565
mulpani@shikharinsurance.com

Satungal

Chandragiri-12, Gurjudhara, Kathmandu
01-5919776
satungal@shikharinsurance.com

Thaiba

Godawari Na.Pa.-3, Taukhel
01-5560830
thaiba@shikharinsurance.com

Palung

Thaha Nagarpalika -03, Shikharkot
057-400074
palung@shikharinsurance.com

Bhandara

Rapti-5, Bhandara

056-550137
bhandara@shikharinsurance.com

Salayantar

Tripurasundari-2, Salayantar
063-440701
salayantar@shikharinsurance.com

Kurintar, Chautara

Gandaki Province

Pokhara

Newroad, Pokhara
061-573100/570333
pokhara@shikharinsurance.com

Lekhnath

Talchowk- 27, Lekhnath, Pokhara
061-561832
lekhnath@shikharinsurance.com

Besisahar

Instead of Sundarbazar, Lamjung
066-402162
lamjung@shikharinsurance.com

Dumkibas

Sardiroad, Nawalpur

078-416052
dumkibas@shikharinsurance.com

Dumre Waling Jomsom Arunkhola
Bandipur - 1, Dumre Bazar, Tanahu Waling - 3, Syangja Gharapjong-3, Airport Arunkhola, Damauli
065-580380 063-440701 069-440442 Tanahun
dumre@shikharinsurance.com waling@shikharinsurance.com jomsom@shikharinsurance.com
Kawasoti Beni Dulegauda
Kawasoti - 8, Savapati chowk Beni - 7, Newroad, Myagdi Khairenitar, Tanahu
078-541141/078-541142 069-521335 065-412158
kawasoti@shikharinsurance.com beni@shikharinsurance.com dulegauda@shikharinsurance.com
Kushma Baglung Anbukhaireni
Kushma-6, Dhaneshwor Chowk, Parbat | Dhawalagiri Chowk-2, Baglung Byas-8, Tanahu
067-420497 068-521896 065-580380
kushma@shikharinsurance.com baglung@shikharinsurance.com damauli@shikharinsurance.com

Lumbini Province
Nepalgunj Jeetpur Gulmi Lamahi
Dhamboji-2, Surkhet road Jeetpur-4, Kapilvastu Resunga -1, Putali Bazar, Gulmi Bus Park, Lamahi-5
081-537464/537465 076-550317 079-520991 082-540878
nepg@shikharinsurance.com jitpur@shikharinsurance.com gulmi@shikharinsurance.com lamahi@shikharinsurance.com
Butwal Gulariya Kohalpur Chandrauta
Sukrapath-8, Butwal Jilla Prahari Karyalaya, Chowk, Gulariya | Newroad Ganesh Chowk - 4, Kohalpur Shivraj, Kapilvastu
071-532568/533568 084-421606 081-540273 076-540568
butwal@shikharinsurance.com gulariya@shikharinsurance.com kohalpur@shikharinsurance.com chandrauta@shikharinsurance.com
Dang Sunwal Bijuwar Arghakhanchi
Shahid Umesh marga 15, Ghorahi, Dang | Nawalparasi road, Sunawal Bijuwar- 4, Pyuthan Sandhikharka-1, Arghakhachi
082-563549 078-570471 086-460121 077-420560
dang@shikharinsurance.com sunawal@shikharinsurance.com bijuwar@shikharinsurance.com arghakhanchi@shikharinsurance.com
Bhairahawa Rampur Tulsipur Murgiya
Naya Sadak-7, Bhairahawa Rampur-4, Palpa Tulsipur- 5, BP Chowk, Dang Murgiya, Sainamaina - 3, Rupandehi
071-570141 075-400200 082-523515 071-440389
bhw@shikharinsurance.com rampur@shikharinsurance.com tulsipur@shikharinsurance.com murgiya@shikharinsurance.com
Taulihawa Palpa Bardaghat
Kapilvastu-1, Taulihawa Tansen - 4, Silkhantole, Palpa Bardaghat - 4, Nawalparasi
076-590217 075-521517 078-590968

taulihawa@shikharinsurance.com

palpa@shikharinsurance.com

bardaghat@shikharinsurance.com

Karnali Province

Dailekh

Devkota Chowk, Narayan Municipality-1
089-410227
dailekh@shikharinsurance.com

Dolpa

Dunai Bazar, Guthi chaur, Dolpa
9869539221
dolpa@shikharinsurance.com

Surkhet

Birendranagar-6, Hulak chowk, Surkhet
083-523410
surkhet@shikharinsurance.com

Mugu

Chhayanath Rara -1, Gamgadhi, Mugu
087-460236
mugu@shikharinsurance.com

Kalikot

Khadachakra -1, Kalikot
087-440033
kalikot@shikharinsurance.co

Jumla

Chandannath - 5, Khalanga Bazar, Jumla
087-520625
jumla@shikharinsurance.com

Humla

Simikot - 5, Humla
087-680226
humla@shikharinsurance.com

West Rukum

Musikot-1, Tribenichowk, Kalanga
088-530213
west.rukum@shikharinsurance.com
Jajarkot

Khalanga, Jajarkot Na. Pa.-4, Bheri
089-594040

jajarkot@shikharinsurance.com

Salyan

Sarda Na. Pa.-1, Srinagar
9869970146
salyan@shikharinsurance.com

Sudurpashchim Province 2

Sudurpashchim Province

Dadeldhura

Amargadi-5, Dadeldhura
096-410315
dadeldhura@shikharinsurance.com

Doti

Pipla Bazar, Dipayal, Doti
094-590048
doti@shikharinsurance.com

Mahendranagar Belauri

Vimdatta-18, Campus road, Mahendranagar Belauri -4, Kanchanpur
099-524464 099-580374
mahendranagar@shikharinsurance.com belauri@shikharinsurance.com
Dhangadhi Lamki

Godawari road, Chauraha Lamki chuha-1, Lamki, Kailali
091-417195 091-590275

dhangadi@shikharinsurance.com

lamki@shikharinsurance.com
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Bajhang

Jay Prithivi -10, Chainpur, Bajhang
092-421516
bajhang@shikharinsurance.com

Attaria

Godawari-13, Attariya

091-590254
attariya@shikharinsurance.com
Achham

Sanfebagar Nagarpalika -4, Achham
097-590465
chham@shikharinsurance.com
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Management Team







